V& VILLAGE

GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
ONE DISTRICT ~ ONE TEAM

The Audit Committee Meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District will be held
starting at 2:00 p.m. on Tuesday, October 27, 2020 at the Boardroom, 893 Southwood
Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada.

In compliance with State of Nevada Executive Department, Declaration of Emergency Directive 006, 016, 018, 021,
026, and 029, this meeting is closed to the public and attendance is limited to members of the Board of Trustees
and essential staff. Public comment is allowed and the public is welcome to make their public comment either via
e-mail (please send your comments to info@ivgid.org by 11:30 a.m. on Tuesday, October 27, 2020) or via telephone
(the telephone number will be posted to our website on the day of the meeting).

A. ROLL CALL OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS*
Derrek Aaron (At-Large Member), Matthew Dent (Trustee, Chair), Cliff Dobler (At-Large Member),
Sara Schmitz (Trustee), and Raymond Tulloch (At-Large Member)

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS* - Conducted in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter
241.020 and limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in duration.

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action)

The Audit Committee may make a motion for a flexible agenda which is defined as taking items on the
agenda out of order; combining agenda items with other agenda items; removing items from the agenda;
moving agenda items to an agenda of another meeting, or voting on items in a block.

-OR-

The Audit Committee may make a motion to accept and follow the agenda as submitted/posted.
D. DISTRICT STAFF UPDATE (for possible action)

District’'s 2019/2020 Independent Financial Audit and Internal controls: Verbal update by the
Director of Finance Paul Navazio on the District’s 2019/2020 Independent Financial Audit being
conducted by Eide Bailly and update to the Audit Committee on District’s Internal Control’s Review
(Requesting Staff Member: Paul Navazio)

E: GENERAL BUSINESS ITEM (for possible action)

I1. Review and discuss the Audited and not Audited 2019 CAFR Zﬁequestlng Member At- I

Large: Cliff Dobler) — pages 3 - 109

: Review, discuss and possibly approve 2020-2021 RFP for District Audit (ﬁequesting
Trustee: Matthew Dent) — pages 110 — 180

. Review, discuss, and provide feedback regarding the DRAFT 2019-2020 Management
Discussion and Analysis (Requesting Staff Member: Director of Finance Paul Navazio) ~

ages 181 - 190

: Review, discuss, and provide feedback regarding the DRAFT 2019-2020 Transmittal
Letter (Requesting Staff Member: Director of Finance Paul Navazio) — pages 191 - 199

Incline Village General Improvement District
Incline Village General Improvement District is a fiscally responsible community partner which provides superior utility services and community
oriented recreation programs and facilities with passion for the quality of life and our environment while investing in the Tahoe basin.
893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada 89451 e (775) 832-1100 e FAX (775) 832-1122
www.yourtahoeplace.com
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Agenda for the Audit Committee Meeting of October 27, 2020 - Page 2

eview, discuss, and provide feedback regarding the DR elcome Letter
(Requesting Staff Member: Director of Finance Paul Navazio) - pages 200 - 202

F. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES (for possible action)

uait Lommitiee lvieeling iinutes ot oseptember o0, — pages

or possible aciion) — page

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS* - Conducted in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter
241.020 and limited to a maximum of three (3) minutes in duration.

I ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)

) CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA
TS
| herechr’nfy that on or before Thursday, October 22, 2020, 2019 at 9:00 a.m., a copy of this agenda (Audit Committee Session of October 27, 2020)/v;a3‘d/vered
to the post office.addressed to the people who have requested to receive copies of IVGID’s agendas copies were either faxed or e-mailed to those-people who have
requested; andeaﬁpmas posted at the following six locations within Incline Village/Crystal Bay in accordance with NRS 241.020:
e,

1. IVQID\\.\\Anne SUSPEN DED . STATE OF NEVADA Vorderbrggge‘@ilding (Administrative Offices)
S Chew 'Ba Pe  EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT, | ofe
g :?]illﬁ]y;s Sheﬁlpai;g DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY’ (Blreanr:;rl of Washoe County Library
6. IVGID’s Recreation DIRECTIVE 006 (SECTION 3), 016, Center
018, 021, 026 and 029 e L

\f Susan A. Herron, CMC
Mo the Board o "Fnust\ees (e-mail: sah @ivgid.org/phone # 775-832-1207)
\

Audit Committee Members: Derrek Aaron (At-L ’Member), Matthew Dent (Trustee, Chair), Cliff Dobler (At-Large Member), Sara Schmitz (Trustee), and
Raymond Tulloch (At-Large Member) /[ge

Notes: Items on the agenda may be taken out of order; combined with other items; removed from the agenda; moved to"the agenda of another meeting; moved to
or from the Consent Calendar. settion; or may be voted on in a block. ltems with a specific time designation will not be he:\a"pnkto the stated time, but may be
heard later. Those Il‘w owed by an asterisk (*) are items on the agenda upon which the Board of Trustees will take no action. Membgrs of the public who are
disabled and reguu’e Special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to call IVGID at 832-1100 at least 24 hours prior to the meeung Copies of
the packets,f*ontalnlng background information on agenda items are available for public inspection at the Incline Village Library.

IVGID 's agenda packets are now available at IVGID's web site, www.yourtahoeplace.com; go to "Board Meetings and Agendas”--A- hard-copy eﬁthe
complete-agenda packetis-alse-available-atiVGID s Administrative-Offices-located-at-893-Seuthwood-Boulevard-Incline-Village-Nevada.-89451.



Incline Village General Improvement District
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report - fiscal 2019
A summary of Data

Introductory Section
Welcome Letter
Transmittal Letter
List of Elected Officials
Organization Chart of Staff members
GFOA Certificate of Achievement

General Manager
General Manager/Director of Finance

Financial Section
Auditors Report

ENCOMPASSES OPINIONS OR NO OPINIONS
Management's Discussion and Analysis NO AUTHOR

Basic Financial Statements

Government - Wide Statements
Statement of Net Position Governmental & Business Activities No details
Statement of Activities All funds

Governmental Funds - 8 funds Excludes capital assets net of related debt
Balance Sheet - General(1), Community Services (3), Beaches(3), Internal Services (1)
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances
Reconciliation of Revenues, Expenditures to Statement of Activities

Major Fund - Governmental Financial Statements
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
General Fund
Community Services Special Revenue Fund
Beach Special Revenue Fund
Should have Community Services Capital Project Fund
Major Fund - Proprietary Financial Statements (Utility and Internal Services)
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements - 22 notes

Required Supplementary Information
Employer Contributions to Pension Plans

Individual Fund Schedules - Excludes prior year comparisons.
Stm of Revenues , Expend/Expenses & Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund Duplicated -
Special Revenue Funds
Community Services Duplicated
Beaches Duplicated

Capital Project Funds
Community Services Should be a Major Fund
Beaches

Debt Service Funds

Community Services

Beaches
Utility Fund Duplicated
Internal Services Fund Duplicated

Statistical Section - 21 different data items

Compliance Section
Auditors Report on
Internal Controls on Financial Reporting
Laws, Regulations, Contract, Grants,

Auditors Comments Report
Current year Statute Compliance
Progress of Prior Year Statute Compliance
Prior Year Recommendations
Current Year Recommendations on Internal Control deficiencies

Auditors GASB
Report requirements
no opinion Not required
no opinion Not required
no opinion Not required
no opinion Not required
no opinion Not required
No opinion Required
Opinion Required
Opinion Required
Opinion Required
Opinion Required
Opinion Required
No opinion Required
Limited Not required
opinion
and no
requirement
to report

In most cases funds not
qualifying as major funds
are "Combined" and included
as part of the Basic Financial
Statements . There is a
choice

No opinion Not Required

No Opinion
No Opinion

No significant constraints
No findings
No significant deficiencies
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WELCOME!

The following pages comprise the Incline Village General Improvement District '
(IVGID) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year

ended June 30, 2019. Our financial reports support our sustainable government
model, which IVGID offers the communities of Incline Village and Crystal Bay.

(e

IVGID's enviable financial condition continues with our increases in net
position, readily available cash, low debt ratic and no unfunded pension and
medical liabilites.

Over the past five vears:

e  Our cash position remains adequate while our net investment in capital
assets has increased to $120.7 million. ;

e Our 2019 expenses have increased primarily due to meeting service
levels for our venues, while remaining on average an increase of 6
percent per year. Revenues have increased 7 percent per year.

e Our utility revenues have increased to ensure adequate cash flow to not only fund annual operations, but to also fund
future capital improvement needs, especially the effluent pipeline project.

e  Our recreation user fees have been otherwise stable.

e Our govcrr;mcntal revenues (property ax and combined taxes) have been steady to increasing over the entire period.
e  Our bonded indebtedness has dropped from $1,299 to $672 per capita.

e Our total recreation fee cost to the property owners has remained flat over the entire period.

Current Conditions:
e  Our unrestricted net position of $31.8 million is 5 dmes greater than our total outstanding indebtedness of $6.1 million.

e  Since 2008, our outstanding indebtedness has dropped from a high of §27.2 million to $6.1 million.

e Our outstanding indebtedness is only .7% of our statutory debt capacity.

e Our ratio of debt service to total expenditures has dropped to 2.6%.

Conclusion
Despite this record of exceptional financial performance, we refuse to rest on our accomplishments so far. We will continue to

endeavor to provide quality secvice to all of our customers at the lowest cost possible. In addition, we will continue to excel in
financial and capital planning in the most transparent, inclusive manner possible.

I'd like to personally thank our dedicated management staff for all the work that they do throughout the year and in conjunction
with this important document. I'd also like to thank all of our stakeholders: property owners, business owners, residents, guests and
our employees for their continuing support of all of our operations. Together, we all play a part in making Incline Village/Crystal
Bay one of the most livable communities in the nation.

Indra S. Winquest
Interim General Manager
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November 18, 2019

Citizens of Incline Village and Crystal Bay
Board of Trustees for the Incline Village General Imptovement District

The Incline Village General Improvement District (the District) hereby submits our Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (the Report) for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Finance Department publishes the Report to
provide financial and general information about the District to members of the Incline Village/Crystal
Bay community, customers, the investment community, and general public.The data presented is designed to
help readers assess the financial condition of the District and to understand the services that the District provides
to the Incline Village/ Crystal Bay community. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control.
Since the cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable
assurance, rather than absolute assurance, that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

State law requires that each local government publish, within five months of the close of each fiscal year, an annual
audit of all of its financial statements. The audit must be presented at a meeting of the governing body held not
more than 30 days after the report is submitted. Also, the report must be presented in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with United States Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. We hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report of the Incline Village General Improvement District.

The District’s financial statements are audited by Eide Bailly, LLP. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,
are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion
that the District's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, are fairly presented in conformity
with GAAP. The unmodified Independent Auditors’ Report appears in the Financial Section.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statement in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with that overview. The District’s MD&A
can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the District
The District was formed 1n 1961 in accordance with the State of Nevada’s Revised Statutes, Chapter 318, pertaining

to General Improvement District Law as a body corporate and public and a quasi-municipal corporation in the
State of Nevada. The District is located on the northeast corner of Lake Tahoe, in the Sierra Nevada Mountains,
and occupies a land area of approximately 15.36 square miles and serves a base population of approximately 9,000
residents. In accordance with the enabling legislation, the District provides water, waste water, and solid waste
services within its boundaries, as well as various recreational amenities including downhill skiing, two golf courses,
a multi-use recreation center, tennis facilities, meeting facilities, parks, recreation programs, beaches, playgrounds
and other recreation-related programming. The District serves approximately 4,200 water/sewer customers,
accommodates over 100,000 skiers, 35,000 golfers, and 170,000 beach users, and oversees a variety of other
activities including over 120,000 visits to the Recreation Center annually.




IVGID’s Vision Statement
With passion for quahty of life and our environment, Incline V:llage Genesal Improvement District will

enhance the reputation of our community as an exceptional place to live, work, invest, and play. xyz

IVGID’s Mission Statement
Incline Village General Improvement District delivers exemplary recreational experiences and provides the
highest level of water, sewer, and solid waste services while striving for fiscal and environmental sustainability.

[VGID’s Value Statement
We are dedicated people providing quality service, for our community and environment, with integrity and

teamwork.

IVGID’s Mantra Statement
One District * One Team

IVGID’s Long Range Prmcm]es

The District ddopted a Strategic Plan for July 1, 2015 through June 30 2018. Part of the plan includes six Long
Range Principles. Under the direction of the Board of Trustees and the leadership of the District General Manager,
the Principles align our activities to the strategy of the District. Each Principle addresses objectives over the two

years of the Plan, as well as annual budget initiatives.

RESOURCES AND ENVIRONMENT - Initiating and maintaining effective practices of environmental
sustainability for a healthy environment, a strong community and a lasting legacy.
¢ Review and upgrade District policies and practices to encourage or require waste reducuon, recycling
and environmentally preferable purchasing,
e Develop sustainability measures, goals and metrics to create and/or maintain a sustainable District.
» Provide the community with environmental education and technical services on watershgd
protection, water conservation, pollution prevention, recycling and waste reduction.

FINANCE - The District will ensure fiscal responsiﬁility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining
effective financial policies for operating budgets, fund balances, and capital improvement and debt management.

Adhere to Government Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Comply with State and Federal regulations.

Maintain Performance Measurement.

Report results and demonstrate value.

¢ Develop and maintain a long term plan to sustain financial resources.

e o o @

WORKFORCE - Attract, maintain and retain a highly qualified, motivated and productive workforce to meet
the needs of District venues.
o  Staff will evaluate open position job descriptions, for need to fill, level of and related compensation

for the position.
e  Re-evaluate, during the budget process, the optimurn level of Staff and related total compensation,
necessary to each department based on industry standard and level of service.

¢  Comply with State and Federal regulations.

- e Continue to provide a safe environment and continue to strive for low worker’s compensation
incidents.

o Identify individuals for retention and growth for management succession within the District.
SERVICE — The District will provide superior quality service and value to its customers considering responsible
use of District resources and assets. P , .

¢  Provide well defined customer centric service levels consistent with community expectations.

o Apply Performance Management to meet or exceed established venue customer service levels.

o Utlize best practice standards for delivery of services.

2

10



e - Commit to evaluate customer loyalty/satisfaction to demonstrate the value of results.
s Maintaining customer service trammg for new, returmng and existing employees.

ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE - The District will pract:tce perpetual asset renewal, zeplacement and
nnprovement to provide safe and supericr long term utility services and recreation activities.
¢ Maintain, renew, expand and enhance District mfrastructuxe to meet the capacxty needs and desires
of the community for future generations. :
® ~ Maintain, procure and construct District assets to ensure safe and accessible operations for the
pubhc and the District’s. workforce.
e Maintain }current Community Service and Public Works master plans.
o Maintain a 5-Year and 20-Year capital improvement plan,
o Conduct planning and design, in advance of undertaking projects ot procurement, to ensure new
District assets meet operatlonal requirements and enhance the customer experience.
. Mamta.m an asset management program leveragmg technology, as appropnate by venue/ division, to
ensure timely and efficient asset maintenance. ,
e Comply w1th regulatory reqmrements and industry standards.

COMMUNICATION The District will engage, interact and educate to promote understanding of the
programs, activities, services, and ongoing affairs.
~»  Promote transparency in all areas including finance, operations and public meetings.
¢ Provide clear, concise and timely information in multiple, publicly accessible formats.
s  Ensure that both internal and external communication is responsive, corhprehensive and inclusive.

District Management

A five-person elected Board of Trustees, with 4-year terms, gove.ms the Dlstnct Every other year, two or three of
the trustee terms exp.u:e and are up for election. Upon being elected, the trustees assume office on january Tor
the first board ‘meeting of the year. The District has benefited from longevity and management expenence The

Senior Management Team Is led by the District’s General Manager. The District has made a commitment to .

developing strategies that lead to results, It has also continued a commitment for sustainability in ﬁnancmg for
capita] assets.  The District has made many capital investments out of current resources, along with paying off
bonds utilized to finance i improvements. The Facility Fee, which is charged by parcel, is a significant source for
both capital expendxturc and debt service for the Community Services and the Beach activities. This fee has been
at the same total for nine years, but has transitioned moze for capital improvement and less for debt service. The
Utlity Fund has been increasing its rates for several years in anticipation of a major improvement to the effluent
export pipeline'that is several years away from the next phase of replacements.

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Nevada Revised Statutes, which
includes prescribed progedures to establish the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements. On or before
April 15, 2018, the Board of Trustees filed a tentative budget with the Nevada Department of Taxation. Public
hearings on the budget and Facility Fees were held on May 23, 2018. On or before June 1, 2018, the Board adopted
final budget for the year ended June 30, 2019 was filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all funds. Formal budgetary integration in the'financial
records is employed to enhance management control during the year for all funds requiring budgets. Budgets are
adopted for all governmental and proprietary fund types. The governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a
modified accrual basis and the proprietary funds type budgets are adopted on an accrual basis. The District can
amend or augment the budger after following State statutes and public hearing procedures. The District did
augment its budget for the Community Services Special Revenue to reflect higher than expected activity for the ski
resort and filed the documents with the State of Nevada,

District Financial Initiatives and Accomplishments

The Board of Trustees establishes policy and direction, within the framework of the District Strategic Plan and its
Long Range Principles. The Plan covering the years 2018 to 2020 was adopted May 9, 2018, That period emphasis
includes developing performance measures, stabilizing planning for capital lmprovements, and enhancing
cominunication at many levels.

11



DPerformance measurement through Fund Accounting Governmental Fund Accounting demonstrates sources and

uses through budgeting and reporting. The District’s parcel owners pay a facility fee that is dedicated to operatonal,
capital improvement and debt service by functions or activities. By using the Special Revenue, Capital Projects and
Debt Service Fund Types; the District can demonstrate and communicate the relationship of the facility fee pald
to how it was used for these very different types of transactions. Many of the District’s service venues require
substantial capital investment and improvements. Operating statements alone do not represent the true scope of
activity to make services available. This accounting not only provides a record of accomplishment, but allows for
focused plémning to meet the stritegic objectives of sustainability and capital maintenance

Utlity Rates to Support Infrastructure The District has identified approximately 6 miles of effluent pipeline for

replacement over a scnes of years. This project is expected to cost at least $15,000,000. This replacernent will be
pzud for by rate increases over a period of years, rather than debt. Sewer Rates have been increased to accurmulate
more resources for this project. Water rates are set to a strictly pay for what you use as a cost of service. The latest
rate increase went into effect in May 2019. Results.of the Utlity operations exceed budget The resources intended
for the long term portion of the effluent project, have been invested.

ec at 3830 The fiscal year 2018- 19 marks the ninth year in

which the combmed fee totaled $830 The facxhty fee revenue was realized as planned.

; : : Fiscal year 2018-19 also
marks the qmtb year fox what has become known as “smoothing”. This is an initiative integrated with the 5-year
capital plan, to schedule projects in a way to prowde reasonably consistent amounts for capital expenditure thus

 avoiding increases in the total Facility Fee from year to year. The Recreation and Beach Facility Fee is intended to
generate resources for operations, debt service and capital expenditures. The debt service and capital expenditure
components are budgeted based on specific issues and projects. Following the maturity of bond issues, resources
for debt service were directed toward capital improvernent. Results of operations for 2018-19 in the Community
Services Special-Revenue Fund were over budget. The Community Services Special Revenue fund balance
continues to be evaluated and is expected to be used for several major capital projects that have been identified for

cornpleuon in the next five years

Capital Project and Debt-Service Funds Net Position Closes

From July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2019 the District used Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds as a way to
demonstrate the use of dedicated revenues for those expenditures. During this period it was clear the focus of
users was not at a fund level, but rather primarily on the functional level expenditures. Such reporting can be
accomplished through Special Revenue Funds. The District’s special revenue funds are the source of the dedicated
revenues then transferred to e:\pend Beginning July 1, 2019 these funds will only be activated in the event of a
bond issue or other direct fundmg source needing a separate accounting. This will simplify reports for our users.

Factors Affectmg Financial Condition

Located on the northeast shore of Lake Tahoe, Nevada, near the California border in Washoe County, the District's
economy 15 - laxgely dependent on toutism,. centered on summer and winter recreational activities. Due to its
location, the region s economy is closely tied to the California/San Francisco Bay Area economy. The Reno-Sparks
Convention & Visitors Authority report at June 2019 indicates the combined room occupancy rate increased 6.3%

from last year.

Development within the District is challenged by the avaiiability of parcels for redevelopment. There are
commercial projects planned in Crystal Bay. The preliminary development permits for the projects have been
approved. The scope of the development will be determined by future events. Itis anticipated they will have a

positive effect on the area.

Located in Incline Vﬂlage, Sierra Nevada College (SNC) is Nevada's only private residential four-year liberal arts
college which serves the community at large and those looking for a unique educational expedence. The college
has forged a unique partnership with Tahoe Center for Environmental Sciences (TCES). This partnership, between
public and private institutions of higher education in two states, includes Sierra Nevada College, the University of
California, Davis (UC Davis), the Desert Research Institute (DRI) and the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR).
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The 2010 census population of 9,087 reflects an 8% decrease since 2000. Of the District’s 7,954 housing units, the
Census reports 3,353 for seasonal recreation use. This is 14% more than the number in 2000. There is no indication
of a change in these factors as of 2019. The median housing value at June 30, 2019 for single family residence and
condo sales for Incline Village and Crystal Bay are $1,400,000 and $619,000, respectfully, representing a 17%
increase on residence and a 11% increase on condos over last year. For the entire Washoe County the values were
$408,500 and $241,000 respectively. Values in Incline Village and Crystal Bay tend to be more than the general
County because of a strong demand by Caleorma buyers Jooking for a preferred tax address in thé Tahoe Basin.

The Reno-Sparks June 2019 unemployment rate of 3.2% and is well under the State at 4. O% and is below the
national level at-3.7%.

Lake Tahoe is known as one of the most beautiful regions in the Worldand as the largest alpine lake in North
America, it offers an alpine environment untouchable anywhere else. The pristine beauty of Lake Tahoe draws over
three and one-half million visitors annually from around. the world. From snow skiing to golfing to boating to
gaming, Lake Tahoe is one of the premier resort destinations, offering visitors countless activities. Additionally,
Incline Village/ Crystal Bay offers a spectacular and serene mountain nelghborhood for property owners.

The 2004 Legislature passed Assernbly Bill 489 to provide property tax relief which prowdes a parual abatement
of taxes by applying a 3% cap on the tax bill of the owner’s primary residence and a higher cap on the tax bill of
other properties begmnmg with the 2005/2006 tax roll in Washoe County. For the fiscal year. 2018-2019 the
abatement was $428,437, based on State of Nevada Department of Taxation formulas. The pre-abated Ad V: alorem

jevy was 352,040 175. ' ,

Begmmng in 2010, the District has had a portion of its property tax settlements offset to sette a court ordered tax
refund by Washoe County. The General Fund was able to meet this obligation while maintaining service levels
while the refund was completed. Over the course of four years the total offset was approximately $1,200,000. A
new action has been taken to the Nevada Supreme Coutt, which referred the matter to the Washoe County District
Court to demde if another round of refunds should be ordered. A District Court order was issued in October 2019
that is bemg appealed to the Nevada Supreme Court. A final decision has not been reached, nor is the outcome
and possxble affect determinable as of June 30, 2019.

General Euhd

The General Fund is primarily responsible for governance and administration of the District’s activities. The Fund
has nominal change year to year. The General Fund is discussed in more detail in the MD&A section.
Community Services Special Revenue Budgetary Highlights

Comrhunity Services cover a variety of recreation venues. The ski resort benefitted from extess snow by having
an extended season and higher than budgeted visits, This resulted in over $2,800,000 in additional revenue while
only incurring just over $475,000 in additional costs. Qur golf courses saw a stable level of play. The Parks and
Recreation venues saw stable use. A substantial schedule of capital projects were done during the year. However,
there were still over $1,700,000 in capital projects carried over as unexpended and is reflected in Fund Balance,

Beach Budgetary Highlights

The District’s beach venues saw increased revenues, despite higher water levels on Lake Tahoe. The Beach is
independent of other operations and has sought to increase its resources for future capital projects. The Beach
Study identified a number of possibilities. There is an upcoming replacement project for the Burnt Cedar pool.
Utility Budgetary Highlights

The net position for the Utllity Fund increased $2,650,244 for the year. Utlities increased rates about 3% to cover
its costs of service and to continue to facilitate building resources for the effluent pipeline replacement project.

The Utility Fund saw a year on year Increase in expenses mainly for personnel.
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Internal Services Budgetary Highlights

Internal Services includes Fleet, Engineering, Building Maintenance and Workers Compensation coverage. Both
Engmeermg and Buildings Maintenance were under budget due to staff vacancies. The overall revenues and
‘expenses balanced out. Following completion of a Loss Transfer and Assumption agreement, which allowed: the
District to liquidate its Work Comp claims liability from past years, a transfer of $174,356 was made to the General
Fund to close that activity under Internal Services. A transfes for $800,000 was made in the ptior year. Another
$300,000 was budgeted and made during this fiscal year. Readers may refer to Notes 13 and 22 for more deteuls
on the changes to the Workers Compensatton program.

Budget Aumentatlon, appjlcatlon of budget contmgencv and other budget reconcﬂxaﬁons

The Dzstnct approves a budget for each fiscal year by completing Form 4404LGF as prescnbed by the State of
Nevada Department of Taxation Local Government Finance. Preparation of this form set includes prescribed
account titles and allowable levels of detail.  This form set in essence creates a Budgetary Basis accountmg and
presentation.” To provide adequate financial planmng, the Distmct s approach to the budget includes an‘evaluation
in more detail of the flow of resources for both govemmental and business-type activities. This results in the
District budgeting for cap1tal expenchture and debt service in the enterprise funds, similar to governmental type
funds. The District has presented additional schedules to reconcile basic financial statement presentations with
information included in Form 4404LGF for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019

As a result of excess snow fall and resulting increased skier visits, a budget augmentation was adopted May 22

which increased Community Service Special Revenue Furid revenues by $2,800,000 and expenditures by $430,000.

This augmentation was largely focused on setting expenditures at a ‘proper level to be in compliance with Nevada
Revised Statutes.

The District budgeted contihgency in the General and Special Revenue Funds. None of the contingency was used
for 2018-19, : :

The District has been engaged in a lawsuit for over six years that received a final order, which was. then appealed.
Legal costs of the appeal were not budgeted.

The District has reported fair market value adjustments to its‘fixed income investments. In the past these have
been reductions. In the current year they resulted in increase to value along with realizing improved rates of return.
* The reported amount exceeds budget because neither cause was anticipated in early 2018 when the budget was

formulated.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Incline Village General Improvement District for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ‘ended June 30, 2017. ‘This was the eighteenth year that
the District has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government
must publish aneasily readable and efficiently organized cornprehenswe annual financial report. This report must
satisfy both GAAP and apphcable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for 2 period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requitements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. .
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees
incline Village General Improvement District
Incline Village, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements -

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Incline Village General
Improvement District {the “District”), as of and for the year ended Jiine 30, 2018, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively-comprise the District’s basic fmancxaz statements as listed

in'the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles gerierally accepted inthe United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation; and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relfevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

What inspives you, Inspires us. Let’s talk. | eidehally.com
5441 Kielzko Ln., Ste. 150 1+ Reno, NV 89511.2004  T775,689.9100 F 775.689.9299  ECE
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our.opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faxrly, in all material respects, the

respective financial position of the governmental activities, the businass-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District, as of June 30; 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, Community Services Special Revenue Fund, and.Beach
Special Revenue Fundfor the yearthen ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. ~

Correction.of an Error -
As discussed in Note 22 to the financial statements, certain errors occurred in the transfer of funds

between operating funds for the year ended June 30, 2018 and were discovered by management during
the current year. Accordingly, these transfers were corrected in the currentyear and have resulted in a
restatement of fund balance as of July 1, 2018. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this

matter.

Other Matters

2

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management'’s
discussion and analysis on pages 13 through 20 and the schedule of employer required contributions on
page 57, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by.the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic; or historical context. We have apphed certain limited procedures
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods or
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency. with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an

opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Informetion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, individual fund
schedules including budgetary comparisons, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The individual fund scheduies including budgetary comparisons are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
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other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund schedules including budgetary comparisons are
fairly stated in all material respects, in relatron to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductary and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial staternents and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them,

Other Reporting. Requxred by Government Auditing Standards

In.accordance with GovernmentAudltmg Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 18,
2019 on our consideration of the District’s.Internal control over financial reporting and oni our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations; contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting oron compliance. That report is
anintegral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondards in considering
the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

@M@;r@

Reno, Nevada
November 18, 2019

£
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Incline Village General Improvement District ‘
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

As management of the Incline Village General Improvement District (District), we offer readers of the District’s financial statements
this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Incline Village General Improvement District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2019. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, financial statements, and notes to the financial statements to gain a more complete picture of

the mformatzon presented.

Financial Highlights

Weather continues to play.a key role in financial pecformance of the District. The Community Services ski venue had an extended
season dueto good snow conditions’ resulting in additional revenue and costs to require a budget augmentation. A normal golf
season allowed both courses to work on programming and the continued use of dynamic pricing for their revenue realization. The
Mountain golf course experienced an increase in golf rounds, despite an August 2018 kitchen fire. The beach season had above
average attendance. The Utility services had an average year for their flows. Overall the District still maintains a healthy financial
condition for liquidity, operations and capital management. The District continues to meet its financial obligations-and provide
services to the community at large. - Maintaining the care and condition of infrastructure is 2 high priority for all venues. The Uuht}
Fund continues to build resources for a future Effluent Pipeline Project, while executing the preliminary study and design.

June 30, 2019 Fiscal Year Highlights Based on Goveniment-wide Financial Statements:

*  The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, at the close of the most recent fiscal year,
by $153 million (net position). Of this. amount, $31.8 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the District’s

ongoing obligations.

e The District’s net position increased $7.1 million. A significant portion will serve to provide resources for future capital
projects.

e The General Fund’s ending fund balance is at $3.8 million.
e  The governmental activities included depreciation of $3.5 million while making investments in capital assets of $6.5 million.
¢ The District retired $859,678 in bond principal during the year.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an intcoduction to the District’s basic financial statements which consists of the

following:
*  Government-wide financial statements .
* Fund financial statements’
*  Notes to the financial statements

This report also contains other Supplementary Information in addition to the basic ﬁnancialysvtatements.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with 2 broad overview of the District finances in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statemenrof Ner Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as zef position. Over time, increases or decreases, in net position, may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs segardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only resultin cash flows in future fiscal periods. For

example, the vacation wages liability recognizes a current cost while payment is in the future.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June. 30,2019

(continued)

- Both of the government-wide fmancxal statements (INeZ Position and Statement of Activities) distinguish functions of the District that are

principally supported by taxes, intergovernmental cevenue and charges for services (governmental activities) from other functions that are

intended to recover all or 2 significant portion:of their cost(s) through user fees and charges (Gusiness-fype artivities). The governmental
activity of the District includes the administration by the General Fund, recreatlon ard internal service activities. The business-type

. activities of the District include utlity activities that reflect enterprise operations where a fee for service typica!ly covers all or most of
the costs of operations including depreciation and debt service. -

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resousces that have been
segregated for specific activities. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financia) related legal
requirements; hence, the principal role of 2 fund is to demonstrate fiscal accountablhty All of the funds of the District can be divided

mto two categories: govemmental and proprietary.

. _Qg_ge_rg_mgg;g_{.funds are used to account for essenually the same functions reported as govemmenta/ m‘mtze:m the government-wide
financial statements. Howeves, unlike the govemment—wxde financial statement, the governmental fund financial staterent focuses
on near-term inflow and outflow of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term ﬁnancmg requirements.:

Because the focus of government funds is narrower than that of the government-wide ﬁnancxal statement it is useful to compare the
mfoxmanon presented for governzenial fuids with similar information presented for gosermment activities in the government-wide financial
statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance provide a reconcxhanon to facilitate this comparison between gosernmental funds and governmental activities. The District
maintains multiple governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund financial statements for the
General Fund, Community Services Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Services Funds, and the Beach Special Revenue,

Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds.

The District adopts an annual budget for its governmental funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
. General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. For the other govemmental funds similar
comparisons are provided in the Supplemental Information section.

Proprietary funds, The District operates two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented in-business-type activities in the government-wide statements. The District uses enterprse funds to account for its Utility
Fund. Infernal Service funds axe an accounting device used 1o accumulate and allocate costs internally among the District’s various
functions. The District uses an internal service fund to account for its maintenance of its fleet of vehicles, buildings maintenance, and
engmeenng functions. The District internal services fund also accounts for the Workers Compensation function. Each departiment
pays for coverage based on its payroll costs. Workers Compensation serves the entire District and uses thése charges, rather than
costs being allocated by department. The Internal Service Fund is classified as governmental-type activities in the government-wide
statement since the governmental funds are the most substantial users of these services.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this repost also preseats certain
supplementary information concerning the District. The District has prepared 2 schedule for its Multi-Employer Retirement Plans.
There are individual fund schedules, providing budget to actual comparisons. These schedules indicate compliance with budgetary
constraints and management directives to enhance accountability at the fund and function level. The State of Nevada Department of
Taxation, Local Government Division, has a prescribed format for budget data. The supplementary information reports actual
results according to that format and terminology. Statistical information is provided on a five or ten-year basis, as available, for trend
and historical analysis. This information addresses a number of the major revenue sources of the District including the Recreation

and Beach Facility Fee.
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Incline Viliage General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Governmental-wide Financial Analysis

Net position is 2 nseful indicator of a government’s financial position. The District’s assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources by $153 million at June 30, 2019. The largest portion of net position (79%) zeflects net investment in capital assets {e.g.,
land, buildings, equipment, construction in progress less accumulated depreciation and bonds that are still outstanding). The District
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, they are not available for future spending. Although the investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. ‘

Inclinc Village General Improvement Diswict

Net Position
: Governmental Activities Business-type Activitics Total
Asscts ' . 2019 2018 . 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and Other assets S 18211423 § 13,170824 $ 8207132 § 8435236 $ 26418555 § - 21,606,060
Long Term assets 6,656,389 9,546,374 5,843,465 3,762,165 12,499,854 ° 13,308539
Net Capital Assets 57,639,775 54,721,037 (9.158.284 69,496,001 - 126,798,059 124217038
Total Asscts 82,507,587 77438235 83,208.881 81,693,402 _165,716.468 159,131,637
Liabilities .
Current lisbilities 5477847 4,631,434 1,815,665 2,306,442 7,293,512 6,937,876
Long-ﬁ:rm ligbilities 1,131,683 1,491,016 4,084,938 4608926 5216621 6.099,942
Total Liabilitics 6,609,530 6,122,450 5,900,603 $,915368 12,510,133 13,037,818
. Deferred Inflows of Resources
Defesred inflows 242,584 242019 - - 242584 242019
Net Position :
Netinvestement in capital assets 56,147,002 52,880,021 64,549,358 64,377,397 120696450 117257418
Restricted by Third Party Agreement 136,993 183,037 316,611 309,344 453,604 492,381
Untespricted ) 19.371.388 18,010,708 12442309 10091203 31,813,697 28102001
Total Net Position $ 756554738 70,075,766 S 77,308,278 § 74,778,034 S 152963751 § 145851800

-

Incline Village Genceral Improvement District
Change in Net Position

Governmental Activities Busincss-tvpe Activities Total
2019 2018 | 2019 2018 2019 ° 2018

Revenues g =
Program Revenues:

Charges for services § 23715505 § 20278250 § 12785742 § 11925557 § 36501335 § 32203807

Operating grants 17,000 17,000 1,440 - 18440 17,000

Capital grants and contributions 267 558,128 . 199,934 267 758,062
General Revenues:

Ad valorem tax 1,622,486 1,546,575 - - 1,622,486 1,546,575

Consolidated tax 1,690,222 1,637,250 - - 1,690,222 1,637,250

Facility Fees 6,756,410 6,771,522 . . 6,756,410 6,771,522

Unrestricted investment cacnings 563,685 175,122 282,484 77,280 846,169 252,402

Other 204,245 190,578 15,066 50,020 219311 240,598

Total Revenues 34,569,908 31,174,425 13,084,732 12,252,791 47,654,640 43,427,216
Expenses

General Government * 4,194237 3828917 - - 4,194,237 3828917

Inteenal Services 3,306,507 3,056,400 - - 3,306,507 3,056,400

Ulity : - - 10,554,488 10,253,834 10,554,488 10,253,834

Community Services 20,345,198 19,043,639 - - 20,345,198 19,043,639

Beach 2142259 1,849,659 - —— - 2,142,259 1,840,659

Total Expenscs 29,988,201 27,778,615 10,554,488 10,253,834 40,542,689 38,032,449
Excess Revenue (Expenscs) 4,581,707 3,395,810 2,530,244 1,998,957 7,111,951 5,394,767
Tansfers In (Out) (120,000) {120,000 120000 120,000 - ——
Changes in Net Position 4,461,707 3,275,810 2,650,244 2,118,957 7,111,951 5,394,767
Beginning Net Postion, as reported 71,073,766 67,797,936 74,778,034 72,659,077 145,851,800 140,457,033
Prior Period Adjustment _ 120,000 - {120,000 . - - -
Beginning Net Position, as adjusted 70,193,766 67,797,956 73,658,038 72,650,077 145,851,800 __ 140,457,033

. Ending Net Postion ai_75'655‘473 $ 71,073,766 $ 77,308,278 s 74;778%034m $ ]5259635751 $ .145;851250[],'z
15
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Governmental-wide Financial Analysis (continned)

Governmental activities increased the Districts’ net position by §4,461,707. The majority of this increase is attributed to an
excellent operating season for the District’s ski resort. ~

Total governmental activity revenue overall increased year-on-year in the area of charges for services. The increase in Charges for
Services is attributed to the ski resort and increases for banquets and events. The significant increase in investment income is an
increase in rates and changes in market values form a loss to a gain. Sales and consolidated taxes, mostly.comprised of business and
vehicle tax, and increased year-on-year. These combined taxes come through an allocation of state-wide collections. Ad valorem
taxes saw an increase. During 2005, the Nevada Legislature passed 2 law to provide property tax relief (Assembly Bill 489) which
provided a patial abatement of taxes by applying a 3% cap on the tax bill of the owner’s primary residence and a higher cap on other
properties beginning with the 2005/2006 tax coll in Washoe County. For the fiscal year the abatement has 2 valoe of 5428 437 2s 2

reduction of otherwise elig1ble ad valorem taxes.

The Dlstnct'ski re’sort‘budgets its operations on 1 10,000 skier visits. For 2018-19 the resort had 130,922 visits. The added usage
resulted in revenue exceeding the original budget by over $2,863,000. Though some expenses also increased by $477,000, many costs
are fixed and the resulting increased results flows to fund balance. By comparison, the Community Services Special Revenue Fund

for 2018 was very close to budget.

Incline Village General Improvement District Governmental Activities Revenues

R ]

2019 2018
Property taxes o $ 1,622,486 5% $ 1546575 5%
Combined taxes 1,690,222 5% 1,637,250 5%
Charges for Services ~-Community Service: 17,748,644  51% 14,726,788  47%
Charges for Services - Beach 1,492,687 4% 1,266,613 4%
Charges for Services - Internal Services 4474262 13% 4,284,849  14%
Facility Fees - Community Services 5,781,289 17% 5,799,206 19%
Facility Fees- Beach ~ , 975,121 3% 972316 3%
Operating Grants 17,000 0% 17,000 0%
Capital Grants 267 0% 558,128 1%
Unrestricted investment earnings 563,685 2% - 175,122 1%
Miscellaneous revenues ’ . 204,245 0% 190,578 1%
Total governmental revenues $ 34,569,908 100%" $ 31,174,425 100%

The facility fee, assessed on parcel owners, is the most stable of the revenue streams for the District, The facility fee is assessed by
the District for recreation and beach privileges and is collected by Washoe County Assessor's office through the real property
quartesly billing process. For 2018-19 the District assessed $5,788,050 in recreation facility fees and §969,500 in beach facility fees.
The shift to the Beach Fund in fiscal year 2018 was to provide more resources for futuse capital expenditure.

IVGID Facility Fees
, District
Per Eligible Parcel Total Assessment Roll Assessed
Fiscal Community Community Recreation -

Year Beach Services Beach Services Facilify»
2018-19 $ 125 § 705  $969,500  $5,788,050  $6,757,550
2017-18 125 705 969,500 5,776,770 6,746,270
2016-17 100 730 774400 5972860 6,747,260
2015-16 - 100 730 774,300 5,972,130 6,746,430
2014-15 100 730 774,300 5,971,400 6,745,700
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

deemmental—wide Financial Analysis (continued)

Total governmental activities include the General Fund which provides District wide administration, Internal Services, and
Recreation and Beach programming, capital projects and debt service. Expenditures in the General Fund increased year on year
primasily related to Human Resources and increased legal expenses from litigation. ' Internal services increased reﬂectmg higher
service levels and the prior year having a reduced cost in Work Comp because of claim liability changes. Recreation and Beach
programming reflect higher costs based on increase in service demand, while also increasing wages to hourly staff.

Incline Village General Improvement District
Governmental Activities Functional Expenses

&

2019 2018
Manager $ 418829 § 355012
Trustees . 175,882 176,450
Accounting 884,240 833,348
Information Services 828,368 820,658
Risk Management 137,019 127,032
Human Resources 682,394 597,875
Health & Wellness ‘ 28,816 24,594
Community & Employee Relations 194,398 188,682
‘Administration 583,203 462,552
Depreciation 261,088 2427714

Total General Government $ 4,194,237 $ 3,828,917

Fleet $ 1,146,886 8§ 1,045987
Engineeting 631,999 751,111
Buildings Maintenace 1,022,743 909,796
Works Compensation 504,879 349,506

Total Internal Services

$ 3,306,507 $ 3,056,400

. Championship Golf § 4,985,709 $ 4724811

Mountain Golf 1,155,483 1,165,185
Facilities 678,964 626,149
Ski C , 9,098,577 8,230,147
Recreation and Community Programming 2,634,298 2,564,677
Parks 1,082,530 1,063,374
Tennis ) 302,493 281,020
Recteation Adminsitration ‘ 407,144 388,276

Total Community Services

‘ Total Beach

17

$ 20,345,198

$ 19,043,639

$ 2,142,259

$ 1,849,659
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased their net position by $2,650,244. The prior year was $2,118,957. The
. Utility Fund has little fluctuation from year to year in its units of service. It continues to build added resources for a major capital
project on the effluent pipeline. Capital expendzcures were $2,816,092, while depreciation expense was §3,153,809. Principal

reduction on bonds was $509,678.

! Financial Analysis at the Fund Level
The District uses fand accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirernents.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the District’s governmental funds is.to provide information on current inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
baldnice of $3,568,844 may serve s a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year. At the end of the fiscal yeax, the District’s General Fund balance increased to $3,765,586, with $196,742 non-spendable: A
prior pedod adjustment has been made to the General Fund to reflect a 2018 transfer of $800,000 from the Worker Comp activity
within Internal Services, which was redistcibuted to the Community Services, Beach and Utility funds during 2018-2019. The
General Fund also received $300,000 during 2018-19 that will likewise be distributed dusing 2019-2020 and $174,356 which«ill be
retained. The Work Comp self-insured function Internal Services is no longes required having transferred all liability to a sisk pool.

The District’s recreational programming is conducted undes two activities; they are Community Services and Beach. As a result of
a deed restriction, a distinct constituency is served by the Beach fund and thus its inflows and outflows are measured separately to
demonstrate compliance. The Community Services Special Revenue Fund Balance increased to $13,333,953. The Beach Special

Revenue Fund Balance increased to $1,810,378.

Budgets are adopted for all governmental funds on a modified accrual basis. The focus of this basis is to capture transactions based
on current financial resouzces. Increases and decreases in financial resousces are recognized only to the extent that they reflect near-

term inflows or outflows of cash.

1

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund functional expenditures performed better to budget by $484,833. The increase in investment earnings is attrdbuted to
rate increases, and market value improvement. Much of that is a one-time occurrence, and past years have recognized the
reductions. Savings occusred in Information Services because of staff vacancies. Several planned capital expenditure where not
made including $195,000 for two software systems. General Pund actual expenditures has increased slightly over the prior year.
Administration includes legal defense costs of about $130,000.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Incline Village General Improvement District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities, 2s of June 30, 2019 amounts to $126,798,059 (net of accumulated depreciation). Investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, and recreation facilities. Readers desiring more information,
with respect to capital asset activity, should see Note 4 to the financial statements,

Incline Village General Improvement District Capital Assets, Net

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2019 2018 2018 2018 . 2019 2018
Land - Governmental Activities $ 16,971,753 § 16,971,753 § - $ - § 16,971,753 § 16,971,753
Contruction in Progress - Governmental Activitics 2,157,303 2,755,328 . . 2,157,103 2,755,328
Lanid - Utility Activities E - ( - 6,715,544 6,715,544 6,715,544 6,715,544
Construction in Progress - Utility Activities - , - 1,418,052 4,151,041 1,418,052 4,151,041
Buildings and Improvements 913,462 846,899 - . 913,462 . 846,899
Equipment and Vehicles 1,647,472 1,591,187 - . 1,647,472 1,591,187
Intemal services cquipment. fumiture and fixtures 253,869 263,912 - - T 253,869 263,9‘12
Utility service Infrastructure ; - - 113,807,857 108,626,081 113,807,857 108,6;6,08 1
Utility buildings and improvments - - 15,503,863 - 15,166,010 "15,503;863 15,166,010
Utility equipment, furniture and fixtures - - 3,626,213 3,721,984 3,696,213 3,721,984
Community services buildings and improvements 64,695,501 58,884,392 ) - - 64,695,501 58,884,392
Community services equipment, fumiture and fistures 11,942,698 11,613,546 ) - - 11,942,698 11,613,546
Beach buildings and improvments 4,957,906 4,861,698 - - 4,957,906 4,861,698
Beach cquipment, fueniture and fixtures 569,383 510,786 - - 569.383 510,786
Total Cost 104,109,147 98,299,501 141,141,529 138,380,660 2l§5,250;676 236,680,161
" Accumulated Depredidtion (46,469,372) (43,578,464 (71,983,245)  (68,884,659)  (118,452,617)  (112,463,123)
Capital Assets, Nex $ 57,639,775 § 54,721,037 $ 69,158,284 $ (9,496,000 s 126,798,059 § '124‘,217,038

The major capital asset events during the fiscal year was completion of 2 Diamond Peak Culvert Project and capitalizing multi-year
improvements for the effluent pipeline.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total bonded debt outstanding of $6,106,926. Of that -
amount, $4,962,361 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the District. The actual source. for repayment is service
revenues. The remainder of the District debt, §1,144,565 represents bonds secured solely by specified utility revenue sources.

Long-~term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Beginning New Principal Ending

Balance Issues Paid Balance

Governmental Type Activities:

Bonds Payable;

Recreation Revenue Supported  § 1,848,000 8 - $ 350,000 § 1,498,000

Business Type Activities:

Bonds Payable;

Utlity Revenue Supported 5,118,604 - 509,678 4,608,926
" Total $ 6,966,604 § - § 859,678 $ 6,106,926

Readers desiring more information, with respect to the District’s debt, should see Note 8 to the financial statements.

The District may borrow money and incur or assume indebtedness as provided in Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 318, Section
277, so long as the total of all such indebtedness (but excluding revenue bonds and special assessment bonds) docs not exceed an

amount equal to 50 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of raxable property.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Yeat ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
®  The District’s primary revenue sources are from service charges from users. These are mostly in two forms as amounts
charged at the point of service delivery and a standby charge paid by parcel owners to support the avaﬁablhty of services.
The standby charge, also known as the Facility Fee, is determined annually by venue to support its operations, capital
expenditure and debt service. The District has adopted a multi-year Strategic Planning process. Along with that, we
continue to look at capital expenditure and debt service planning, ﬁve to twenty years ahead.

®  Weatheri impacts demand for golf and skiand, to a much smaller-extent, water and sewer charges based on the choice of

residents and visitors to spending time in our community. We have recovered from the pdor several years of drought
_affecting the beach and ski'resort. With a more normal weather pattern, we look forward to less fluctuation year to year. A
'ma;or initiative is to look at summer usage of the ski resort. A regulatory review of those possibilities has begun. However,
this.may take three to five years to be resolved. The general economy and d.tscxenonary spending are considered during the
budget process. Anticipated user levels are revisited each year to assess probable service demands.

® Beginning W:th the 2009-10 ﬁscal yeas, the Udlity Rate structiire was evaluated by the Board one year at a time. For 2009-
10 the Board decided on no increase in rates. This was applted to both the operating and capital component of rates. Rate
increases were implemented for the 2010-19 fiscal years. These increases were for additional costs and 1o provide resources
for the construction of the now completed Burnt Cedar Water Disinfection Plant Upgrade and the planned replacement
project for several miles of our effluent pipeline. There are 2lso a multitude of pro;ects to upgrade pump stations. The
design of these projects is ongoing. Both rates and planning for ma;or construction is reviewed annually for the next five

years.

e Parcel- Owner user zates are based on market data and operating needs of the community activities as determined durmg
budget preparation and adopted by the Board of Trustees.

*  Personpel cost comprised 36% of annual expenditures. The 2018-19 budgeted for base wages and salaries, and benefits to
increase including 3% cost of living wage or merit increases, and 12% for health benefits rates in January 2019, Iralsoright
sized staffing for increased service levels.

s In these economic times employee retention is a key to the success of the District. The District continues to seek a balance
of market forces and its economic realities with the benefits of longevity and employee institutional knowledge. Though
many employees are part time we strive to have them move from venue to venue or season t season.

Request of Information

This financial repost is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all interested parties. Questions
concerning the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Director of Finance, 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada, 89451. This report will also be available on the District's

website at www.yourtahoeplace.org.

20

29



R R T R R e e T e R i ¥ S e RN

INCLINE VILLAGE
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BASIC FINANCIALS

30



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019
Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS '
Cash and ash equivalents : $ 10,215,642 $ 4,366,202 14,581,844
Short term investments 5,741,868 2,248,044 7,989,912
Reazivables: , .
Acounts receivable, net . 17,780 1,204,623 1,222,403
Interest on investments ' 36,806 32,109 68,915
Taxes and Fees from Washoe County 38,914 - 38,914
Grants Receivable , ) 371,079 12,881 383,960
Due from other govemnments 505,808 - 505,808
Inventodes and supplies 675,985 154,393 830,378
Prepaid items 607,541 188,880 796,421
Long term investments ) 6,276,812 5,526,854 11,803,666
Restrcted assets:
Temporarly restdcted investments 379,577 316,611 696,188 -
Capital assets:
Land 16,971,753 6,715,544 23,687,297
Constraction in progress 2,157,103 1,418,052 3,575,155
Bu?jdings, Structures, Improvements, Infrastructure, !
Equipment and Vehides, net of acumulated depredation v 38,510,919 61,024,688 99,535,607
Total assets 82,507,587 83,208,881 165,716,468
LIABILITIES
Acounts payable 1,395,283 736,835 2,132,118
Adaxued personnel costs 1,657,774 344,526 2,002,300
Aczued interest payable 11,235 61,387 72,622
Due to other governments 45,284 - 45,284
Unearned revenue ‘ : 2,007,271 148,929 2,156,200
Nonarrent Iiab‘iliciyes: ' ‘
Due within one year 361,000 523,988 884,988
Duein more than one year 1,131,683 4,084,938 5,216,621
Total liabilities 6,609,530 5,900,603 12,510,133
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow 242,584 - 242,584
NET POSITION :
Net investment in capital assets 56,147,092 64,549,358 120,696,450
Restricted Investments by Third Party Agreement 136,993 316,611 453,604
Unrestdcted 19,371,388 12,442,309 31,813,697
Total net position ) 75,655,473 $ 77,308,278 152,963,751

The notes to the finandal staternents are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Program Reveaues

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Serviaes Contrdbutions Contributions Adtivities Adivities Total
Primary government:
Governm ental activities:

, General goveenment S 4,194,237 $ 1,169,400 $ - S - (3,024,837) § B $ (3,024,837)
Community Services 20,345,198 17,748,644 17,000 267 (2,579,287) . (2,579,287)
Beach 2,142,259 1,492,687 - - (649,572) - (649,572)
Fleet, Engincering, Bldgs. & Work Comp 3,306,507 3,304,862 - - (1,645) = (1,645

Total governmental-type activitics 29,988,201 23,715,593 17,000 267 (6,255,341) & (6,255.341)
Business-type activities:
Utilities 10,554,488 12,785,742 1,440 - - 2,232,694 2,232,694
Total primary government $ 40542680 $ 36501335 S 18440  § 267 (6,255,341) 2,232,694 (4,022,647)
General revenues:
Property taxes 1,622,486 - 1,622,486
Combined taxes 1,690,222 " 1,690,222
Fadlity Fees 6,756,410 - 6,756,410
Unrestricted investment earnings 563,685 282,484 846,169
Gain on sale of apital assets 39,168 15,066 54,234
Insurana: Proeds 50,300 = 50,300
Miscellaneous revenucs 114,777 - 114,777
Transfers Tn (Out) (120,000) 120,000 <
Total general revenues and transfers 10,717,048 417,550 11,134,598
Changes in net position 4,461,707 2,650,244 7,111,951
Net position - beginning, as previously reported 71,073,766 74,778,034 145,851,800
Prior period adjustment 120,000 (120,000) g
Net position - beginning, as adjusted 71,193,766 74,658,034 145,851,800
Net position - ending 75,655,473 $ 77,308,278 $ 152,963,751
The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2019
COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH TOTAL
SERVICES SPECIAL SERVICES CAPITAL SERVICES DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL _SPECIAL REV. REVENUE CAP.PROJECTS ‘PROJECTS DEBT SERV. SERVICE FUNDS
ASSETS :
Cash, cish equivalents and investments S 4619435 § 14751053 S 1045888 S 37267  § 109,433 § y $ - $ 21,798,485
Aanunts reacivable, net 4,754 13,026 N - - - 17,780
Interest recivable on investments 16,732 17,704 2370 - - - - 36,806
Taxcs and Fees from Washoe County 7,147 217,153 4,614 38914
Grants reacivable - 1,417 . - 369,662 - - - 371,079
Due from other govemments 336,693 144,868 24,247 - “ - - 505,808
Invceritories - 573,951 - - - - - 573,951
Prepaid items 196,742 362,360 34,532 - - - - 593,634
Restricted deposits 242,584 135,993 1,000 - - - 379577
Total assets $ 5424087 $ 16027525 § 2012651 $ 742,338 § 109433 § .. 5 B $ 24316034
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Aanunts payable $ 305,100 $ 507,537 1 42,169 $ 372,676 $ 109,433 $ - $ - $ 1,336,915
Acrued pessonacl oosts 1,078,016 298,132 28,253 - - - 1,404,401
Duc to othergovemments 32,756 12,528 - - - 45,284
Uneamed revenue 45 1,887,903 119,323 - < - 2007271
Total liabilitics 1,415,917 2,693,572 202,273 372,616 109,433 - - 4,793,871
Deferred Inflow of Resouras
Defeiicd Inflow 242,584 - . - 369,662 - - - 612,246
Fund balance :
Non-spendable 196,742 936,31 1 34,532 - - - - 1,167,585
Restdaed Deposits by Third Pacty Agreement - 135,993 1,000 - - - - 136,993
Assigned - 12,261,649 1,774,846 - - - - 14,036,495
Unassigned - 3,568,844 . - - - - - - 3,568,844
Total fund balana 3,765,586 13,333,953 1,810,378 . - - - - _18909,917
Total habilities and fund balana: b 5,4245087 $ 16,027,525 S 2012,651 $ 742,338 $ 109,433 S . - $ -~ $ 24,316,034
The notes to the finandal statements are an inicg,nd part of this statement.
N
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF BALANCE SHEET FOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2019 '

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position that are not induded
in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet (because):

Total Fund Balane for Govemmental Activities § 18909017

General Fund: ’
Capital Assets, net of acumulated depredation, and are not finandal
resources, and therefore ate not reported in that fund o 3,220,082 -

Community Services Fund:
Capital Assets, net of acumulated depredation, and are not finandal
resources, and therefore are not reported in that fund 49,497 425

Acaued interest, not to be liquidated from currently
available resources (11,054

Capital Grants in Deferred Inflows due to collection beyond 60 days 369,662

Long-term liabilities; induding bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the aarrent-period, and therefore are not reported in that fund (1,473,882)

Unamortized Bond Disqiunt, for the temaining bond liability, and
therefore not reported in the fund o 5,232

Beach Fund:
Capital Assets, net of acumulated depredation, and are not finandal
resources, and therefore are not reported in that fund 4,845,360

Acrued interest, not to be liquidated from carrently
available resources (181)

Long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period, and therefore are not reported in that fund (24,118)

Unamortized Bond Discount, for the remaining bond liability, and
therefore not reported in the fund 85

Internal Services Fund:
Total Net Position of this fund, as it is reported as a govemmental
activity since a majority of the services are consumed by the

governmental -type activities 316,945
Net Position of Governmental Activities ) 75’655’;473

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT B
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

COMMUNITY * BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH COMMUNITY BEACH

TOTAL
SERVICES SPECIAL SERVICES CAPITAL SERVICES  DEBT GOVERNMENTAL
GENERAL SPECIAL REV. REVENUE CAP. PROJECTS ‘PROJECTS DEBT SERV, SERVICE FUNDS
REVENUES ) :
Ad valorem taxes s 1,615,540 $ . $ - $ . $ . $ - % . 1,615,540
Persona Peopenty Tax 1780 - - - - - - 17,871
Intergavemmental .
Consolidated taxes 1,440,607 - - “ - - . 1,410,607
Locd Govemmont Tax Aa 249,95 - . - - - - 249,615
Services - 14,570 - . - . . 1570
Chirges fore Servites - 17,618 013 1,492,687 - . - - 19,140,701
fatedund Seeviees - 86,060 - - - - . 86,060
Fadlity Fees - Operatons - 2,984,399 TT92R B - - - 3,359,327
Fadlity Fees - Capital Exponditure - 2508528 198558 - - - - 2,707,086 .
Foality Fees - Debir Serviee - 329848 1,635 - - - - 330,483
Qpenating Grantx B 17000 - - - B - 17,000
Capita Grantx - . - ILO5R . - . 33,958
[nvestment fngyme - 327815 199322 36,188 - - - - 563335
Misalfancous 2002 112777 - o . - . . 14T
Totd revenues 3653450 23900518 2503996 31938 - - - 30,089,922
EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Manager 418829 . T - - - - 418,829
Trustees 175 882 . - - - - 175,882
Aonunting 884,240 - - - ~ - - 8,210
Information Servies 828,368 - - - - - . 829368
Risk Mamsgpment - 137,019 . - - - . - 137019
Hummn Retounes 682,394 - - - - - - 682,394
Henlth & Wellness 28816 - - - - - - - 28,816
G ity & Employee Rel 194,398 - - - - . - 194,398
Administetion 583,203 - . - - N - 583,203
Centeal $ervias Cost Allocition Iname (L169,400) - - . . - - (1,369,100
Capital Owilay 121,357 - - . . . 121,257
RECREATION
Champinnship Golf - 485423 - - - - - 428540
Mounrain Golf - 960,442 - - - B - 960,432
Fadlities - - 182527 - - - - - 182,527
i . 7,830948 . . . . . 7830948
C ity Py mgang R Conser - 2206972 - - - - - 2206972
Parks - 815,439 - - - ~ - 815439
Teanis < - 233544 - - - . 253,544
Reauation Admimsimtiol . . 303,285 - - - - - 363,285
Bexdh . . - 1906516 . 1,906,516
Capira Quitag . - . 6,043,500 284,298 . . 6,327,798
Debir Service
Prindpa - - - - - 34365 5,635 350,000
Iaterest - - - : . z 31036 606 37642
Tota expendituns 2885006 17,288,580 1,906,556 643,500 284.298 381401 52341 28,793542
Exass novenve, fexpentditures) 768 A44 6611938 597,480 [(FU 2] {281,298 {3R101) {6 241) 1,294,380
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES:
Sale of Capitad and Intongible Axsers - 34,567 - 5592 < - - 40,159
Insurune Poaeds - 50,300 - - - - - 50,300
Transfers In (Out) - Faclity Fees for Capital Expenditure - (2,508,528) (198,558 2508528 198,558 - - -
Transfers In (Ow) - Faahity Fees for Delyt Servioe - (329848) {1,635) . . 329,848 1,635 .
Transfers In (Owt) - Feom (fs) Other Sowras 32564) (521945) 35000 116915 - - - 25435
Net choanpe in fondd balanae 442,800 3333484 A32287 23XTATT {85,740). JSI 553) 4,006 1,73
Fund halanee, fuly 1, 2s previously reported 2522786 10,645,469 1,413,001 2321477 85,H0 51,533 4,606 17,050,722
Prine perind adjustment : 800,000 1645,000) (350000 - - - . 120000
Fund hialne, July 1,15 sdjustod 3322786 10,000,169 1378091 2371471 8574 51,553 4606 17470722
Fund balane, June 30 $ },765,_526_ $ 1333395 3 1810378 $ - § -8 -~ $ - $ 18200017
The nntes 10 the finantal statcenents e xa integra) past of this statoment
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

FUND BALANCES FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE GOVERNMENT WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Amounts reported for govemnmental activities are different because the Governmental Funds acount for
a flow of resources while the Statement of Activities is on a full accraal basis of acounting:

Total Net Change in Fund Balance for Governmental Funds $ 1,739,195 -
General Fund:
Taxes for perods through June 30, 2019 that were ‘
received after August 30, 2019. g (10,925)
Capital Assets acquited duzdng the year and capitalized 121,257
Unallocated depredation expense for the fiscal year . (261,088)

Community Services Fund:
Fadility Fees for periods through June 30, 2019 that were

received afrer August 30,2019. (35,697)
Capital Assets acquired during the year and capitalized 6,043,500
Depredation expense for the fiscal year (3,020,525)
Net book value of assets sold (991)
Pump Track Capital Grants mllected for prior year ' (31,691)
Prindpal paid on long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable 344,365
Interest accrued versus paid . 2,583
Amortize Bond Discount for fiscal year (1,640)
Miscellaneous revenue 2

Beach Fund:
Fadility Fees for periods through June 30, 2019 that were
received after August 30, 2019, . (5,789
Capital Assets acquired during the year and cpitalized 284,298
Depredation expense for the fiscal year (235,152)
Prindpal paid on long-term liabilities, induding bonds payable 5,635
Interest accrued versus paid 42
Amortize Bond Discount for fiscal year 4 ‘ (27)

Intemal Services Fund:
Total Change in Net Position of this fund, as it is zeported as a govemmental

activity since a majority of the services are consumed by the

governmental -type activities (475.641)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities ' $ 4,461,707

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT

URES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Personal Propesty Tax
Intergovemmental:
Consolidated Tax
Loal Govemnment Ta:g Ac
Investment éamings
Msmﬂaﬁég{us . .
Total revenues ’

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Manager
Trustees
Aaounting
Information Services
Risk Maﬁage,m ent
Human Resousces
Health and Wellness
Communiations
Administeation
Central Services Cost Alloation Income
Capital Outlay
. Total expenditures

Excess (defidency) of sevenues over expeanditures-

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingengy
Operating Transfers (Our)
Total other finandng sousces (uses)

Net changes in fund balane
Fugnd balance, July 1, as pxviously reported
Pdor Pedod Adjustment

Fund balance, July 1, as adjusted

Fund balance, June 30

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.

Budgeted Amounts -
Original Final Actual Variance

$ 1,611,738 - § 1,611,738 1,615,540 $ 3,802
12,000 12,000 17,871 5,871
1,423,595 1,423,595 1,440,607 17,012
238,000 238,000 249,615 11,615
138,600 138,600 327,815 189,215
3,600 3,600 2,002 (1,598)
3,427,533 3,427,533 3,653,450 225917
418,809 418,809 418,829 (20)
205,930 205,930 175,882 30,048
903,274 903,274 884,240 19,034
1,012,522 1,012,522 828,368 184,154
146,884 146,884 137,019 9,865
. 729,083 729,083 682,394 46,689
41,090 41,090 28,816 12,274
191,579 191,579 . 194,398 (2,819)
454,118 454,118 583,203 (129,085)
(1,169,400) (1,169,400) (1,169,400) -
435,950 435,950 121,257 314,693
3,369,839 3,369,839 2,885,006 484,833
57,694 57,694 768,444 710,750
(125,000) (125,000) .- 125,000
C - ~ - (325,644) (325,644)
{125,000 (125,000) (325,644) (200,644)
(67,306) (67,306) 442,800 510,106
2,432,349 2,432,349 2,522,786 90,437
- - 800,000 800,000
2,432,349 2,432,349 3,322,786 890,437
S 2,365,043 $ 2,365,043 3,765,586 $ 1,400,543
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~ INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES :
Chatges for Servias
Championship Golf $ 3,992,444 $ 3,992,444 $ 3,902,689 $ (89,755)
Mountain Golf 690,926 690,926 740,968 50,042
Fadlifies 406,900 406,900 392,246 (14,654)
Ski . 8,915,000 11,715,000 11,778,871 63,871
Community Programming and Reaeation Center 1,305,414 1,305,41 4 1,364,044 58,630
Parks i 67,740 67,740 46,580 (21,160)
Tennis 159,700 159,700 153,435 (6,265)
Recteation Administration (510,600) (510,600) (730,819) (220,219)
~ Subtotal Cha:ges for Services 15,027,524 17,827,524 17,648,014 (179,510)
Fadlity Fees - Operations 1,765,150 1,765,150 2,984,399 1,219,249
Fadlity Fees - Capital Projects 3,612,400 3,612,400 2,508,528 (1,103,872
Fadlity Fees - Debr service 410,500 410,500 329,848 (80,652)
Intergovernmental Services 21,000 21,000 -14,570 (6:430)
Interfund Services 77,920 77,920 86,060 8,140
Operating Grants 17,000 17,000 - 17,000 -
Irchstm entincome 30,000 30;000 199,322 169,322
Miscellaneous - other 106,480 106,480 112,777 6,207
Total revenues 21,067,974 23,867,974" - 23,900,518 32544
EXPENDITURES
COMMUNITY SERVICES RECREATION:
Championship Golf 4,171,759 4,171,759 4,285,423 (113,664)
Mountain Golf 1,019,953 1,019,953 960,442 59,511
Fadlities 547,202 547,202 482,527 64,675
Ski 7,353,714 7,783,714 7,830,948 (47,234)
Community Progrmmming and Recreation Center 2,350,783 2,350,783 2,296,972 53,811
Parks 848,133 848,133 815,439 32,694
Tennis 263,670 263,670 253,544 10,126
Regeation Administration 375,000 375,000 363,285 11,715
Total expenditures 16,930,214 17,360,214 17,288,580 71,634
Excess (defidency) of revenues over expendituses 4,137,760 6,507,760 6,611,938 104,178
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Openting Transfers In 241,875 241,875 645,000 403,125
Sale of assets - - 34,567 34,567
Insurance Procceds - - 50,300 30,300
Contingengy (500,000) (500,000) - 500,000
Operating Transfers (Out) - Capital Projeats (6,070,675) (6,070,675) (3,678,473) 2,392,202
Openting Transfers (Out) - Debt Servia: (410,500) (410,500) (329,848) 80,652
Total other finandng sources (uses) (6,739,300 (6,739,300 (3,278,454) 3,460,846
Net .dianges in fund balance (2,601,540) (231,540 3,333,484 3,565,024
Fund Balance, July 1, a5 previously reported 11,515,351 10,645,469 10,645,469 -
Proc Period Adjustment - - (645,000) (645,000)
Fund Balanc, July 1, as adjusted 11,515,351 10,645,469 10,000,469 (645,000)
Fund balance, June 30 S 8913811 S 10413920 S 133339053 S 2920,024

The notes to the finandal statern ents are an integmal part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

BEACH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
Charges for Secvices
Beach
Fadlity Fees - Operations
Fadility Fess - Capital Projects
Fadility Fees - Debt service
Investment eamings
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
BEACH RECREATION:
Beach

Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingency
Operatign Transfers In
Openting Transfers (Out) - Capital Projects
Operating Transfers (Out) - Debt Service
Total other finandng sources (uses)

Net changes in fund balance
Fund Balance, July 1, as previously reported
Pror Perdod Adjustment

Fund Balane, July 1, as adjusted

Fund balance, June 30

The notes o the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.

_Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
$ » 1,338,500 $ 1,338,500 $ 1,492,687 ) 154,187
659,260 659,260 7743928 115,668
302,484 302,484 198,558 (103,926)
7,756 7,756 1,635 (6,121)
13,500 13,500 36,188 22,688
2,321,500 2,321,500 2,503,996 182,496
1,922,976 1,922,976 1,906,516 16,460
398,524 398,524 597,480 198,956
(50,000) (50,000) . 50,000
13,125 - 13,125 35,000 21,875
(306,328) (306,328) (198,558) 107,770
(7,756) (7,756) (1,635) 6,121
(350,959) (350,959) (165,193) 185,766
<.

47,565 47,565 . 432,287 . 384,722
1,444,497 1,444,497 1,413,001 (31,406)

; - - (35,000) (35,000)
1,444,497 1,444,497 1,378,091 (66,406)

S 1492062 S 1492062 S 1810378 S 318,316
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019
Business - type
Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility Internal
Fund Services Fund
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and ash equivalents S 4,366,202 $ 435,837
Short term investments 2,248,044 -
Aaounts reccivable 1,204,623 -
Interest reccivable 32,109 -
Grants recsivable 12,881 -
Inventorics 154,393 102,034
Prepaid expenses » 188,880 13,907
Total aaerent assets 8,207,132 551,778
Nonairrent assets:
Investments - long-teem 5,526,854 -
Contracual deposits 100 -
Restaaed deposit for debt senvia: reserve 224,761 -
Restricted for TRPA Deposits 91,750 -
5,843,465 -
Capital Assets
Land 6,715,544 -
Construdtion in progress 1,418,052 -
Buildings and stmaures 15,503,863 -
Improvements and Infrastruaure 113,807,857 -
Equipment and vechides 3,696,213 253,869
Total cpital assets 141,141,529 253,869
Less: acumulated depreaation (71,983,245) (176,961)
Total aapital assets (net) 69,158,284 76,908
Total nonairrent assets 75,001,749 76,908
Total assets 83,208,881 628,686
LIABILITIES
Current liabilites:
Aaomunts payable 736,835 58,368
Adoxued personnel costs 344,526 253,373
Acxued interest payable 61,387 -
Uneamed revenue 148,929 -
Current matugties of long-team debt 523,988 -
Total aasrent kiabilities 1,815,665 311,741
Non-airrent liabilities:
Non-atment long teom debt 4,084,938 -
Total liabilities 5,900,603 311,741
NET POSITION
Net investment in apital assets 64,549,358 76,908
Restriaed Deposits by Third Party Agreement 316,611 -
Unrestdaed 12,442,309 240,037
Total net position S 77308278 S 316,945

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.




INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Business - type

Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility Internal
Fund Services Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and fees $ 12,673,889 $ -
Operating grants 1,440 -
Interfund services 111,853 3,304,862
Total operating revenues 12,787,182 3,304,862
OPERATING EXPENSES
Wages and benefits 3,951,364 1,899,914
Cost of goods sold 4,624 -
Services and supplies 1,796,401 871,784
Defensible Space 100,000 -
Central Services Cost 308,600 -
Insurance 172,276 511,410
Utilities 862,768 10,838
Professional fees 78,295 -
Depredation . 3,153,809 12,561
Total operating expenses 10,428,137 3,306,507
Operating income 2,359,045 (1,645)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ¢
Investment earnings 282,484 360
Gain (loss) on sales of assets 15,066 -
Interest on bond debt (126,351) -
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 171,199 360
Income before transfers and contdbutions 2,530,244 (1,285)
Transfer In (Our) 120,000 (474,356)
Changes in net position 2,650,244 (475,641)
Total net position, July 1, as previously reported 74,778,034 792,586
Pdor pedod adjustment (120,000) -
Total net position, July 1, as adjusted 74,658,034 792,586
Total net position, June 30 S 77,308,278 ) 316,945

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2019

£

Business - type

Activities Governmental
Enterprise Activities
Utility . Internal
Fund Services Fund
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ,
Receeipts from customers and users § 12,264,273 $ -
Receipts from interfund services provided : 111,853 3,304,862
Receipts from operating grants - -1,440 -
Payments to suppliers - : T (3,463,230) (1,526,271)
Payments to employees (3.930,319) (1,790,450
Net aash provided (used) by
operating activities 4,984,017 (11,859)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCINGACTIVITIES
Transfer (to) from other funds - (474.356)
Net ash provided (used) by non-apital
finandng activities. . - (474,356)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITALAND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Adquisition of apital assets (2,816,092) -
Proceeds (costs) from sale of assets 15,066 - ° -
Payments on apital debt (509,678) -
Capital contdbutions 114,787 -
Interest expense ) (133,456) ) -
Net aash provided (used) by apital
and related finandng activities (3,329,373) -
CASH FLOWS FROM '
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Restricted investments released (inaeased) (7,267) 103,880
Investments purchased - (4,500,000) -
Long-term investments matured 255,939 -
Investment earnings 198,470 . 360
Net ash provided (used) by
investing activities ' (4,052,858) 104,240
Net change in ash
and ash equivalents (2,398,214) (381,975)
Cash and ash equivalents, July 1 6,764,416 817,812
Cash, ash equivalents and investments, june 30 $ 4,366,202 $ 435,837
(Continued)
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Business - type

Activities’ Governmental
Enterptise Activities
Utility Internal
Fund Services Fund
Reconciliation of operating income (Joss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating
activities: ’
Operating income (loss) $ 2,359,045 8§ (1.645)
Non-cash adjustments - ~
Depredation 3,153,809 12,561
Increaseé (deaease) in cash from changes in:
Aamounts réceivable (15,027) -
Inventory ' © 1,589 (12,636
Prepaid expenses (17,417) (4,376)
Aaounts payable (124,438) (115,227)
Aczued personnel wsts o « 21,045 109,464
Uneamned revenue and aistomer deposits (394,589) -
Total adjustments 2,624,972 (10,214)
Net ash provided (used) by operating activities $ 4,984,017 $ (11,859)

The notes to the finandal statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - INDEX
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NOTESTO FINANCIALSTA’I‘EMENTS JUNE 30, 2019
1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Incline Village General Improvement District (the “District”) operates under provisions of the
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS), Chapter 318, Under the law, this General Improvement District
has been granted authority by Washoe County to provide watez, sewer and solid waste services, and
recreational facilities and programs for the benefit of individuals owning property or residing within
its geographical boundaries. The unincorporated rural areas of Incline Village and Crystal Bay,
Washoe County, Nevada are within these boundaries.

The District is governed by a board of five publicly elected trustees. The District is not included in
any other governmental reporting entity. The District is a legally separate government and it is
fiscally independent of any other governmental entity. ‘The District is not financially accountable
for any other entity.

B. Basic Financial Statements - Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide finandial statements (the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the District.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the governmental activities column is
presented on a consolidated basis, and is feflected on a full accrizal, economic resource basis that
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The
District’s net position is reported in three parts —net investment'in capital assets, restricted; and
unrestricted, ' '

The government-wide Statemnent of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses
of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include charges to customers who receive a
direct benefit from goods or services. Grants and contributions are restricted to meeting the »
operational or capital requirements of a function. General revenues reflect items that are not
included as either program revenue or grants and contributions, The Statement of Activities
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues and grants,

C. Basic Financial Statements - Fund financial statements

The financial transactions of the District are reported in individual purpose based fund financial
statements. Each fund is a¢counted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comptise its assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows, fund equity, revenues and '
expenditures /expenses. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
proprietary funds. The District has no fiduciary funds, Major funds for each fund type are
presented as' separate columns in the fund financial statements.

D. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting —~ Fund financial statements

The measurement focus describes the types of transactions and events that are reported in a fund’s
operating statement. Basis of accounting refers to the timing of revenues and how
expenditures/expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements.
Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the measurement

focus applied.
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Governmental fund financial staternents are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
as they are both measurable and available.  Revenues are considered available when they are
-collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the close of the fiscal period. Expendnures are generally recorded when the liability is
incurred as under the accrual basis of accounting,

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.

: Operating‘ré\renues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. Operating
expenses include the cost of sales and services, administration and depreciation on capital assets.
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as rion-operating revenues and
expenses, Expend1ture~drxven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures
have been incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met. The Proprietary funds
utilize the accrual basis of accounting.

The District’s internal services are presented in the proprietary fund’s financial statements. The
principal users of Internal Services (Fleet, Engineering and Buildings) are the District’s utility and
recreation program fund activities. Another internal service provides Workmen’s Compensation
benefits to all funds. Each activity pays premiums based on its payroll to provide resources for the
coverage. The actual benefit is provided by purchasing a fully insured program from the Nevada
Public Compensation Trust. All Internal Services are considered a governmental type acu\rlty for
the Government-wide financial statements. The majority of utilization of internal services is by the
Utility Fund, Community Services and the Beach funds. The effect of inter-fund activity has not
been eliminated from the Government-wide financial statements.

The District uses the following funds (all considered Major):

Governmental Funds -

General Fund - is the general operating fund of the Districr. It is used to account for all financial
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund’s primary
function is to provide general administration for all other functions.

Commaunity Services — providing recreation to approximately 8,200 parcel owners, their guests
and visitors. .

- Special Revenue Fund —~ operation of golf, event facilities, downhill skiing, recreation and
fitness programs, parks and tennis

- Capital Projects Fund — capital projects related to recreation functions

- Debt Service Fund — debt service related to recreation functions

Beach — providing beach, picnic areas, boat launching and swimming pool programs to
approximately 7,700 parcel owners and their guests.

- Special Revenue Fund ~ operations of beach functons
- Capital Projects Fund — capital projects related to beach functions

- Debt Service Fund — debt service related Vtort}each functions
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Proprietary Funds -

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds -are used to account for operations of the District’s
Utility Departments Utility Fund — providing water, sewer, solid waste and recycling services to
approximately 4,100 customers.

Internal Service Funds ~ The Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of goods or
services provided by one department to other departments of the District. The District provides
Fleet, Engineering, and Buildings Maintenance which includes repair and maintenance of the
District’s vehicles and equipment, engineering services, and buildings maintenance. The District
has Worker’s Compensation that provides a combination of resources for prior claims and
purchases current coverage for benefits. The Fleet, Engineering and Buildings Maintenance
Departments also collectively provide planning, inspection, construction and maintenance for the
District’s structures and equipment. The Worker’s: Compensation Department prowdes District—
wide worker’s current period compensation coverage of benefits through a government risk pool.

. Compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and Nevada AdmmxstratweCode

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Chapter 354 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes, which includes the following major procedures to estabhsh the budgetary
data reflected in these financial statements.

1. On or before April 15, 2018, the Boatd of Trustees filed a tentative budget with the Nevada
Department of Taxation. Public hearings on the tentative budget were held after the third Monday
in May. On May 23,2018, at a public hearing, the Board adopted 2 final budget. On or before June
1, 2018 the final budget was filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation.

2. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with Genera]ly Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) for all funds. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records is employed to enhance
management control during the year for all funds requiring budgets. Budgets are adopted for all
governmental and proprietary fund types. The governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a
modified accrual basis and the proprietary funds types budgets are adopted on an accrual basis.
The District can amend or augment the budget after following State Statutes and, if necessary,
public hearing procedures, The District did augment its budget for the 2018-19 fiscal year. -

3. The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. Appropriations are adopted at the
function level Management has no amendment authority without the District’s Board approval
Genefally the expenses in the proprietary funds also may not exceed appropriations. Managcment
1s free to change the operating budgets of the proprietary funds but in practice rarely does so.
Statutes do not require that enterprise fund capital outlay, debt service payments and other non-
operating cash transactions, normally reflected in the balance sheet of the proprietary funds, to be

limited by the budget.

4. The District also presents select cash flow information in order to reflect all resources being used
to provide for capital outlay, debt service payments and other transactions particulatly in
proprietary funds.” This supplemental disclosure allows the District to identify the extent of current
year items that are being paid from previously funded resources. The presentation includes items
according to character and object. It also provides the Nevada Department of Taxation with
requested information that compates to amounts reported on their budget forms,

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration.
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F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash-on-hand, demand deposits and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition
that are held for routine expenditures.

District Funds share bank accounts for operations, payroll and reimbursements. Activity between
funds occurs in the regular activities of the District. The General Fund issues accounts payable and
payroll and related benefits for all funds. To the extent payment has not occurred, but the cost was
realized by the benefitted fund, internal balances for Due from or to Other Funds are established.
These ate cleared monthly through pooled cash. The combined pooled balances are monitored to
assure no fund makes temporary loans to another within the context of Nevada Rewsed Statute

354.6118.

Short term investments reflect items held with maturities within one year. These are predominantly
certficates of deposit and agency fssues. These provide funds for capital projects.

Long-term investments reflect items held with maturities beyond one year. These include
certificates of deposit and instruments issued by the Federal Government or its agencies.

Nevada Revised Stémtes'authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Government or
U.S. Treasury, provxdmg maturities are 10 years or less from the date of purchase; the local
government investment pool (LGIP) (operated by the Nevada State Treasurer); negotiable
certificates of depos1t issued by.commercial banks or'insured savings and loans; shost-term
riegotiable notes or bonds issued by local governments; and bankers' acceptances eligible by law for
rediscount with the Federal Resetve Banks not to exceed 180 days.

—

Funds on deposit with LGIP are considered cash and cash equivalents. ‘Even though the weighted
average maturity of the underlying investments in the LGIP are greater than 90 days, the District
can liquidate its deposits within a few days. The District has reported these deposits as cost plus
accrued interest which apprommates fair value.

The District’s Investments are stated at fair value as of the reporting date. These are categorized
using fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based in the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs: Level 3 are significant unobservable inputs. '

The District has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019:
U. S. Agencies securities are valued at quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs)
Certificates of Deposits valued at quoted -matket prices (Level 1 inputs)

. Receivables

Property taxes are levied no later than July 10 of each year on property values assessed for the same
year. The taxes may be paid in four installments as follows: the fixst installment is due on or
before the third Monday in August, the second installment is due on or before the first Monday in
October, the third installment is due on or before the first Monday in January, and the fourth
installment is due on or before the first Monday in March. If payment of the taxes is not made
within ten days following the day the installments become due, penalties are assessed in accordance
with NRS 361.483. Once the installments become delinquent, interest is added at the rate of 10
percent per annum. Taxes levied become a perpetual lien against the property assessed until the tax
and any penalty charges and interest which may accrue thereon are paid. Washoe County assesses
the property tax, bills, collects, and distributes the property tax revenue.
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Accounts receivable reflects service charges to customers and resident for deposits o fees that are
earned, but not collected. An allowance for doubtful accounts is considered and at present, the
allowance totals $2,283. The District may file a tax lien for uncollected utility service fees.

The District has been granted resources to finance the construction of vadous utity
infrastructures, restoration of a creek zone and to upgrade a ballfield. These funds are earned
when requisite construction costs are incurred. The District has recognized funds earned but not
collected by a Grants Receivable. The District also has an operating grant from Washoe County,
received monthly in arrears. The uncollected balance of this grant is carried in Due from Other

Governments.

The District receives certain tax revenues in the General Fund which are collected by the State of
Nevada. These settlements artive within 60 days of the month close when they are generated. The
amounts are listed as Due from Other Governments.

y

Inventory and Prepaid Items

There are no inventories in the General Fund. Inventories of items for resale for Community
Services Special Revenue and Proprietary Funds are stated at the lower of cost {first-in, first-out) ot
market, Prepaid Expenses are recognized under the consumption method as items are used.

. 7 L i .
Certain payments are made to vendors for .costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. They are
recognized under the consumption method when used. :

I. Restricted Assets

The District has restsicted several deposits for the benefit of other agencies in connection with
performance under a retail operation, construction, debt service and providing workers
compensation benefits. These agencies establish the restriction by regulation or agreement.

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land, buildings, machinery and equipment, or water rights which are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. If purchased or constructed, all capital assets are recorded at historical cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at acquisition value as of the date of donation, The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materiglly extend assets lives
are not capitalized. Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets (all categories except land and-
construction in progress) is charged as an expense against each fund’s operation. The District’s
policy is to capitalize assets with a normal useful life of three or more years. The District holds
4,272 Acre Feet of Water Rights. This represents about 1,405,000,000 gallons. The District’s
historical records cannot separately identify the cost of water rights from land.

Activities of the General Fund include District administration, accounting and finance, information
systems and technology, human resources, risk management, the General Manager’s office,
communications and the Board of Trustees. The land, buildings, furniture and eqmpment
including technology assets, represent items used in common by all of the activities of the General
Fund at the District’s administrative office. The computers and technology represent equipment of
the Iriformation Systems & Technology (IST) department that services the needs of the entire
District. These assets are presented as a part of government-wide net assets.

Activities of the Community Services Special Revenue Fund include two 18-hole golf courses, a
latge and small meeting facility, a ski resort, a recreation center, parks, tennis center, a skateboard
park and green spaces. Venue improvements includes the cost of developing program ready

locations.
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Utility capital assets include traditional distribution lines, tanks, pumps and treatment. However
since the District is located in the Lake Tahoe Basin, the number of pumps, tanks and export lines
is increased due to the requirements to manage in 2 mountainous and environmentally sensitive

area.
The District has a number of Construction in Progress items since the fiscal year falls in the middle

of the active acquisitions season. Itis the nature of major projects to span multiple fiscal periods.
The District accurnulates costs through a series of pre-design, design and acquisition stages.

Interest is capitalized for assets used in business-type activities funded by debt.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives of the various assets using the
straight-line method. Estimated lives and capltahzatxon thresholds of major classes of deprecxable

assets are as follows:

Asset Category ' Degredab]e Life Capitalization
Threshold

Buildings and Structures ' 30 - 50 years $10,000
Improvements and Infrastructure « 10 - 50 years $10,000
Equipment and Velﬁcies . 3 - 20 years : $ 5,000

With its location within the Lake Tahoe Basin, Defensible Space is an important function for the
District. This is generally accomplished through contracts with the North Lake Tahoe Fire
Protection District which serves essentially the same geographic area as the District.- Defensible
Space expenditures range from clearing the understory to major tree removal and fuels reduction.
The goal of the program is to create a “halo” around the community restricting the movement of
wildfire in or out of the community.” The substance of those efforts removes vegetation and other
fuels as they accumulate. The degree of work in any given area rotates over time based on =~ =
conditions as assessed by'the Fire District. Much of the funding for the effort comes from other
governments on a Federal, State and local level. The IVGID contribution is focused on treatment
of District owned parcels. The District budgets to provide resources for its share of contracted
expenditures. The work provides an ongoing benefit, but the District expenses all costs as

incurred.
Amortization of Bond Discounts and Premiums

The discounts on bonds sold are being amortized to expense over'the term of the bonds. Bonds
payable are reported net of related discounts.

Compensated Absences and Accrued Personnel Costs

Full-time employees are provided vacation benefits that specifically relate to tenure with the
District. After six months of service, employees are entitled to their vested vacation leave upon
termination. The liability for vacation benefits is recognized with an expenditure or charge to the
appropriate fund and activity as earsied.

The District pays payroll every two weeks. Any District payroll earned as of month end is accrued

based on the number of days attributed to that month to the total 14 days paid with the next
scheduled payroll. Liabilities for fringe benefits and other costs, such as taxes, are also accrued on
the same method. ‘

The District has adopted a plan under which certain retirees, who have met specific service
requirements, can roll unused sick leave pay to cover medical expenses after retitement. Otherwise

sick leave is not vested.
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Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that will apply to a future period(s) and will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/ expendituxe) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
of deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, repiesents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be
recognized as'an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Unearned Revenue and Refundable Deposits

The District’s Utility Fund reads meters in 3 cycles over the course of a month. Billing occurs once
amonth, Billings for the next cycle are also reconciléd with actual usage.- Funds received for the
Tahoe Water Suppliers Association are recognized only to the extent expended and may roll over
to the next year.

The District’s Community Services Fund recognizes unearned revenue to the extent it has issued
user passes, gift or payment cards that can be apphed to future purchases. There also are advance
deposits made to reserve dates for facility rentals or program registrations.  User passes expire with
each season.

Long-Term Debt

In the governmient-wide financial statement, and proprietary fund financial statements, long term
debts are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities or
proprietary fund statements net of related discounts. Bond discounts are amortized using the
straight-line method and are amortized over the term of the related debt.

Fund Baiance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds are reported in
classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primatily on how amounts can be spent. These
include “non-spendable’ which are not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventory oz
prepaid items, “restricted” by conditions of law, regulation grants or contract with external parties,
“committed” which arise from acts of the District’s Board, “assigned” which reflect an intent by
management of the District or “unassigned” which is the residual amount. The committed fund
balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined
by a formal action of the District’s highest level of decision-making authority. The Board of
Trustees is the highest level of decision-making authority for the District, which can act by their
resolution, prior to the end of the fiscal year, and thus commit fund balance. Once adopted, the
limitation imposed by the Board of Trustees remains in place until a similar resolution is taken to
remove or revise the limitation.

An assigned fund balance can be specified by the District’s General Manager.

The District’s Board of Trustees has adopted a policy and practice statement on the Appropriate
Level of Fund Balance.

The District first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities then unrestricted
resources, as they are needed when amounts are available for the same use. The District’s
Governmental fund types first utilizes committed resources as authorized, then assigned and then
unassigned when amounts are available for the same use.
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Q. Net Position

In the Propretary fund and the government-wide financial statements; net position is presented in
one of three classifications. Net investment in capital assets, restricted and the residual
uarestricted. The net investment in capital assets component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by outstanding balances on bonds that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. The restricted
component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities related to those assets.
The unrestricted component of net position is the net amount of assets and liabilities not included
in the determination of net investment of capital assets or the restricted component.

R. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent.assets and liabilities at the date of the ﬁnanciﬁl staternents and the're'portea amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results may differ from those

estimates.
S. Central Services Cost Allocation’

The District allocates the shared costs of Accounting and Human Resources based under a plan -
which considers wages, benefits, full time equivalents and certain services and supplies as a basis
for determining charges. The charges are based on budgeted expenses. The revenue generated by
the allocation is recorded as a separate line item from the expense category.

T. Punch Cards Utilized

Under District Ordinance 7, parcel owners may use a portion of the value of their recreation passes
to pay down the difference between a regular rate and the resident rate for certain types of
recreational fees. These forms of payment are presented as contra revenue in the Fund statements.
Utilization is recognized based on the relationship of privileges used to total facility fee paid by the
parcel. Under the 2018-2019 fee structure, this is 85% to Community Services Special Revenue
Fund and 15% to the Beach Special Revenue Fund.

U. Implementation of GASB Statement No. 88

As of July 1, 2018, the District adopted GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to
Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. The implementation of this standard is
to impzrove the information that is disclosed in the notes to government financial statements related
to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements. It also clarifies which labilities
governments should include when disclosing information related to debt. The additional
disclosures required by this standard ate included in Note 8.

, ' DETAILED NOTES ON ALL ACTIVITIES AND FUNDS
2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

At year-end, the carrying amount of the District’s checking deposits was $2,913,075 while the bank balance
was $2,850,508. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance Coverage
and the balance was covered by pledged collateral under an arrangement with the State of Nevada on behalf

of all local units of government.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents at June 30, 2019 consist of:
Operating Checking Accounts $2,198,036
Petty cash and change funds 72,255
Nevada Local Government Iavestment Pool
(average weighted maturity of 116 days)

General LGIP Account 8,146,1 52
Utility LGIP Account 3,014,539 ‘
US Government Money Market 1,150,862
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $14.581.844

A portion of the District’s investments are placed with Wells Fargo Bank as custodian in the US
Government Money Market, where fair value is determined by muluplymg the number of trading units
held, by the quoted market value on that date.

The Districtis a voluntary pa.mcxpant in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP),
which has regulatory oversight from the Board of Finance of the State of Nevada. The District’s investment
in the LGIP is equal to its original investment plus monthly allocation of intetest income, and realized and
unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of the pool shares,

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 355.170) set forth acceptable investments for Nevada local goveraments.
The District has adopted a formal i investment policy that meets those limits and maturities for its
investment choices. Essentially those investments are brokered certificates of dcposzt and government
agencies.

The District categotizes its fair value measurements for investments within the fair value luerarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hJerarchy is based on the valuation inputs used
to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices’in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs.

Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2019:

Level 1 - Level 2 Total
Certficates of Deposit $ 14,053,485 ¢ - $14,053,485
US Agencies 5,740,093 - 5,740,093
Interest Beating Amounts - Investments 19,793,578
LGIP at Net Asset Value (Cash Equivalent) 11,160,691
LGIP Restricted Deposits at Net Asset Value 447.429
( Total Fair Value Measurements $31.401.698
Investment Maturities by Investment Type as of June 30, 2019:
2020 2021 2022 Total
Certificates of Deposit $2,499,777 $7,779,883 $3,773,825 $14,053,485
US Agencies 5,490,135 - 249,958 5,740,093
Subtotal interest bearing 7,989,912 19,793,578
LGIP as a Cash Equivalent 11,160,691 11,160,691
LGIP - Restricted Deposits 447,429 447,429
All Investment Types $31.401.698
Investment Maturities by Activity as of June 30, 2019:
Governmental Business- Type
Activities Activities Total
Short term $ 5,741,868 $ 2,248,044 $ 7,989,912
Long term 6,276,812 5,526,854 11,803,666
LGIP as a Cash Equivalent 8,146,152 3,014,539 11,160,691
LGIP — Restricted Deposit ...130918 316,511 447 429
Total Investment Activity Type $20.295.750 $11.105.948 $31.401.698
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Interest Rate Risk - To the extent possible, the maturities of securities held within District portfolios shall
be closely matched to the District’s cash flow requirements for day to day operations, planned capital
projects and unknown future contingencies.

Credit Risk — The District’s Investment Policy is based on the Uniform Prudent Investors Act and Nevada
Revised Statutes 355.170 (NRS). The NRS authorizes the Disttict to invest in obligations of the U.S.
Government or U.S. Treasury, providing maturities are 10 years or less from the date of purchase; the local
government pooled investment fund; pegotiable certificates of deposit issued by commercial banks or

. insured savings and loans; short-term negotiable riotes or honds issued by local governments; and bankers'
acceptances eligible by law for rediscount with the Federal Reserve Banks not to exceed 180 days.
Diversification of the District’s investments is guided by the Uniform Prudent Investors Act.

Custodial Credit Risk — The District Investment Policy requires FDIC coverage or collateralization on
deposit-type securities. The District's cash accounts on deposit with financia] institutions were covered by
federal depository insurance and are collateralized by the Office of the State Treasurer/Nevada Collateml

Pool.

Concentration Credit Risk — The District Investment Policy calls for diversification without setting
maximum allocations. The District invests in Federal govemment-sponsored enterprises (GSE) for safety
and to meet statutory requirements. All of these agencies have been rated Aaa by Moody’s. The District’s
GSE holdings are approximately 29% of total investments. Individual CD’s are held with a number of
banks at or under the FDIC insured limited calculated by those institutions. LGIP is an unrated external
investment pool administered by the State Treasurer, with oversight by the State of Nevada Board of

‘Finance.

3. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The State of Nevada requires a deposxt for sales tax collection and electronic filing of 56 075, for a retail
location in non-District owned premises.

On September 13, 2017 the District’s Board of Trustees approved a settlement agreement relative to
ongoing litigation with a member of the public. Under this agreement, damages awarded by the Washoe
County District Court are held in a segregated account in the District’s name until the Nevada Supreme
Court Appeal is completed. The amount of the deposit was $241,646 and now stands at $242,584.

The assets of the EPA State Revolving Fund (SRF) Reserve may be used to service the Nevada SRF Sewer
Bond of 2002. These restricted assets are pledged to provide a measure of security for the Nevada State
Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund. The pledge is for $213,000, interest eatned is in the account at
the District’s discretion. The EPA SRF Resetve is in the LGIP Account totaling $224,761. The assets in
the TRPA (Tahoe Regional Planning Authority) Reserve may be used to satisfy performance obligations on

projects authorized by the TRPA. These usually cover several years for construction and inspection phases.

The total required deposits are §211,778, interest earned is in the account at the District’s discretion. The
TRPA Project Reserve is in the LGIP Account totaling $222,668. ’

Deposit with State of Nevada for Sales Tax $ 6,075

Building Deposit held by Parasol Tahoe Foundation - 100

Litigation Damage Deposit held by the District 242,584

LGIP Restricted Deposits (SRF & TRPA) - 447,429

Total Temporarily Restricted Deposits $ 696188
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4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital Asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 Balance Balance
July 1,2018 Increases Decreases June 30, 2019

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets, not bein g depreciated

Land - General Government ) 2669904 $ - 8 - 8 2,669,904
Land - Community Services 11,996,999 - N - 11,996,999
Land - Beach 2,304,850 - - 2,304,850
Subtotal Land 16971753 i . 16971753
Construction in Progress - General Government - 19,591 121,257 (122,848) ’ :‘18,000
Construction in Progress - Community Services 2,5A04,320 6,043,500 (6,769,629) ‘1,778,19?
Construction in Progress - Beach . 231,418 284,299 (154,803) 360912
Subtotal Cénsz;nction in Progress 2,755,329 6,449,056 (7,047,282) 2,157,103

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 19,727,082 : 6,449;656 (7,047,282) 19,128,856

Capital assets, being depreciated

‘Buildings and Steuctures - General Government : 846,899 66,563 - 913,462
Buildings and Structures - Community Scrvicc% 20,780,305 442324 (205,308) 30,017,321
Buildings and Strucrures - Beach 2,687,860 11700 - 2,699,560
Venue Improvements - Community Services 29,104,086 5,695,259 (121,165) 34,678,180
Vegue Improvements - Beach ; 2173838 84,508 . 2,258,346
Equipmentand Vehicles - General Government 1,591,187 56,285 - 1,647,472
Equipment and Vehicles - Community Services ' 11,613,546 632,046 (302,894) 11,942,698
Equipmentand Vehicles - Beach 510,786 58,597 - 569,383
Equipment and Vehicles - Internal Services 263912 - _ (10,043) 253,869
Total ;apiral assets, being depreciated 78,572,419 7,047,282 (639,410) 84,980,291‘

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Structures - General Government (791,701) (16,325) - (808,026)
Buildings and Structures - Community Services (13,829,130) (911,330) 205,309 (14,535,151)
Buildings and Structures - Beach (1,506,576) (94,103) - (1,600,679)
Venue Improvements - Community Services (18,921,568) (967 240) 121,165 (19,767,643)
Venue Improvements - Beach (1,352,314) (98,938) - (1,451,252)
Equipment and Vehicles - General Government (975,967) (244,763) - (1,220,730)
Equipment and Vehicles - Community Services (5,773,117) (1,141,955) 301,902 (6,613,170)
Equipment and Vehicles - Beach (253,649) (42,111) - {295,760)
Equipment and Vehicles - Internal Services (174,443) (12,561) 10,043 (176,961}
Total acc‘urﬁulated depreciaton (43,578,465) (3,529,326) 638,419 (46,469,372)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 34993954 3,517,056 (991) 38510919
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net $ 54721036 § 9967012 §  (7,048273) § 57,639,775
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Confintted  Capital Asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019:

The District has a number of Construction in Progress projects open as o’f]unc, 30, 2019. Community Services includes $223,333
for the Diamond Peak Master Plan and $261,502 for the Community Services Master Plan. Beach includes $210,632 for the Incline
Beach Facility Study. The Utility Fund includes $662,507 for the design phase of the Effluent Export Line that project will be
ongoing through at least 2023. The District’s primary building season is limited to May to October because of regulations from the

Business-Type Actvities
Utdlity Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in Progress

Total utility capital assets, not being depreciated

Utility Capital assets, being dcprcciatéd
Buildings and structures
Service infrastructure
Equipment and vehicles

Total udlity capital assets at historical cost

Less-accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and ‘structures
Service infrastructure
Equipment and vehicles
Total accumulated depreciation
Total unlity capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activitics Capital Agsets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Increases Deczeases June 30, 2019
S 6715544 S - s - § 6715544
4,151,041 2,816,092 (5,549,081) 1,418,052
10,866,585 2,816,002 (5,549,081) 8,133,596
15,166,010 337,853 . 15,503,863
108,626,081 5,181,776 . 113,807,857
3,721,984 29,452 (55,223) 3,696,213
127,514,075 5,549,081 (55223 133007933
(1311069 (77074) - (7,688,138)
(59,070,007) (2,567,148) - (61,637,155)
(2,503,588) - {209,587) 55,223 (2,657,952)
68,884,659) (3,153,809) 55203 (71.983245)
58,629,416 2,395,272 - 61,024,688
5211364 $ $ 69,158,284

$ 69496001 §

(5,549,081)

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. Most equipment purchases follow the budget and fiscal year cycle.

Depreciation expenses for the year ended June 30, 2019 was charged to functions as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 261,088 ¢
Recreation 3,020,525
Beach 235,152
Internal Services 12,561

Total Depreciation Expense  $£3.520.326

Business-Type Activities:
Utility Fund Water and Sewer $3.153.809

The District holds a substantial number of land parcels for recreation and.public purposes. Approximately 80 parcels were acquired
at no cost through a Washoe County tax forfeiture transfer. These lands are not held for the purpose of income or profit, and

therefore are not considered an investment.
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5. ACCRUED PERSONNEL COSTS

The General Fund processes and issues payments for all payroll and most related pexsonnel and benefit
costs for all funds of the District. At the time the expenses are incurred, each fund records its appropriate
costs. As payments are made, the individual funds provide their share through the pooled cash. This
process provides the General Fund with the necessaty available financial resources to meet the District wide
obligations. ‘Generally, no regular payzoll or personnel accruals are recorded to the individual funds.
Accruals for special payments, Health Reimbursement Accounts, Sick Leave at Retirement, Workers
Compensation and Vacation can appear in md1v1dual funds, because they are recognized well in advance of
the payment process. The General Fund also maintains any banks accounts specific for payment of
benefits ekcept for those accumulated for Workcrs Compensation claims under the Internal Service Fund.

As a regular course. eof opera'uons, the payroll mcludmg June 30 was paid July 19. The employee beneﬁts )
eamed through June 30 are also funded in the followmg month. At any given pomt the District has an
obhgamon to its employees for the value of vacation time earned and not taken. The obligation is measured
by the value due as if the employee terminated. The District allows retiring employees with an excess of 20
years of service, and that have accrued sick leave, to have it converted to Medical Retiree Benefit for
reimbursing post employment heath related costs. There are 11 eligible employees covered. The District
has no other post-employment benefit obligations for health i insurance or retirement benefits.

The sttnct offers health reimbursement accounts (HR.A) in exchange for the insured accepting a higher
deductible or co-insurance. The Plan is administered by the health insurance carrier. The District also has 2
third party administered flexible spending account (FSA). The District maintains bank accounts exclusively
for reimbursements for HRA and FSA transactions. :

The District provides Workers Compensation through a risk pooling arrangement funded with quarterly
assessments. The fourth quarter is paid in arrears after a payroll verification conducted by the Pool.

Accrued Personnel Costs as of June 30, 2019:

Current Payroll Liabilites: Governmental Business-type Total
Accrued Payroll ) $ 660,717 $ - $ 660,717
Taxes Withheld 49,935 - 49,935
Accrued Benefits 36,889 - 36,889
Deferred Comp 13,240 - 13,240
Retirement Plan : 42,510 - 42,510
Health Reimbursement Accounts 131,190 A - 131,190
Sick Leave Retirement Benefit 138,096 156,886 294,982
Workers Comp unpaid assessments 179,382 ) - 179,382
Accrued Vacation 405,815 187,640 593,455
Total Govemment-wide $1.657.774 $344.526 £2.002.300

The Government-wide Accrued Personnel Costs could be liquidated within one year and has been classified
as current. The following acconnts are based on ongoing activity as opposed t6 a point in time accrual:

Balance Provisions Balance
Select Benefit Liabilities . June 30, 2018  Additions Payments - June 30, 2019
Health Reimbursement Acets. § 163,683 § 51,748 § 84241 $ 131,190
Sick Leave Retirement Benefit 287,340 37,900 30,258 294,982
Work Comp unpaid losses 57,575 - 57,575 -
Accrued Vacation 546,961 644,985 598,491 593,455
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6. UNEARNED REVENUE

The District receives a number of payments that will be rccogmzed as revenue or a liquidated liability based
upon a future transaction when the service is provided. These include:

Community
Services Beach
General Special Rev. Special Rev. Utility Total

Billed in advance $ 45 $ 534,358 $119,323 $148,929 $ 802,655
. Unexpired season passes - 1,141,971 - - 1,141,971
External Gift Cards - 138,315 - - : 138,315
Internal Gift Cards - 73,259 - - 73,259
Total § 45 $1,887.903 $119.323 $148.929 $2.156.200

7. INTERFUND ACCOUNTS AND TRANSFERS

The outstanding‘ba.lances between funds results mainly from the time lag between the dates that (1)

interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occut, (2) transactions are recorded
in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made. The balances settle monthly r_hrough
pooled cash and therefore there are no open balances as of June 30, 2019.

Transfers for Capital Projects and Debt Service are (1) movement of revenues from the fund that by statue
or budget authority collects the revenue to provide resources for specified functions and transaction types
‘to the fund that will expend them.

Transfers from Internal Services move unique resources to finance various operamons in accordance with
budgetary authorizations in relation to discontinuing self-insurance. Transfers from the General Fund were
to teturn self-insurance resources to the operating funds after first transferred to the General Fund in the
prior year, as required by Nevada Revised Statute. The same Statute does not allow the General Fund to
redistribute the resources in the same fiscal year as received. Of the $474,356 received in the current fiscal
year, $300,000 will be similarly redistributed in the subsequent fiscal year.

Gross Transfers reported on the financial statements as of June 30, 2019 ate as follows:

Fund Transfer In:

}.

Co Ce
Services Services Services Beach Beach Beach
General Special Capital Debt Special Capital Debt Uility
- Fund Revenue Projects Service Revenue Projects Service Fund
Fund Transfer Out Total Out
Internal Services Fund § 474,356  § S - § - S $ S $ 474,356
General Fund - 645,000 35,000 120000 $ 800,000
Community Services
Special Revenue - - 3,678,473 329,848 - $4,008,321
Beach
Special Revenue - - - - 198,558 1,635 $ 200,193
TowlIn_§ 4745355 $ 645;000 $3,678.473 S 329,848 $ 35,000 s 198,558 $ 1635 $ 126,000 $5,482,870

i
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8. LONG-TERM DEBT

All of the District’s Long Term Bonds are collateralized by a pledge of revenues derived and to be derived from the
operation of either the Utlity, Community Services or Beach venues, after deduction there from of the amount
‘necessary to pay all operating and maintenance charges as required by applicable bond agreements. The District is
also required to maintain rates sufficient to pay all maintenance, depreciation, replacement, betterment, and interest

charges.

Outstanding Long-Term Debt as of June 30, 2019:

Issue Maturity Interest Amount Principal Current
Issue Date Date Rate Issued Qutstanding Postion
Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Revenue Bonds Recreation
Recreation Facilities and Recreation

Refunding 2012 07/18/12 09/01/22 2.25% 3,475,000 $1.498.000 $361,000
X Total Recreation Revenue Supported Debt $1,498,000 $361,000
Business Type Activities Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements: '
Utility
State of Nevada:
Sewer C32-0204 10/28/02 ’ 01/01/23 3.144%  $1,720,380 ‘ $ 479,758 $ 114,388
Water [IVGID-1 09/09/04 07/01/25 3.082% 1,687,282 664,807 93,876
_Sewer C832-0404 (G.O) 08/01/06 01/01/26 2.73% 3,000,000 1,314,494 172,886
Water DW-1201 (G.O.) 03/16/12 01/01/32 239% 3,000,000 _2149,867 142,838
Total Utility Revenue Supported Debt £4.608.920 $.523,988

Total Debt — All Activitics $6,106,926 $884,988

Long-Term Debt changes for the year:

Beginning New Principal Ending Due Within
Balance Issues Reductions Balance Oneé Year
By Activity Type:
Governmental: : «
2012 Recreation $1.848,000 $ - $350,000 $1.498,000 $361,000
Business Type Direct Botrowings and Direct Placements:
Sewer C32-0204 590,633 - 110,875 479,758 114,388
Water IVGID-1 755,855 - 91,048 664,807 93,876
Sewer C§32-0404 1,482,764 - 168,270 1,314,494 172,886
Water DW-1201 2,289,352 - 139,485 2,149 867 142,838
Business Type Total 5.118,604 = 509,678 4.608,926 523,988
Total Debt $6.966.604 $ .- $850,678 £6.106.926 $884.988
By Bond Type:
General Obligation $5,620,116 $ -~ $657,755 $4,962,361 $676,724
Revenue 1,346,488 - 201,923 1,144,565 208,264
Total Debt 6,966,604 - 859,678 6,106,926 §884.988
Bond discounts (6.983) . (1,666) (5,317)

Long-term Debt, net  $6,959,621 s - $£828.012 $6.101.609
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Future Debt Service Requirements as of June 30, 2019:

Debt Supported by Debt Supported by

Fiscal Year Utility Revenue - Recreation Revenue
Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2020 § 523988  § 119,145 '§ 361,000 § 29,643
2021. 538,707 104,428 368,000 21,442
2022 553,841 -'89,291 378,000 13,050
- 2023 | 569,405 73,728 | 391,000 14,399
2024 455,827 58,730 , - -
2025 to 2029 ' 1,410,553 ' 141,852 . .
2030 to 2032 556,605 23510 . -
Total $4.608926  $ 610.686 §1498000 § 68534

At June 30, 2019, principal and interest to maturity paid from pledged future Utility Revenues totals
$5,219,612 and $1,566,534 paid from pledged Recreation Revenues. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the
net pledged revenue was $2,359,045 for Utility Debt and $3,953,742 for Recreation Debt.

9. DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

The District is holding a deposit of $242,584 for a damage award as part of ongoing litigation refating to
matters asserted by a member of the public. The litigation is under appeal with the Nevada Supreme Court.
If the District prevails, the award will become revenue to the General Fund. If the member of the public
prevails, the deposit will be refunded under terms of a settlement agreement approved September 13, 2017.

The District has been awarded FEMA /Nevada Department of Emergency Management grants for 2017
damage to the Diamond Peak Maintenance Building for $38,643 and a portion of the culvert for $331,019.
Review of the final costs and determination of payment is ongoing. They will settle after August 31, 2019.
These amounts are deferred at the fund level :

10. CAPITAL GRANTS

The District was awarded FEMA/Nevada Department of Emergency Management Grants for 2017
damages to facilities and infrastructure, Final review and payment is ongoing,

Community Services was awarded a capital grant for $225,000 for the Pump Track based on costs incurred,
and received §153,778 in 2018. Another $31,691 was billed for costs incurred by June 30, 2018. This was
received later in the next fiscal year and has been recognized at the Fund Level in 2019, Community
Services received a combination State of NV Agency Grants for costs of a creek restoration project. The
project will occur in fiscal year 2019-2020. Community Services was awarded a capital grant of $1,409,201
for costs incurred to renovated portions of the Incline Park ballfields. Contracts were awarded for
$1,298,341, but the work did not commence unt! July 8. ’

11 DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The District offers its employees deferred compensation plans created in accordance with Internal Revenue |
Code Section 457. The plans, available to all District employees, permit them to defer a portion of their
earnings until future years. The deferred compensation benefit is not collectible by employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.
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12. DISTRICT RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The District has two retirement plans covering substantially all of its full-time year round employees Those
not covered under the Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers are covered by the District's Money
Purchase Pension Plan (Section 401(a)). The District also sponsors a Section 457 Deferred Compensation
Plan. No trust is used in relation to these plans, account balances are in the name of the individual

employee.

The stmct s Money Purchase Pensmn (Sect.ton 401'(2) Plan is a defined contribution plan). The plan 1
administered by third party administrators. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees are eligible to participate after six
months of service. The District's provides a non-elective contribution of 12.3% of the employee’s earnings.
The District's contributions for each employee are fully vested after four years of service. District
contributions for, and interest forfeited by employees who leave employment before fully vesting, are used
to reduce the District's current~penod contribution requirement. Employees are not allowed: to contribute

directly into thxs plan.

The Pension Trust Fund for Operating Engineers is a cost sharmg, multlple employer, defined benefit plan
contract between the District's employees and the Operating Engineers Union.’ The plan provides:
retirement and medical benefits to eligible participants based on a formula of years of service and reaching a
quahfymg age. Itis available to approximatély 45 positions in the sttrict covered by the collective
bargaining agreements, with only four elect:mg to do so. The sttnct isnota patty to this defined benefit
plan. The District's liability under the union collective bargmmng agreement is limited to making monthly
contributions based on union employees’ pay for hours worked. "Consequently, the District is not liable for
any funding shortage of the defined benefit plan. Each year the District contributions to the plan equal
-100% of the District’s liability under the bargaining agreement. The Pension Trust Fund for Operating
Engineers issues a publicly available finantial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Pension Trust Fund for
Operating Engineers, 1600 Harbor Bay Parkway Suite 200, Alameda, California 94502 or by calling (800)

251-5014.

The District’s Deferred Compensation (Section 457) Plan is a defined contribution plan. The plan is
administered by third party administrators. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend solely on
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earsiings, Employees are eligible to participate
immediately after the first day of a month of employment. Employee contributions are subject to Internal
Revenue Service regulations for Section 457 plans. The District provides a matching contribution up to
4%. Both employee and District contributions are fully vested 100% as made.

The District's total contributions equal to required contributions for employees covered by the above plans
are as follows:

401(2) Money Operating Emplosver Employee

EYE June 30 Purchase Engineers Section457  Section 457
2019 $985,920 $ 39,200 $301,368 $527,739
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13. SCHEDULE OF IN SURANCE COVERAGE AND RISKMANAGEMEN'I:

Insurance Coverage on June 30, 2019 consists of the following:

- Type . Carrier/Provider Amount

Property Liabilit); NV Public Agency Pool $300,000,000
on buﬂdings& contents ‘

Earthquake & Flood NV Public Agency Pool 150,000,000
Boiler & Machinery NV Public Agency Pool 100,000,000
General Liability NV Public Agency Pool 10,000,000
Cyber Secutity Event NV Public Agency Pool | 2,00:0,000

 Money & Secu’xi\;ties NV Public Agency Pool 500,000
Site Pollution Incident NV Public Agency Pool 2,000,000
Ski Resort Gen. Liability ~ Nova Casualty Company 1,000,000
Ski Resort Excess Liability Nova Casualty Company 6,000,000
Workers Compensation NV Public Agency Comp. Txust 2,000,000

The District has elected to parucxpatc in the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool. The risk-sharing Pool
secuses insurance coverage for all its members. The Pool agreement provides coverage for the equivalent

of errors and omissions and directors and officers acts. The Pool does not offer general or excess liability

coverage for the Diamond Peak Ski Resort. Therefore, separate coverage is purchased.

A portion of each member’s premium contributions to the Pool goes into the Loss Fund and the remainder
pays for the excess insurance premiums and administrative expenses. The amount of the Loss Fund
contribution is determined by the underwriters based on each member's average annual losses over the

ptior five years. This amount may vary each year.

The Pool pays all losses from the Loss Fund per occurrence, less the member's maintenance deductible.
The District has a $5,000 deductible. Excess insurance above the Pool’s self-funded amount, is provided by
secondary markets based on arrangements made with the Pool, including a Pool owned captive.

There were no District settlements in excess of insurance coverage in any of the three prior fiscal years.

Ski Liability Insurance is not covered by the Nevada Public Agency Insurance Pool. A separate insurance
program, less the District’s $10,000 deductible, provides coverage.

Wotkers Compensation Coverage

From 1992 to July 1, 2013 the District was self-insured for Worker’s Compensation coverage. Effective July
1, 2018 the District executed a Loss Portfolio Transfer and Assumption Agreement with Public Agency
Compensation Trust, which removes all liability in exchange for a one-time assessment.. As of July 1, 2013
the District utilizes the Nevada Pubhc Agency Compensation Trust to provide work comp coverage for all

employees.
For 2018-2019 Worker Compensation (an element of the Internal Service Fund) accouats for and finances
its risks of loss for Workers Compensation benefits. Through the Internal Service Fund, the District

collects charges based on compensation, and then pays pooling assessments to the Nevada Public Agency
Compensation Trust (NVPACT). All funds of the District participate in the program and made payments
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based on actuarial estimates provided by NVPACT for the amounts needed to pay claims as member of the
risk sharing pool. For fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Internal Sexrvices Fund billed other District funds
a total of $504,519 and made member assessment payments for coverage of $458,321. Member assessment
payments are audited on the calendar year and paid the following July. Since the District will no longer be
liable for costs for claims incurred prior to July 1, 2013, the use of the internal services fund ceased June 30,
2019, All future coverage is a purchased service. 4

Reconciliation of Workers Comp claims lizbility as of June 30, 2019, for claims incurred prior to July 1, 2013.

Beginning Ending

Claixi)s Claims Claims General Claims

Liability Made Pagments Provision " Liability
June 30,2019  § 57,300 $ - $ 57,300 § - $ -
June 30,2018 $156,000 s - $ - - $ (98,700) $ 57,300
June 30, 2017 $156,000 § - $ . $ - $156,000

14. CONTINGENCIES

The District participates in various federal programs, which are subject to program compliance audits -
pursuant to the Single'Audit Act as amended. Accordingly, the District’s compliance with applicable grant
requirements will be established at a future date.

Washoe County is currently the defendant in various lawsuits with property owners disputing the County’
Assessor’s valuation methods used for property within the Lake Tahoe Basin. The County intends to
vigorously defend the Assessor’s valuations; however, the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently
determinable. An adverse ruling could result in 2 rollback of property values and subsequent rebates to
property owners. - Similar cases have resulted in the County charging a portion of the rebates against the
District’s tax settlements in 2012 through 2014. The impact of the current claims, on the District’s financial
condition, cannot be reasonably estimated.

15. ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

As of July 1, 2015, the Board of Trustees established Special Revenue, Capital Project and Debt Service
funds for District Community Services and Beach activities. Based on governmental accounting standards
the fund balance for the Special Revenue funds are assigned for the purpose of recreation privileges utilizing
the facility fee. The fund balance in the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds are assigned since they
represent amounts designated through the budget process for approved but uncompleted expenditures
under the direction of the District General Manager.

16. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Revenue:

Miscellaneous revenue includes rent received for cell towers on District property. Under an agreement with
American Tower §20,082 was paid for a tower at the Mountain Golf Course. Its term is April 2007 to 2037
with extensions-every five years, cancelable by either party. Rent increases 3% per year. Under an agreement
with AT&T $19,001 was paid for a tower at the Mountain Golf Course. Its term is October 2010 to 2035
with automatic extensions every five years, cancelable by the tenant. Rent increases 3% per year. Under an
agreement with AT&T $61,985 was paid for a tower at Diamond Peak Ski Resort. Its term is July 2013 to
2038 with extensions every five years, cancelable by the tenant. Rent increases 3.5% per year. *

Expenses:

The Uthty Fund paid $4,476 for a leased copier under an agreement expiring December 2020,
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17. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS

The Nevada Department of Taxation has notified the District of refund of sales tax due another taxpayer,
resulting in reductions of monthly Consolidated Tax Distributions. While the exact amount and terms for
the reductions is not determined, sufficient information was available to arrive at an estimated $60,000
liability. The refund applies to taxes received over three years ending in-March 2017. The District share
of this refund are being made through 18 monthly reductions that began with the July 2018 Consolidated
Tax Distribution. The first twelve months resulted in §28,946 applied to the $60,000.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR COMMUNITY SERVICES AND BEACH SPECIAL
REVENUE FUNDS

The District provides recreation functions through two individual special revenue funds. Each servesa
different set of venues and customer base. A significant source of revenue for these functions for
operations, capital expenditure and debt service comes directly from a facility fee assessed by parcel for
each function and expenditure type. Facility Fees have been listed separately by fund and function. The
operating portion of the facility fee is combined with charges for services to provide the resources for
providing services. Charges for services are aggregated, while expenditures are provided by function. As
stated in Note 1 T, part of the facility fee can be used to pay for charges for services in lieu of other forms
of privileges. _These are referred to'as Punch Cards. The following are major functions mcluded mn
Charges for Services and the approximate amounts of punch cards activity that is included.

- 19. COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FUTURE PERIODS

General Fund:

Charges for Paid with Punch Cards

Setvices Punch Cards Value Unlized
Community Services Fund:
‘Championship Golf $ 3,952,989 $ 25,000 $ -
Mountain Golf 690,668 56,000 -
Facilities 392,246 - -
Ski 11,778,871 200,000 =
Community Programming 1,364,044 1,000 -
Parks 46,580 - -
Tennis 153,435 - -
Recreation Administration ——{730.819) . 7:000 (757,000

Total $.17.648.014 £289.000 $(757.000)

Beach Fund 51492687 $590,000 §(122.000)

District Total £879.000 $(879.000)

The District entered into an unemployment insurance contract with First Nonprofit Companies for total
premiums of $185,000 for calendar year 2019 services. As of June 30, 2019 $92,500 in quarterly deposits
are remaining as a part of the subsequent year’s budget.
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Capital Improvement Project Budget Carryover:

The District budgets for capital improvement projects one year at a time for spending authority. The
actual execution of construction or acquisition can span one or mote fiscal years, The District identifies
carryover and unspent budget authority for those projects. The amounts for governmental fund types aze
re-budgeted for the subsequent fiscal year. The unused Utlity Fund resources become part of
Unrestricted Net Position, and are budgeted under cash flow on the State of NV budget forms. Amounts

cattried over at year end are:

General Fund $ 201,000
Utility Fund (Non-effluent projects) 1,498,400

Effluent Pipeline Project 9,656,890
Community Services Fund 1,701,702
Beach Fund 108,050

Budgeting for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020:

The District’s budgeting for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 anticipates a reduction in Net Position
caused by completion of capital projects. The identified reductions include; General Fund by $788,870
including $561,800 to Community Services for the Mountain Golf Course capital project and $145,000 for
contingency, and in Community Services reduction for $4,037,091 including the $1,464,000 Mountain
Course project, and $1,285,000 for the Tennis Center Renovation. The Beach Fund has a reduction of
$625,729 resulting from the $800,000 Burnt Cedar Pool Improvement.

The District has committed to these contractual arrangements for capital improvement projects:

Contract Completed Remaining
Award at June 30, 2019 Commitment
Utility Fund:
Effluent Pipeline Project — State Route 28 Line Repairs
State of Nevada ‘ $1,152,600 $1,094,956 $ 57,644
Replacement of Vactor Truck Awarded for assembly with fall 2019 delivery
Atlantic Machinery, Inc. $ 416,564 $ - $ 416,564

Community Services Fund:
Incline Park Facility Renovation Awarded for May 2019 start, actual started July

Rapid Construction $1,298,341 $§ - $1,298,431
Incline Creek Restoration Awarded for September 2019 start date

Aspen Developers Corp. $ 273,000 § - $ 273,000

Cardno, Inc. 37,000 - 37,000

20. RESTRICTED DEPOSIT HELD IN LAWSUIT

The District has been engaged in a lawsuit with an individual over many years. A District Court decision

made an award to the District for the recovery of fees. Both the Court decision and the fess awarded are
under an appeal. In order to reduce possible longer-term exposute to the individual, the District received
$241,646 on September 14, 2017. These refunds are in a separate money market account and classified as
a Deferred Inflow until all appeals under the lawsuit are resolved. The timeframe for a decision is

unknown.
21, STATE OF NEVADA TAX ABATEMENTS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES
The State of Nevada has entered into various tax abatement agreements that reduce the tax revenues of

local governments. Taxes reduced include the Consolidated Tax, which includes allocated sales and use
tax revenue. State law establishes the abatements. The District’s estimated share of abatements for this

fiscal year is $21,199.
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22. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT AND SUBSEQUENT TRANSACTIONS
AFFECTING THE FISCAL YEARS JUNE 30, 2018, 2019 AND 2020 "

As of July 1, 2019 the District was relieved of any lability for its past Self-Insured Workers Compensation
Program. For the last several years the District had sought to find a way to obtain tail coverage through
traditional markets. Eventually it secured a Loss Portfolio Transfer and Assumption Agreement from the
Nevada Public Agency Compensation Trust. Since 2013 the District carried an estimated claims Liability
based on actuarial reports. The Liability exceeded the Self Insured Retention held by the Workers

' Compensanon Fund. The District reduced the Fund, while still working to reduce the liability by making
transfers m June 2018 for $800,000 and in Septembex: 2018 for $300,000 to reduce the amounts held and
return them to the operating funds that had paid assessmeats to the Fund. In May 2019 the District’s
Trustees made a finding that the Fund could be closed. Under NRS 354,6215 funds accumulated for Self-
Insurance must be transferred to the General Fund once it is no longer needed. Part of that process is to
notify the State of this action. Upon further review by the NV Deparmment of Taxation and considering
NRS 354.6215, the District took action Septémbei 25,2019 to clarify the steps necessary to have the same
end results for the original transfers. These steps require the first transfer in one fiscal year to be from the
Workers Compensation Fund to the General Fund and then in the subsequent year the General Fund' can

transfer to the operating funds.

A Prior Period Adjustment was made to reflect the $800,000 transfer from the Workers Compensatlon
Fund to the General Fund and reduces that same total for the opetating funds for their opening Net
"Position and Fund Balance as of June 30, 2018. For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 the $800,000 was
recorded as transferred to the operating funds, and the $300,000 transfer is to the General Fund. For the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2020 that $300,000 has been transfesred to the operating funds. The final
transfer of  $174,356 made from the Workers Compensation Fund to the General Fund and will not be
redistributed to allow these resources to be retained to make advance payments on the District-wide
worker compensation coverage through its risk pooling.

Prior Period Adjustment as of June 30, 2018

District-wide Governmental Business-type

: ' Activiies Activities District-wide
Net Position as previously Reported $71,073,766 $74,778,034 $145,851,800
Wotker Compensation Transfer 120,000 120,000 -
Net Position at June 30, 2018 $71.193.766 $74.658.034 $145,851.800

' Community
Fund Level ’ General Utility Services Beach
Fund Fund

N Spec. Rev. Spec. Rey.

Fund Balance/Net Position

as previously Reported $2,522,786 $74,778,034  $10,645,469 $1,413,091
Worker Compensation Transfer 800,000 —_{120.000) (645,000 000
Fund Balance/Net Position
at June 30, 2018 $3.322.786 374638034  $10.000469  $1.378.091
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS
TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION MULTI-EMPLOYER PLANS

FOR THE TEN MOST RECENT FISCAL YEARS

For the year ending June30:

2019
2018
2017

2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

2010

Operating Engineers.

Number of Covered Required

Partidpants Payroll Contrbutions
4 8 318,699  $ 39,200
4 308,114 37,898
4 315,764 38,839
5 346,008 42,559
4 275,846 33,929
5 346,797 42,656
5 377,293 46,407
7 395,512 48,648
7 463,862 57,055
8 477,382 58,718

i
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPRO‘;'EMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
Ad valorem taxes
Personal Property Tax
Interpovernmental:
Cdnsbiidated Tax
Loal Govemment Tax At
Investment inome
Miscellaneous
Cential Services Revenue
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General Govemment ~ All Functions:
Function Summary
Total expenditures

Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Contingency
Operating Transfers In (Out)

Net dhanges in fund balance

Fund balance, July 1, as previously reported
Prior Period Adjustment

Fund Balance, July 1, a5 adjusted

Fund balance, June 30

Budgeted Amounts
. Original Final Actual Variance
S 1611738 S5 161,738  § 1615540  § 3,802
12,000 12,000 17,871 5,871
1,423,595 1,423,595 1,440,607 17,012
238,000 238,000 249,615 11,615
138,600 138,600 327,815 189,215
3,600 3,600 2,002 (1,598)
1,169,400 1,169,400 1,169,400 -
4,596,933 4,596,933 4,822,850 225,917
4,539,239 4,539,239 4,054,406 484,833
4,539,239 4,539,239 4,054,406 484,833
57,694 57,694 768,444 710,750
(125,000) (125,000) - 125,000
- - (325.644) (325.644)
(67,306) (67,306) 442800 510,106 _
2,432,349 2,432,349 2,522,786 90,437
- - 800,000 £00,000
2.432,349 2,432,349 3,322,786 890,437
§ 2365043 $ 2‘365‘,.043 $ 3765586 $ 1400543
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

EXPENDITURES
General Government:
Genenal Administration
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Serviees and Supplies
Capital Outlay :
Subtotal Gencral Administration
General Manager
Salaries and Wages
Employee Bencfits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal.General Manager
Trustees k
~ Salades and Wages
Employece Benefits
Serviees and Supplies
Subtotal Trustees
Acounting
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits -
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Acounting
Information Services
Salaries and Wages
Employce Benefits
Services and Supplies
Capital Outlay
Subtotal Information Services
Risk Management
Salades and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Risk Managem ent
Human Resouras
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Human Resoures
Health and Wellness
Salares and Wages .
Employce Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Health and Wellness
Community & Employee Relations
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Comm. Relations

Funcion Subtotal - Form 10

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final Actual Variance
$ 28,215 $ 28215 $ 40,757 s (12,542
17,839 17,839 17,980 (141)
408,064 408,064 524,466 (116,402)
435,950 435,950 64,972 370,978
890,068 890,068 648175 241,893
247,506 247,506 244,421 3,085
114,563 114,563 105,047 9,516
56,740 56.740 69,361 (12621
418,809 418.809 418,829 (20)
100,984" 100,984 102,992 "+ (2,008)
30,346 30,346 27,822 2,524
74,600 74,600 45,068 29532
205,930 205,930 175,882 30,048
566,805 566,805 572,025 (5,220)
268,079 268,079 252,081 15,998
68,390 68,390 60,134 8,256
903,274 903,274 - 884,240 19,034
468,487 468,487 426,004 42,483
220,452 220,452 191,122 29,330
323,583 323,583 211,242 112,341
- - 56,285 {56,285
1,012,522 1,012,522 884,653 127,869
80,435 80,435 81,841 {1,406)
44,539 44,539 40,039 4,500
21,910 21,910 15,139 6,771
146,884 146,884 137,019 9,865
416,216 416,216 431911 (15,695)
236,294 236,294 203,821 32,473
76,573 76,573 46,662 29,911
729,083 729,083 682,394 46,689
14,058 14,058 18,446 (4,388)
5,557 5,557 5,875 (318)
21,475 21,475 4,495 16,980
41,090 41,090 28,816 12,274
81,313 81,313 95,076 (13,763)
32,236 32,236 43,559 (11,323)
78,030 78,030 55,763 22,267
191,579 191,579 194,398 (2,819)
$ 4,539,239 S 4,539,239 $ 4,054,406 $ 484,833
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND.
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUD GETARY BASIS

. FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
Charges for Services

Championship Golf

Mountain Golf
. Faglities

Ski

Community Progamming

Parks.

Tennis

Recreation Administration
Fadlity Fee:

Championship Golf

Mountain Golf

Fadlities

Ski

Community Programming

Parks

Tennis

Reaeation Administration
Openting Grants
Interfund Services
Intergovernmental Services
Investment Eamings
Sale of Assets
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Culrure and Receeation - All Fundaions:

Funeaion Summary
Total expenditures

Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Contingency
Insurance Proceeds

Operating Transfers In - Intemal Services
Openating Transfers Out - Capital Projects
Operiting Transfers Out - Debt Serviee

Net changes in fund balanee

Fund ba]ance,]uiy 1, as previously reported

Prior Period Adjustment
Fund Balanace, July 1, as adjusted

Fund balane, June 30

Budgeted Amounts .
Original Final Actual Variance
S 3,992,444 $ 3,992,444 $ 3,902,689 S {89,755)
690,926 690,926 740,968 50,042

406,900 406,900 392,246 (14,654)°
8,915,000 11,715,000 11,778,871 63,871
1,305,414 1,305,414 1,364,044 58,630
67,740 67,740: 46,580 (21,160)
159,700 159,700 153,435 (6,265)
(510,600) (510,600) (730,819) (220,219)
804,580 804,580 805,884 1,304
517,230 517,230 517,661 431
467,970 467,970 468,584 614
238,090 238,090 238,403 313
1,305,390 1,305,390 1,307,104 1,714
968,780 968,780 970,052 1,272
164,200 164,200 164,416" 216
1,321,810 1,321,810 1,350,671 28,861
17,000 17,000 17,000 .
77,920 77,920 86,060 8,140
21,000 21,000 14,570 (6,430)
30,000 30,000 199,322 169,322

- - 34,567 34,567
106,480 106,480 112,777 6,297
21,067,974 23,867,974 - 23,935,085 67,111
16,930,214 17,360,214 17,288,580 71,634
16,930.214 17.360,214 17.288,580 71,634
4,137,760 6,507.760 6646505 138745
(500,000) (500,000) - 500,000

: - - 50,300 50,300
241,875 241,875 645,000 403,125
{6,070,675) (6,070,675) (3,678,473) " 2,392,202
(410,500 {410,500 (329,848) 80,652
{2,601,540) (231,540) 3,333,484 3,565,024
11,515,351 11,515,351 10,645,469 (869,882)
- - (645,000) (645,000)
11.515,351 11,515,351 10,000,469 (1,514,882)
S 8913811 s 11,283,811 $_ 13333953 S 2050142

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized the Total Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Serviaes and Beadh fund,
while utilizing transfers to the Capital Projeas and Debt Service Funds for expenditure by those Funds.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COMMUNITY SERVICES SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

EXPENDITURES
- Community Services:
Championship, Golf
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Championship Golf
Mountain Golf
Sa]anesfand’Wages
Embployee Benefits
Serviees and ‘Supplies
Subtotal Mountain Golf
Fadlities i
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Fadlities
Ski
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Ski
Community Programming
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies

Subtotal Community Programming

Pagss |
Saléﬁ:s and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Parks
Tennis
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Tennis
Community Services Administration
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Subtotal Reaeation Administration

Function Subtotal

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final Actual Variance
$ 1493437 1,493,437 § 1,509,876 $ (16,439)
- 451,909 451,909 383,157 68,752
2,226,413 2,226,413 2,392,390 - (165,977)
4,171,759 4,171,759 +4,285.423 (113,664)
382,111 382,111 340,012 42,099
115,490 115,490 93,523 21,967
522,352 522,352 526,907 (4,555)
1,019,953 1,019,953 960,442 59511
85,968 ‘85,968 76,190 9,778
43,156 43,156 37,739 5417
418,078 418.078 368,598 49,480
547,202 547.202 482,527 64675
2,867,877 3,042,877 3,072,710 (29,833)
978,691 978,691 925,074 53,617
3,507,146 3,762,146 3,833,164 (71,018)
7,353,714 7,783,714 7,830,948 (47,234)
1,092,992 1,092,992 1,156,579 (63,587)
347,964 347,964 321,005 26,959
909.827 909,827 819,388 90,439
2,350,783 2,350,783 2,296,972 53811
328,315 328,315 337,927 (9,612)
80,461 80,461 75,544 4,917
439,357 439,357 401,968 37,389
848,133 848,133 815,439 32,694
136,102 136,102 136,149 47
27,535 27,535 26,172 1,363
100,033 100,033 91,223 8,810
263,670 263,670 253,544 10,126
122,353 122,353 153,065 (30,712)
43,256 43,256 43,445 (189)
209,391 209,391 166,775 42,616
375,000 375,000 363,285 11,715

$ 16,930,214 17,360,214 S 17,288,580 S 71,634

é1
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BEACH SPECIAL REVENUE FUND .,
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

- Budgeted Amounts
) Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Charges for Sexvices
Culture and Recreation:

Beach $ 1,338,500 $ 1,338,500 $ 1,492,687 § 154,187
Fadlity Fees 969,500 969,500 - 975,121 5,621
Investment Earnings : 13,500 13,500 36,188 22,688

Total revenues i : 2,321,500 2,321,500 2,503,996 182,496
EXPENDITURES
Beach:
Salaries and Wages 833,105 833,105 847,293 (14,188)
Employee Benefits 209,334 209,334 190,452 18,882
Services and Supplies ’ 880,537 880,537 868,771 . 11,766
Total expendituses 1922976 1,922,976 1,906,516 16,460
Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures 398,524 398,524 597,480 198,956
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ’

Contingengy : ' (50,000) (50,000) - 50,000

Operating Transfer In - Internal Services 13,125 13,125 35,000 21,875

Operating Transfers Out - Capital Projects (306,328) (306,328) (198,‘558) 107,770

Operating Transfers Out - Debt Service (7.756) {7,756) (1,635) 6,121
Net changes in fund balance 47,565 47,565 432,287 384,722
Fund balance, July 1, as previously reported 1,444,497 1,444,497 1,413,001 (31,406)
Prior Period Adjustment - - (35,000) (35,000
Fund Balane, July 1, as adjusted - 1,444,497 1,444,497 1,378,091 (66,4086)
Fund balance, June 30 §  1,4920062 $ 1,492,062 $ 1,810,378 $ 318316

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund,
while utilizing transfers to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
COMMUNITY SERVICES CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ]UNE 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts )
Original Final Actual Variance
REVENUES
Sales of Assets and Intangibles $ - - 5592 5,592
Charitable - Capital Grants N . 1,694,071 1,694,071 31,958 (1,662 11?&
Total revenues : 1,694,071 1,694,071 37,550 (1,656,521)
EXPENDITURES
COMMUNITY SERVICES RECREATION: ]
Championship Golf New projeas - 492,400 492,400 . 450,219 42,181
Carryover projeds 106,000 106,000 47,158 58,842
Mountain Golf New projeas 150,300 150,300 202,180 (51,880)
Carxyover projects 255,963 255,963 135,969 119,994
Fadlities New projects 43,000 43,000 21,406 21,594
Carryover projects 6,500 6,500 - 6,500
Ski New projects 4,287,000 4,287,000 3,801,573 485,427
: Master Plan : 682,600 682,600 - 682,600
Carryover projects 822,515 822,515 . 737,454 85,061
Community Progmmming  New projeas 166,500 166,500 133,838 32,662
- Carryover projects 181,030 181,030 126,080 54,950
Parks New projeas 1,820,271 1,820,271 135,199 1,685,072
Carryover projects 104,154 104,154 6,842 97,312
Tennis New projects : 98,000 98,000 54,180 43,820
-Carryover projects 50,000 50,000 50,000 -
Comm. Serv. Administration New projeas 27,500 27,500 4,180 23,320
Carryover projects 138,000 138,000 137,222 778
Total expendituces 9,431,733 9,431,733 6,043.500 3,388,233
Excess (defidengy) of revenues over expenditures (7,737,662) (7,737,662) (6,005.950) 1,731,712
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES _
Operating Transfers In - Fndh'ty Fees 3,612,400 3,612,400 2,508,528 (1,103,872)
Operating Transfers In - CIP . 2,458,275 2,458,275 1,169,945 (1,288,330
Total other finandng sources 6,070,675 6,070,675 3.678,473 (2,392,202)
Net changes in fund balance (1,666,987) (1,666,987) (2,327,477) (660,490)
Fund Balance, July 1 1,666,987 1,666,987 2,327,477 660,490
Fund balance, June 30 » $ - - - -

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
BEACH CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

EXPENDITURES
Beach New projects
: Canyover projeas
* Total expenditures

Excess (defidenty) of revenues over expenditutes
‘OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fee
Operating Transfers In - Carryover CIP
- Total other finandng sources
Net changes in fund balance

Fund Balance, July 1

- Fund balancz, June 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original ____Final Actual Variance
$ 372,900 $ 372,900 283,698 $ 89,202
30,000 30,000 600 29,400
402,900 402,900 284,298 118,602
(402,900)  (402,900) (284,298) 118,602
302,484 302,484 198,558 (103,926)
3,844 3844 - {3,844)
306,328 306,328 . 198558 (107,770
(96,572) (96,572) (85,740) 10,832
96,572 96,572 85,740 (10,832)

$ - $ - - $ .

Note: The State Budget Formm 4404LGF regnized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projeas and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

EXPENDITURES
Community Services - GO Revenue Supported
Prindpal
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess (defidency) of revenues over expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fees
Total other finandng souraes
Net changes in fund balance

Fund Balane, July 1

Fund balanee, June 30

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final- Actual Variance

344,365 344365  § 344,365 S -
37,036 37,036 37.036 -
381,401 381,401 381,401 -
(381,401) (381,401) (381,401) -
410,500 41 0.500 329,848 (80,652)
410,500 410,500 329,848 (80,652)
29,099 29,099 (51,553) (80,652)
53,094 53,094 51,553 (1,541)
82,193 82.193 S - $ (82,1933

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beads fund, while utilizing transfers
to the Capital Projets and Debt Serviee Funds for expenditure,
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

- BEACH DEBT SERVICE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

EXPENDITURES
Beadsr -
Prindpal
Interest
Total expenditures

1

Excss (defideng) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Operating Transfers In - Fadlity Fees

Net changes in fund balance
Fund Balance, July 1

Fund balance, June 30

Budgeted Amounts

Original Final _ Actual Variance
5,635 5,635 s 5,635 -
606 606 606 .
6,241 6,241 6,241 -
(6,241) (6,241) (6,241) .
7,756 7.756 1,635 (6,121)
1,515 1,515 (4,606) (6,121)
4,622 4,622 4,606 (16).
6,137 6137 - S - (6,137)

Note: The State Budget Form 4404LGF recognized Fadlity Fee revenue in the Community Services and Beach fund, while utilizing trnsfers

to the Capital Projeats and Debt Service Funds for expenditure.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

UTILITY FUND - BUD GETARY BASIS

WATER, SEWER AND TRASH ACTIVITIES
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

REVENUES
Sales and service fees
Intergovernmental services
Interfund services
Opérting Grants
Investment eamings.
Total revenues

EXPENSES

Wagés '

Benefits

Services and supplies

Utilities

Professional Fees

Central Services cost

Defensible Space

Depredation

Debt setvice interest
Total expenses

NONOPERATING ITEMS
Gain on sale of assets
Transfers In (Out)
Total Nonoperating items
Changes in Net Position

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCINGACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Capital Assets - New Projects

Adquisition of Capital Assets - Carry Over Projects

Payments of Prindpal on Capital Debt

Original &
Final Budget Actual Variance
$ 11,871,080 $ 12,552,028 5 680,948
145,000 121,861 (23,139)
141,400 111,853 (29,547)
- 1,440 1,440
120,000 282,484 162,484
12,277,480 13,069,666 792,186
2,663,557 2,632,951 30,606
1,304,284 1,288,413 15,871
2,103,110 2,003,301 £ 99,809
920,133 862,768 57,365
98,250 78,295 19,955
308,600 308,600 -
100,000 100,000 -
3,150,000 3,153,809 (3:809)
133,457 126,351 7,106
10,781,391 10,554,488 226,903
. 15,066 15,066
45000 120,000 75,000
45000 135,066 90,066
s 1,541,089 8 2.650.244 3 1,109,155
'8 4,675,674 $ 1,162,541 $  (3,513,133)
$ - 2,298,048 $ 1,653,551 $ (644,497)
$ 509,678 $ 509,678 $ .
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
INTERNAL SERVICES FUND - BUDGETARY BASIS
(FLEET, ENGINEERING AND BUILDINGS MAINTENANCE
AND WORKERS COMPENSATION ACTIVITIES)
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Budget Amounts :
Original Final ) Actual Variance
REVENUES ‘
Services provided by:
Fleet $ 1,062,554 § 1062554 § 1155513  § 92,959
Engineering 941,100 941,100 620,810 (320,290)
Buildings Maintenance 1,054,165 1,054,165 1,023,990 (30,175)
Workers Compensation 508;000 508,000 504,549 (3,451)
Interfond Services 3,565,819 3,565,819 3,304,862 (260,957)
Investment earnings - 3750 3,750 360 (3,390)
Total Revenues , 3,569,569 3,569,569 3,305,222 (264,347)
EXPENSES
Wages : 1,518,840 1,518,840 1,282,090 236,750
Benefits 759,670 759,670 617,824 141,846
Services and Supplies 1,270,645 1,270,645 1,383,194 (112,549)
Utilities ‘ 10,860 10,860 10,838 2
Legal & Audit , 9,000 9,000 oo 9,000
Depredation 12,000 12,000 12,561 (561)
Total expenses 3,581,015 3,581,015 3,306,507 274,508
Opeatting Income (loss) (11,446) (11,446) (1,285) 10,161
NONOPERATING ITEMS
Transfers Out (300,000) (300,000) (474,356) (174,356)
Total nonoperating items (300,000) (300,000) (474,356) (174356)
Changes in Net Position 5 (11446 8 (311.446) S (475641) § (164,195
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STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

The Statistical Section of the Incline Village General Improvement District Compsehensive Annual Financial Report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note
disclosures and reqmred supplementary information indicates about the District’s overall financial health.

~CONTENTS
District-wide Net Position ...
District-wide Changes in Net Posttion....o e v et 2SRRS4 AR B SRR AR R en AR
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds .o mcreoinecersnsswasserenss .
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds......
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Direct and Overlapping Tax Districts.
Pnnc1pal Property ‘Taxpayers.... - vesses s sias b
Tax Levies, Collections and Dehnquencxes—Washoe County as a whole
Ratios of" Outstandmg Debt by TYPe wcuermmeiivirnsinniainins
Outstanding Overlapping General Obligation Indebtedness .t
Utility Fund Net'Pledged Revenues ........commscsrinssisienininnsssens
Community Secvices and Beach Fund Net Pledged Revenues ... e
Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures to Governmental and Busmess Type Expenditures/Expenses......i... 82

Statutory Debt Limitation ...
DEMOEIAPHIC SAHSHTS ..ueecerersrrerrersssesaresersessmaseceersimsssesesssssmsersasressassasesssasssssse
Principal Employers........ coresrrnstssasesains .
Position and Full Time Equivalent Pessonnel Summary
User Statistics cmrreminasinss

Budgeted Facility Fees perparcel
Water and Sewer Single Family Base Rates .......
TWALEL SOLA DY CUSTOMET TYPE c.iuurerersrerunenrersusescvareessssanssressessessessssssssaesssesssssseass onricons essesssssssaressssess seresssasesstissismssesscsssarsesssss

Financial Trends .
These schediiles contzin trend information to help understand how the District’s financial performance and well-
being have changed over time.

Revenune Capacity
These schedules contain information to help assess the District’s most significant local revenue source, the Facility
Fee, property tax and local share of state-wide shared taxes.

Debt Capacity
These schedules' present information to help assess the affordability of the District’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help understand the environment within which the
District’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help understand how the information in the District’s
financial report relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.

Source: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports for the relevant year. Certain amounts in prior year statements have been reclassified for
comparisons purposes to conform to current year presentations.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

District-wide Net Position, based on Statement of Net Position

- Last Ten Fiscal Years - (unaudited)

Governmental Adivitics
Net invested in aipital assets
Restdcted
Unrestaded

Total governmental adtivitics net position

Business-type activities
Net invested in apital asscts
Restdaed
Unrestraed

Total business-type adtivitics net position

Pramary govemment
Net invested in apital assets
Restricted
Untestacted

Total pamary govemment net position

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014 2013 2012 2011 2019
$ 56,147,092 $ 52,880,021 § 50,729,901 $ 48555965 § 47,729,659 $ 44,322,574 $ 42,560,434 $ 40,313,677 $ 38,304,227 § 30,800,605
136,993 183,037 180,564 - 178,426 187,825 246,604 +270,359 955,415 869,013 341,784
19,371,388 18130708  16,887.487 13973745 9114898 ° 10,106521 . 9434133 6,473,085 .. 5432800 8,309,236
$ 75655473 § 71,193,766 $° 67,797,952 § 62,708,136 $ 57,032,382° '$ 54,675,699 § 52,264,926 § 477421773 44606040 5 39.451,625
$ 64,549,358 . $ 64,377,307 $ 59,817,845 § 57974014 § 57,365832 § 56,875962 § 56,144,425 § 56,598,673 § 53,051,044 $ 49,445,970
316,611 309,344 305,022 226,208 225435 225,185 ©.224,951 226,777 231,514 558,563
12,442,309 9.971,293 12536210 12,026276 11,228,881 10,113,847 9,197,509 5,554.147, 7,552,741 9,406,203
$ 77,308,278 $ 74,658,034 $ 72650077 $ 70226498 S 68,820,148 $ 67,214,994 3 65,566,885 § 62,379,507 § 60,835,299 $ 50,410,736
$120,696450 $ 117,257,418 - $ 110,547,746 $106,529,979 § 105005491 $101,198,536 $ 98,704,859 $ 96,912,350 § 91,355,271 $ 80,246,575
453,604 492,381 485,586 404,634 413,260 471,789 495,310 1,182,192 1,100,527 900,347
3813697 28102001 29423697 26000021 20343779 20220368 18,631,642 12,027,232 12985541  17,715439
$ 152,963,751 '3 145,851,800 - $ 140,457,029 $132,934,63¢ - $ 125,852,530 *$ 121,890,693 3 117,831,811 - $.110,121,774  § 105,441,339 5 98,862,361

Soura: Distaa Compechensive Annual Finandal Report Government-wide Statement of Net Position,
restated to align dassifations for all years to governmental adtivities. 2018 is restated for Phor Pedod Adjustement
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL INMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Districi-wide Chaoges in Net Position, based on S1atement of Activides

Last Ten Fiseal Years - (unandiied)

209 2018 2017 2016 2018 - 2014 2013 2012 a1 2010
Expenses
Govemmentl aouvities: ) :
Genent govemment 4194237 § 3828917 § 3814458 5 3672661 § 3220478 § 3,180,590 § 2919928 § 365830 § 3862904 § 3000477
Community Services 20,310,745 18,047,246 18,599,633 17,237,889 15,359,833 15,036,116 14,704,572 14,936,896 15,608,163 15,237,986
Beach 2,141,695 1,848,969 1,802,103 1,689,472 1,517,855 1,363,718 1,144,073 1,145077° 1,267,913 1,252,733
" Inwemal servie's 3,306,507 3,053,400 ©L2947,302 2,972,060 2,503,958 2,267,111 1,792,360 1,949,861 1,979,196 1,766,735
Interest on fong-tean debr 35017 97,083 160,366 205,263 201,882 T 252,334 371,938 476,633 A37.360 . 592,288
Towigo vemmcntal activitics expenses 29,988.20) 217715615 27323862 35277345 22,804,006 22,108,923 20942774 21.774.299 23.176,538 21.017.239
Business-ypeacivines’ . T )
Utilities 10,428,137 10,113,371 5,129,775 9,781,165 9442666 9,029,675 8,480,954 8,404,350 BS563,015 8,815,457
Interest on long-teom debt - 136351 140463 154,186 167.830 180,505 193223 186.608 178631 207139 233416
Toul business-type activitics expenses 10.554.488 :10.253.834 9.883.961 9,948,695 2.623,171 9223798 =8,667.562 -8.582,981 8.775,154 9.049,873
Tow pomary govemment expenses 40.542.689 38.039.449 37.207.823 35726040 32.327177 31331723 29,610,333 30.357.2R0 31,951,602 30967.112
Program Revenues
Govemmental aoivities: )
Contial Servicss Costs (A equivalent pre-2012) 1,169,400 1,094,000 1,177,200 1,123,000 1,101,000 1,006,996 1,000,200 1,074,000 924,154 1,267,842
Chames for Servias ) < o : e : R )
s Community Services 17,765,644 14,743,788 16,820,165 15,596,222 10,485,799 10,634,172 10,900,298 10,435,232 11,625,020 12,151,940
Bad 1,492,687 1,266,613 1,065,013 1002518 989,602 1,032,621 980,240 568,277 5,307 600,280
Intemal Sé#vi&s 3304862 3,190,840 3114747 2935521 2.500.122 2.280.296 2045412 1,801,200 1964322 1,814,349
Total gove l agivitics 23.733593 20.293.250 32177127 20,657,261 15,136,523 15,016,085 14.926.150 13,968,709 14,962,803 14834411
Business-type agivities: o ‘ -
Charges for sewvices : : : .
Utilitics 12,785,742 11,925,557 11,813,169 11,158,119 10,851,123 10,434,118 9,767,475 9,127,958 « 8,485,161 8,031,694
Opeating Grints and . 1H0 o - : - . . - k - e - -
Tnf:l business-npe naivities revenue 12,787,182 111,935,557 11,813,169 11,158,119 10,851,123 10434.118 9,767,475 - 9,127,955 8,485.161 8,031,694
Towt pdmzi)' gdvérnmmt revenue 36519775 32,220,807 33,990,206 31,815,380 - 25,987,648 25450203 24,693,625 23,096,664 BTG 27,886,105
Net (Expense)/Revenus : ’ - ’ ’ . s
Govemmental activities (6,255,608) (7,460,365 G,146,735). (5,120,089 (7,667,483) (7.092,840) (6.016621) (7,805,590 (8,213,735 7,082,828
Business-rype activitics . 2.232.694 1,671,723 1.929.308 1,200.924 1,227,952 1.211.330 1.099.913 544,974 (289,993} { 995.172)_
Toral primary govemment et (expense)/cevenuc (4.022.934) {3.808,642) -(3.217,537) (3,910,660% {6.439,531) (3,881,521 {4.916,708 {7.260.616) (8,303,728) (8,081,001,
General Reveaues and Other Changes in Net Position .
Goveramental activities
Taxes ’
Propey taxes 1,622,486 1,546,575 1,476,148 1,408,519 1,371,337 1,203,676 1,307,7 15 1,325,436 1,094,166 796,482
Combined tases 1,690,222 1,637,350 1,484,830 1,487,986 1,369,950 1,277,567 1,205,091 1,106,183 1,101,055 1,136,483
Fadlity Fees - Community Serviees 5,787,078 5,199,206 5973,914 5,095,248 6,018,616 6,024,564 5,962,384 5,919,707 6,067,022 5,126,716
Fadlity Fees: Bradh 969,333 972,316 775,337 771514 778,149 780,716 775,102 899,565 783,029 865,540
Investment eamings - 563,685 175,122 83,842 150,795 124,306 103,106 as,t16 193,562 102,384 212,006
Miserllancous . 304,245 190,578 310425 209,355 120,134 170,981 63,692 127,338 300,352 730,666
Capitat Grants and mntibutions 267 558,128 132,035 586,361 235,674 (407) 1,137,270 1,369,936 2,126,148 .
Trinsfers (120,000 T L. . [ . . . . .
Acounting Adjustments - . o - N (146.589) - - 1,787,393 / .
Total govemmental activities other changes 10717315 10.879.175 10,236,551 10795,838 10.024,166 9.503.614 10.539.370 10,041,727 13.368.149 8,807,983
Business-type activities :
Investment camings 282,484 71,280 60,132 154,162 81,996 61,007 55,666 86,010 - 151,646 189,786
Capital Grants and mntsibutions - 199,934 425,509 - 329,705 461,994 2,013,853 912,933 1,220938 1,476,174
MisccHaneous 15,066 50,020 17,730 42,764 (34,499) [Ehgl) 17,856 381 1,756 {223,785}
Transfers 120,000 . - . . . . . . .
Acounting Adjustmenrs - - - s - {81,501) - - 334217 .
Toral business-type agivities other dianges 417,550 327,234 303,371 196926 377,202 436,788 2087375 999,324 1714557 1,442,175
Chagge in Net Pogition .. . .
Govemmental aaivities 4461,707 '3,398,810 5,089,816 5,675,754 2,356,683 2,416,774, 4,522,749 3,136,137 5,154,414 1,785,155
Business-type azivities 2650244 1,998,957 2432579 1,406,350 1.605.154 1,648,108 3.187.268 1544298 1324564 433996
Totl primagy govemment $ 7111951 S 5397.767 § 7522395 § 7082104 - § 3961837 § - {038.882 § 7710037 § 4GEO433 S 6578978 § 2279351

of Agivit

Soure: Distric Comprehensive Annual Finandial Repont G
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Fund Bal of Gover

Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)

General Fund
- Non-spendable
Restricted
Committed
Unassigned
Total General Fund

Community Services
Spedal Revenue Fund
Non-spendable
Restricted
Assigned - operations
Capital Projeats - Assigned
Debt Service - Assigned
Total Comm. Services

Beach
Spedal Revenue Fund
Non-spendable
Restriced
Assigned - operations
Capital Projects - Assigned
Debt Servia: - Assigned
Total Beach

Board of Trustee action to aeate the Spedal Revenue, Capital Project and Debt Serviee Funds was effective July 1, 2016, and thus start the scparte commitments and assignments.

2018 is restated for Prior Period Adjustment,

| Funds

2019 . 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

s 196,742 § 24707 S 213462 $ 268,005 § 218623 § 237021 § 191,780 § 174,157 § 504,077 § 154,087
- . - . - N - 52,000 - 129,000

- - - 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 - -

3.568.844 3,098,079 1,648,787 1,151,988 882,664 754,000 294,887 357,734 111,697 332,687

§ 3765586 S  3,322.786 S 1,862,249 § 1819993 § 1.5013287 $ 1,391,021 § 886.667 5 983891 S 615774 S 615,774
s 936,311 § 868,600 § 878,949 § 751,640 $ 660,409 § 658,053 $ 705,131 § 685798 § 474069 § 439,059
135,993 78,157 77,136 76,674 86,421 86,332 87,261 101,617 130,467 232,434
12,261,649 9,053,712 9,364,056 . 7,026,514 4,610,925 5,279,561 5,275,226 3,949,021 3,752,098 5,033,576
. 2,327,477 2,423,806 2,061,541 - . - - - -

. - 51,553 27,394 2,111 - - - § - - -
$ 13,333,953 § 12379499 § 12.771,341 . § 9918480 S 5357755 $§ 6,023.946 $ 6067618 S 4.736,436. § 4,356,634 § 5.705,069
— R e TR

$ 34,532 § 47,075 § 30,328 § 19,614 § 23,520 § 19,328 § 17,222 § 18,265 § -5 5,068
1,000 1,000 1,000 - - - . - - -
1,774,846 1,330,016 1,038,909 1,040,136 1,084,266 1,652,877 1,514,417 1,467,463 1L1771,762 1,475,139

- 85,740 5,155 20,379 - - - - - -

- 4,606 3,104 1,572 - - - - - -

S 1810378 5 1468437 § 1078496 $ 1081701 § 1,107,786 $ 1,61%@5 § 1531639 § 1485728 § 1,177.762 S 1,480,207
o
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Chéngcs in Fund Balﬁnccs of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years ended June 30 (unaudited)

Revenues
Taxes
Charges for Seeviaes
Fadlity Fees
Centeal Serviaes Charges
Operating Grants
Investment Barnings
Misaellaneous
Total Revenues
:
Expenditures
Genceral Government:
General Fund - carrent
Capital Outlay
Recreation:
Comm unity Services < aurrent
Community Services - Capital Projeas
Community Serviges - Debt Sexvice
Beach - carrent
Beadh - Capital Projeas
Beadh - Debt Serviee
Total Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers In

Transfer (Out)

Sale of assets

Insurance Proaceds

Capital Grants

Washoe Co Tax Refund

Total Other Souraes (Uses)

Net Changes in Fund Balance

2019

2018

2017

2016

2012 2011

2018 is restated for Pdor Pedod Adjustment. -

2015 2014 2013 2010
$ 3,323,633 § 3,174,544 $ 2,960,847 $ 2,984,992 § 2,747,287 $ 2,571,243 § 2512806 § 2,431,619 $ 2,195,221 § 2,203,067
19,241,331 15993401 17,886,620 16,598,740 11458401 11,560,555 11783415 10925809 11,990,328 11,665,220
6,797,806 6,737,396 6,754,489 6,760,224 6,796,765 6,805,280 6,737,486 6,819,272 . 6,850,050 - 5992256
1,169,400  1,004000 1,177,200 1,123,000 1,101,000  1,068996 1,000,200 1,074,000 924,154 1,267,842
17,000 17,000 17,000 19,880 17,000 106238 97,123 717,700 84,000 87,000
563,325 161,551 81,366 115,690 99,634 78,855 65,199 54,112 66,872 183,300
114,779 111,495 198,729 516,763 116224 111,315 72,307 75468 29,818 479521
31,227,364 27,280,387 - 20076251 28,119,289  22336,311 22302482  22.268,536", -21457,980 22,140,443 21,878,206
3,933,349 3,586,203 3,603,667 3,510,247 3,139,473 3,059,518 2,907,061 2,874,413 2,943,084 2,778,075
121,257 113,813 148,435 79,331 644,383 84,849 46,452 9,953 211,657 450,907
17,288,580 16,137,428  15919,950 14,853,575 13,019,001 12742330 12,458,356 12,577,779 13,185,666 12,927,136
6,043500 3905926 3633210 2,344,198 2832606 2,266,640 2094299 2785667 7,058,131 = 3,144,892
381,401 1,285,340 1,284,257  1,283074 1,761,635 1,758,931 2,239,198 2,271,093 = 2352479 2422769
1,906,516 1,619,746 1,587,259  1,493554  1,368428 1,226,285 1,026,756 1,028,133 1,147,809 1,115,204
284,298 221,248 256,161 319,152 695,822 167,375 - 550,397 7,196 138,173 122,173
6,241 6,237 6,215 6,189, 276,005 277,192 133,177 133,893 245237 274,998
29964942 26875941 26439,163  23,889.320 23,737,353 21,583,120 21455696 - 21,688,127 277282236 23,236,154
474,356 800,000 - . - - T . - -
(120,000) - - - - - - - - -
40,159 88,415 141,216 37,016 3,910 67,213 (8,615) 51,531 273,969 179,333
50,300 - - - - - - - - -
31,958 156,775 113,615 586,361 235,674 @07y 1,137,270 1,369,936 2,126,748 -
. - - - - - (694,817 {280,460) - (270,102)
476,773 1,045,190 254 831 623,377 239,584 66,806 433,838 1,141,007 2400,717 {90,769)
$ 1,739,195 $ 1458636 $ 2,801,919 .$ 4853346 §(1,161,458) § 786,068 - $ 1246678 _$ 910,860 . § (2,741,076) '§ (1,448,717}
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Real Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)

Taxable Ratio Of Total

' Real Propetty " Direat Assessed Value
Fiscal Assessed Tax Estimated To Total Estimated
Year Ended Value ' Rate Acual Value . " Actual Value

2019 $ 1,666,387,475 0.1224 S 4,761,107,071 35%
2018 1,623,315,601 0.1182 4,638,044,574 35%
2017 1,532,012,733 0.1183 4,379,750,666 35%
2016 1,484,624,556 0.1269 4,241,784,446 35%
2015 1,456,,574,018I 0.1157 4,161,640,051 35%
2014 1,392,531,036 01105 3,978,660,103 35%
2013 : 1,374,297,099 0.1153 3,926,563,140  35%
2012 1,368,961,464 0.1129 - 3,911,318,469 35%

2011 1,448,979,941 0.0806 4,139,942,689 - 35%
2010 1,580,606,324 0.0755 4,516,018,069 35%

SOURCE: State of Nevada Department of Taxation

(Washoe County implemented a Coﬁnty—wide 15% reduction of assessed valvation in 2010)
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Direct and Overlapping Tax Districts

Last Ten Fiscal Years Ended June 30 (unaudited)

Indine Village GID-Direct
Ovetlapping-
Washoe County
Washoe Coimty School District
North Lake Tahoe Fire District
State of Nevada

Total Rate Per $100 assessed valuation

2010

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
$ 01224 § 01182 $ 01183 § 01269 $ 01157 § 01105 § 0G1153 § . 0.1129 0.0806 0.0755
1..3917 1.3917 1.3917 13917 1.3917 1.3917 1.3917 1.3917 1.3917 1.3917
1.1385 1.1385 1.1385 1.1385 1.1385 1.1385 1.1385 1.1385 1.1385° 1.1385
0.6291 0.6291 0.6291 0.6291 0.6291 0.6291 0.6414 0.5525 0.5389 0.5275
0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 . 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700 0.1700
$ 34517 § 34475 § 34476 § 34562 § 34450 § 34398 8§ 34569 § 33656 § 3.3197 -§ 3.3032

SOURCE: Nevada Dept. of Taxation - Total Property Tax Rates by Taxing Unit
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Principal Property Taxpayers
Cutrent Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago (unaudited)

N

Number

' 2019 % of Total 2010 % of Total
Taxpayer ‘ Type of Entity of Parcéls Assessed Value Assessed Value Assessed Value Assessed Value Rank
Top Ten (Current Yeat):
Hyatt Equities LLC - Hotel/Casino 2 $ 27,046,642 1.58% $§ 22,361,551 1.54% 1
Tahoe Estates LLC Residential Property 2 11,424,625 0.67% 5,074,698 0.35% 9
Ponderosa Ranch LLC Residential Propetty 22 11,159,232 0.65% 11,134,369 0.77% 3
Cascade Beach LLC Residential Property 2 12,426,966 0.72% '
1145 Lakeshore Boulevard Residential Property 1 10,278,475 0.60%
SF PadficLLC Residential Property 1 8,588,089 0.50%
Lakeshore T'rust Residential Property 1 8,533,838 0.50% 7,385,207 0.51% 5
Ashley 2012 Family Trust/Peno Bottom Residential Property. 2 7,264,391 - 0.42% 4,798,769 0.33% 10
Andtreas Bedhtolsheim Residential Propetty 4 6,801,062 0.40% a
HTS Ground Lake Tahoe INC Residential Property 60 6,630,691 0.39% 5,467,926 0.38% 6
In Prior Top Ten: .
Pondersona Ranch Stables, LLC . Residential Property 1 12,232,203 0.84% 2
David A Dufficld Trust Residential Pkoperty 6 7,815,728 0.54% 4
KWS Nevada Residential LLC Residential Propetty 3 5,382,782 0.37% 7
Lacey Family Trust/ 1041 Realty Trust ~ Residential Property 1 . 5,317,696 0.37% 8

o $ 110,154,011 641% § 86,970,929 6.00%

Total IVGID Community $1,717,224 973 100.00% 1000000

SOURCE: Washoe County Assessors Office
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Tax Levies, Collections and Delinquencies - Washoe County as a Whole (In Thousands)
Last Ten Fiscal Yeats (unaudited)

’ Total Taxes
Total Collected
Fiscal Year Cutrent Percent of  Delinquent  Cumulative as a % of
Ending Net Tax. Levy Tax Taxes Net Levy
June 30, Levy Roll Collected Collected Collected Collected Roll
2019 500,623 $ 498,311 99.55% § - 498,311 99.54%
2018 473,365 471,229 99.55% 1,745 472,974 99.92%
2017 452,327 449,930 99.47% 2,295 452,225 99.98%
2016 440,185 438,074 99.52% 2,093 440,167 100.00%
2015 424,115 421,125 99.30% 2,983 424,108 100.00%
. 2014 411,260 407,469 99.08% 3,787 411,256 100.00% .
2013 411,058 405,977 98.76% 5,075 411,052 100.00%
2012 422,799 416,849 98.59% 5,947 422,796 106.00%
2011 458,717 451,994 98.53% 6,720 458,714 100.00%
2010 504,823 495 281 - 98.11% 9,539 504,820 100.00%
SOURCE: Washoe County Comptroller's Office
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years (vnaudited)

Percentage - Petcentage

.Govetnmental-Type Activities: - Business:Type Adivities; Gross Payable by ' Payable by
G.0. & General < T : :
Fiscal Revenue Obligation Revenue General Bonded Property  Pledged Debt

Year Ended  Pledged Only Total Pledged Obligation Total Debt  Taxes  Revenues Population _Per Capita
2019 $ 1,498,000 $ - § 1,498,000 § 1,144,565 $ 3,464,361 § 4,608,926 $ 6,106,926 0% 100% 9087 § 672
2018 1,848,000 : - 1,848000 1,346,488 3772116 5118604 6,966,604 0% 100% 9087 767
2017 2,190,000 845,000 3,035;000 1,542,263 4,072,102 5,614,365 - 8,649,365 0% 100% 9087 952
2016 2,523,000 - 1,635000 4158000 1732078 4364517 6096595 10254595 0% 100% 9087 1,128
2015 2,847,000 2,395,000 5,242,000 1,916,115 4,649,552 6,565,667 11,807,667 0% 100% 9087 1,299
2014 3,901,000 3,125,000 7,026,000 2,094,548 4,927,395 7,021,943 14,047,943 0% 100% 9087 1,546
2013 4,925,000 3,825,000 8,750,000 2,267,548 5,198,228 7,465,776 16,215,776 0% 100% 9087 - 1,785
2012 5495000 5195000 10,690,000 2435281  3,495379  5930,660 16,620,660 - 0% 100% 9087 1,829
2011 6,045,000 6,520,000 12,565,000 2,597,909 3,483,477 6,081,386 18,646,386 0% 100% 9087 - 2,052
2010 6,880,000 7,795,000 14,675,000 2,755,584 4,142,174 6,897,758 21,572,758 0% 100% 9087 2,374

SOURCE: Indine Village General Im provement Distrct Annual Indebtedriess/Debt Management Reports/Restated for change in dassification
of the Community Services and Beach activities from Business-type to Governmental Type as of July 1, 2015.

Note: All outstanding bonds arry a revenue pledge, some also carty a secondary General Obligation pledge:
However, no tax levy is made to fund debt service because net revenues are suffident to meet these obligations.
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- INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

OUTSTANDING OVERLAPPING GENERAL OBLIGATION INDEBTEDNESS
Last ten fiscal years (unaudited)

Presently
Self-Supported - Asof
General General Percent June 30, 2019
Obligation Obligation Applicable * Applicable
Indebtedness Indebtedness Indine Village Net Debt °
Washoe County - $ 131,016,000 § 39,293,000 9.86900% $ 9,052,141
Washoe County School Distr 735,198,000 - 9.86900% 72,556,675
State of Nevada _ 1,284,715000 311,203,000 1.39064% 13,538,025
Total 2,150,929,000 350,496,000 95,146,841
Indine Village GID 6,101,609 6,101,609 -
Total $§ 2157.030,609 8§ 356,597,609 $ 952146i841
Appliable Net Debt June 30: .
2018 $ 99,064,878
2017 s ' 77,387,251
2016 73,677,678
2015 79,052,199
2014 : 92,762,454
2013 . 96,542,090
2012 94,180,056
2011 ~ 90,743,574
2010 93,265,052

- *Percentage Applicable based on Assessed Valuation as reported by the Nevada Department of Taxation

SOURCE: Washoe County Comptrollers Office and Nevada Department of Taxation

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that windde, at least in part, with geographic

boundardes of the District. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those

_ ovedapping governments that is bome by the property taxpayers of the Indine Village General Improvement District.
This process recognizes that, when considedng the govemnment's ability to issue and repay long-term ‘
debr, the entire debt burden bome by the property taxpayers should be taken into acount.

However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for

repaying the debt, of each overapping govemment.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Utility Fund Net Piedged Revenues
Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)

Other

Utility Less: Net _ Debt

Fiscal Service Operating Revenues Available Debt Service
Year Charges Expenses (Expenses) Revenue Service Coverage
2019 12,785,742 § 7,274,328 $ 297,550 § 5,808,964 643,134 9.03
2018 11,925,557 7,139,740 127,300 4,913,117 643,135 7.64
2017 11,813,170 6,783,853 78,554 5,107,871 643,133 7.94
2016 11,158,119 6,804,140 149,326 4,503,305 636,808 7.07
2015 10,851,123 6,549,802 20,591 4,321,912 636,781 6.79
2014 10,434,‘1 18 6,270,919 56,295 4,219,494 636,956 6.62
2013 9,767,475 5,867,114 73,522 3,973,883 965,108 4.12
2012 9,127,955 5,839,100 86,391 3,375,237 1,010,929 3.34
2011 8,485,161 5,845,108 159,402 2,799,455 1,013,922 2.76
2010 8,051,694 5,446,570 (33,999) 2,571,125 1,016,046 2.53

Notes- Details regarding the Distric’s outstanding debt can be found in the

notes to the finandal statements.

depredation or amortization.

Expenses do not indude interest,

Debt service represents all outstanding debt of the Udlity departments.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Community Services and Beach Fund Net Pledged Revenues
Last Ten Fiscal Yeass (unaudited)

1 Less: Other Net Debt
" Fiscal Operating ~  Operating Revenues Available Debt Service
Year Revenues Expenses k (Expenses) Revenue Service Coverage
2019 §  26,024657 § 19,195,096 § 112,777 ' § 6,942,338 -§ 387,642 17.91
2018 22,730,797 17,757,174 = 71,591 5,045,214 1,291,577 3.91
2017 24,617 436 17,507,218 29,686 7,139,904 1,290,472 5.53
2016 20,666,327 16,347,129 69,701 4,388,899 1,289,263 3.40
2015° 18,272,166 14,392,676 173,933 4,053,423 2,028,342 2.00
2014 18,472,073 14,002,615 196,763 4,666,221 - 2,025:584 2.30
2013 18,618,024 13,485,112 90,791 5,223,703 2,353,561 2:22
12012 17,771,350 13,605,912 153,785 4,319,223 2,385,541 1.81
2011 18,867,490 13,871,398 335,293 5,331,385 2,586,856 2.06
2010 17,744,476 13,408,419 - 813,979 5,150,036 2,682,739 1.92

Debt service represents all outstanding'debt of the Community Serviee and Beach Funds,
because proceeds from some issues were used by both funds:
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures
To Governmental and Business Type Expenditutes/Expenses

For the Iast 10 Years (unaudited)

Governmental Business

Type Type

Debt Debt

Service Setvice
Year Expenditures Expenditures
2019 3 387,642 $ 643,134
2018 1,291,577 643,135
2017 1,200,472 643,135
2016 1,289,263 636,808
2015 2,028,342 636,781
2014 2,025,584 636,956
2013 2,353,561 965,108
2012 2385541 1,010,929
2011 2,586,856 1,013,922
2010 2,682,739

1,016,046

Total
Distact
Debt
Setvice

Expenditures

$ 1,030,776
1,934,712

1,933,607

1,926,071
2,665,123
2,662,540
3,318,669

3,396,470

3,600,778
3,698,785

Ratio Ratio
Debt Debt
Total Total Serviee to Service to
Governmental Business -Govermnmental Business
Type Type Type Type
Expenditures Expenses Expenditures Expenses
§ 28,795,542 8 10,554,488 1.35% 6.09%
25,781,941 10,113,371 5.01% 6.36%
25,261,963 9,729,775 5.11% 6.61%
24,654 345 9,901,095 5.23% 6.43%
23,737,353 9,442,666 8.54% 6.74%
21,583,120 9,029,675 9.39% 7.05%
21,455,696 8,480,954 10.97% 11.38%
21,688,127 8:404,350 11.00% 12,03%
27,282,236 8,568,015 9.48% 11.83%
23,236,154 8,815,457 11.55% 11.53%

SOURCE: Indine Village General Improvement Districc Comprehensive Annual Finandal Reports
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Statutory Debt Limitation

Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)

Fiscal Year ‘Outstanding and Additional
Ending Assessed Proposed General Statutory Debt
June 30, Valuation Debt Limit Obligation Debt Capadty

2019 1,666,387,475 § 833,193,738 $ 6,106,926 827,086,812
2018 1,623,315,601 811,657,801 6,966,604 804,691,197
2017 1,532,912,733 766,456,367 8,649,365 757,807,002
2016 1,484,624,556 742,312,278 10,254,595 732,057,683
2015 1,456,574,018 728,287,009 11,807,667 716,479,342
2014 1,392,531,036 696,265,518 14,047,943 682,217,575
2013 1,374,297,099 687,148,550 16,215,766 670,932,784
2012 1,368,961,464 684,480,732 - 16,620,660 667,860,072
2011 1,448,979,041 724,489,971 18,646,386 705,843,585
2010 1,580,606,324 790,303,162 21,572,758 768,730,404

SOURCE: State of Nevada Department of Taxation
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Demographic Statistics

Year Population

2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010

2000

9087
9087
9087
9087
9087
9087
9087
9087
9087
! - 9087

! 9952

Based on actual Census Data

. County
Personal Housing

46.1 $40,322 7,954

42.1 $36,658 7,664

. Occupied
Housing Ugi

3,924

4,176

Best available unemployment data, a tate is not determined for our itnmediate area.

84

Housing
Seasonal

Reno-Spatks

Unemployment
Rate?

Use

3,353

2,957

4.0%
3.5%
4.0%
5.9%
6.4%
7.3%
9.8%
12.0%
13.0%
13.6%
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'

Principal Employers - Incline Village and Crystal Bay
Cutrent Fiscal Year and Past Years as Available (unaudited)

Ranking by Year

Emplover 2019 2018 2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

HYATT LAKE TAHOE RESORT
INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
GRAND LODGE CASINO AT HYATT (and predessors)
TAHOE BILTMORE
SIERRA NEVADA COLLEGE
RALEY'S

" NORTH LAKE TAHOE FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
TAHOE FOREST HOSPITAL HEALTH
WASHOE COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
ASSOCIATED SIERRA NORTH
CRYSTALBAY CLUB CASINO
ACE TOTAL SERVICES INC (Excel) 6
KELLY BROTHERS PAINTING INC. 10

L R L TR R
WSV B W e
[ IR I I R SN

—
=)
—
~ =)
w

CAL_NEVA LODGE

Single Residence Projeat Employers: -
BOC-NEVADA, INC.

BLUE ROCK DEVELOPMENT

SOURCE: Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation (DETR)
DETR indicates the methodology for determining rankings has changed year on year.
Data forall years is not available.
Data for percentage to total employment is not available.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Position and Full Time Equivalent Personnel Summary

Community Services and All Other Activitics

For the last Ten Years (unaudited)

Golf

Tadlities

Parks & Reacation

Macketing

Other Reacation

Total Community

Scrvia:

Beadh

Administration
Enginc;dng
Ficet

Buildings

Utilities

Disteicr Wide

Budget vearending Junc 30
Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Scason/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Totad FTE

Seasonal/Pazt Time Positions
Season/Pact Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Toial FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Secason/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Part Time FTE

- Full Time FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal/ Pact Time Positions
Season/Part Time FIE

Full Time FTE

Total FIE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Patt Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Towl FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Pact Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Pazt Time FTE

Full Timc FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal /Part "[im e Positions
Season/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Tatal FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Pan Time FTE

Full Time FTE .

Toal FTE

Seasonal /Part Time Positions
Season/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Total FTE

Seasonal/Part Time Positions
Season/Pagt Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Towl FTE

Seasonal/Pan Time Positions
Season/Part Time FTE

Full Time FTE

Total FTE

2019 018 Zm7 2016 2015 204 203 202 2w 2010
1228 1138 1179 1052 1072 975 1035 723 685 680
4.2 384 384 350 370 383 368 274 2001 288
114 116 110 79 7.2 6.7 68 699 8.1 96
526 500 494 429 442 420 436 3439 3716 384
0.3 0.3 0.3 1.7 17 165 2.0 1.8 1.5 0.5
02 01 0.1 1.2 12 36 1.0 10 07 o1
1.2 13 12 1.1 1.1 3.4 20 11 1.0 2.5
14 1.4 13 23 23 2.0 3.0 21 1.8 26
2857 2815 2735 2540 2540 2470 1930 2160 . 2250 2180
577 544 506 467 460 496 336 418 393 307
167 164 152 145 144 117 98 128 96 105
744 708 658 6Lz 604 613 434 546 489 502
915 915 910 1023 1034 943 100L.8 1009 1033 1065
239 249 248 250 255 259 277 284 286 298
1.0 101 102 103 0.8 90 118 118 123 143
349 360 359 351 353 340 305 404 . 400 444
1.0 20 2.0 20 2.0 0.0 2.0 2.0 20 20
0. 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.7 0.7 0.7 07
31 28 28 29 29 3.0 20 3.0 3.0 3.0
32 3.1 3.1 32 32 30 27 37 3.7 37
Afer 2013 Induded 570 590 530 590
in Ski & Golf 144 143 © 181 189
: 40 50 53 56
184 193 234 245
48 4.8 48 4.8 2.8 0.8 31 3.2 32 Priorto 2011
1.8 1.8 1.8 18 14 01 1.1 1.6 1.6 Other Reqreation were
1.4 1.4 0.9 1.0 1.6 1.6 18 24 1.4 induded in Parks
32 32 27 28 30 1.7 29 4.0 3.0 and Receeation.
5143 5020 4975 AGT.0  469.0 - 4561 4624 4561 4595 4545
1262 1216 1177 1096 11t 1145 1153 1164 1161 | 1182
417 409 385 347 341 354 382 417 412 464
167.9 1625 1562 1443 1452 1499 1535 1581 157.2 1645
1095 974 930 969 940 BSO  881  90.6 866 956
212 0 187 184 180 173 143 132 124 112 144
4.6 3.9 39 4.0 3.0 28 21 25 31 37
258 226 223 220 203 171 153 149 143 181
40 40 0.0 1.0 1.0 20 20 3 40 40
1.1 15 00 0.5 04 0.4 0.3 0.9 1.2 1.2
222 218 228 227 207 . 226 207 202 212 212
233 233 228 232 211 250 210 211 224 224
1.0 10 1.0 1.0 10 10 1.0 10 1.0 1.0
0.3 0.3 0.3 03 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
48 3.8 3.8 3.8 2.8 28 2.8 28 2.8 28
5.1 4.1 4.1 4.1 3.1 3.1 31 31 30 3.0
0.0 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
7.0 7.0 .70 7.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 6.0 60 7.0
7.0 7.0 70 70 6.0 60 6.0 ] 6.0 7.0
1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
05 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5
6.0 50 5.0 50 50 4.0 40 40 40 40
6.5 55 5.5 5.5 5.5 45 45 4.5 45 45
4.0 5.0 50 5.0 3.0 3.0 20 20 1.0 2.0
24 34 5.4 33 1.2 1.0 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.7
322 312 312 312 312 312 302 312 313 37
346 346 346 345 324 322 309 3.9 313 324
6338 6104 603.5 5728 5690 5521 5565  553.7 5611 5581
1517 1460 1403 1322 1308 1310 1303 1312 1292 1352
1186 1136 1122 1084 1028 1048 1040 1084  109.6 1168
2705 259.6  252.5 2336 2358 2343 2300 2388 2520

2406

Sourax Indine Village General Improvement Distriat Operating Budget for Authorized Positions.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

User Statistics, Last Ten Fiscal Years
Total number of users (unaudited)

Progtam Unit Measured
Water Loations
Sewer Loations
Refuse Loations

Championship Course  Rounds played

Mountain Course Rounds played

Beach Individual visits
Tennis Individual visits
Skier . Individual visits
Reacation Center Individual visits

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
4,269 4270 4,251 4,243 4,234 4,229 4223 4,217 4217 4,216
4,180 4178 4,160 4,152 4,144 4,139 4,124 4,121 4,118 4,116
4,345 4,345 4,338 4,177 4,162 4138 4,151 4,149 4233 4233

21,650 23,139 21,353 22,881 23,142 23,784 23,744 22,860 20,417 21841
16,062 17,111 15,209 15,687 14,983 14,570 13,129 13,556 13,386 15,748
192321 189,291 186,146 171,772 172,628 173963 165089 165387 155671 ' 128241
13,082 13,630 14,683 14,823 14,129 13,337 13,009 14,398 14,080 12,333
130922 120847 160613 167,064 84,568 93935 103,397 98,818 131,371 126,867
120831 123561 121,598 115662 126,799 130,887 125294 124356 119459 125629

SOURCE: Indine Village General Improvement District
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Budgeted Facility Fees per paccel, Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)

Program 2019 2018 <2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Ski $ 29 $ 83) (36) $ 13 8 2n s (20) $ (88) $ ‘35 § 151 § 22
Tennis , 20 20 18 16 9 21 6 18 15 19
Parks ) 118 117 117 .97 108 86 102 200 120 131
Reaeation Center 262 268 269 197 241 204 241 112 118 106
Championship Golf 98 97 83 126 81 75 87 47 30 38
Mountain Golf 63 T 62 54 69 31 29 40 20 22 21
Beaches 125 125 100 100 100 100 100 115 100 113
Youth 25 v 26 26 24 21 20 15 25 22 22
Seniors 21 20 20 19 12 19 16 20 23 26
Adult Programs - - - - 1 1 2 2 3 4
Catering - . . - - 13) ®) 26 © (©)
Fadlitics 57 56 57 47 46 52 35 33 48 33
Reserves for Recreation - - - - - 49 75 40 - -
Golf/Tennis/Ski Bonds - - - - 85 85 85 85 85 85
Ski Lodge Bond - 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 110
Defensible Space C12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12
Coverage sales - - - - - - - .- (27) -
Other/Undassified - - - - - - - ~ ~ -
Total $ 830 § 830 § 830 - § 830 § 830 $ 830 § 830 -§ . 830 % 830 $ 736
Total Collected (in 1,000's) 8 6,758 § 6,746 3 6,747 $ 6,746 . § 6746 § 6,742 - § . 6,737 § 6,819 § 6,850 $ 5,992

Bradketed amounts represent a venue that does not wlled, but rather puts back an amount per parcel into the total for other venues to use the proceeds for operations.

Coverage sales in 2011 refate to the spedficappliation of proceeds designated to reduce capital wsts in Community Serviee venues.

The Fadlity Fee an be a resource for operating expenses, debt service or cpital purdiases. It is set annually by the Board of Trustees.

SOURCE: Indine Village General Improvement District
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Water and Sewer Single Family Base Rates

Fiscal Water  Consumption Sewer  Consumption
Year Monthly Rate Per Monthly Rate Per

6/30 Base Rate 1,000 gallons Base Rate 1,000 g'alldns
2019 $§ 3209 § 0.93 § 549 § 3.20
2018 30.84° 0.93 52.76 3.10
2017 29.82 0.95 51.45 3.00
2016 28.86 0.97 49.83 2.90
2015 28.10 1.35 47.95 2.79
2014 2703 1.32 41.85 2.68
2013 27.62 1.28 39.31 2.60
2012 27.62 1.28 39.31 2.60
2011 27.89 1.24 37.52 2.50
2010 2756 1.20 35.03 2.40

The District charges based on pay for what you use
Rate changes are considered for implementation May each year.
In 2013 the changes were not effective until July 19, 2013.
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INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

Water Sold by Customer Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years (unaudited)
(in millions of gallons)

Fiscal

Year Residential Commeraal Total
2019 606 259 865
2018 633 282 915
2017 604 256 860
2016 594 255 849
2015 634 258 892
2014 673 292 965
2013 701 300 1,001
2012 626 312 938
2011 620 239 859
2010 636 253 889

Source: IVGID Utdlities Billing Department
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INCLINE VILLAGE
GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT

COMPLIANCE SECTION
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CPAs & BUSIMESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Perforimed in Accardance with Government Auditing Stondards

To the Board of Trustees
Incline Village General Improvement District
Incline Village, Nevada

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Incline Village General improvement District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 18, 2019.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

in planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal
control over financial reporting {(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contral

What inspires yau, inspires us, Let’s talk. | eidehailly.com
5441 Kielzka Lr., Sto. 150 Reno, NV 895112094  T775.689.9100 F 776.689.9299  EOE
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ovet financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during cur audit we did not identify any deficiercies in internaf control that we consider 1o
be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whethger the District's financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinioh. The results of our tests disclosed ne instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standords,

Purpose of this Report

The purpase of this report is solely to describe the scope of eur testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral par: of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal centroi and
compliance. Accordingly, this comimanication is not suitable for any other purpose,

é"'/&fza@ Le?®

Reno, Nevads
Movember 18, 2018
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CPAs & DUSINESS ADVISORS

Auditor's Comments

To the Board of Trustees
incline Village General Improvement District
incline Viliage, Nevada

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-

type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Incline Village General

Improvement District (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to

the financial statements, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the District failed

to comply with the specific requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below. However, our audit except as cited below
was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we

performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention regarding the District’s

noncompliance with the requirements of Nevada Revised Statutes cited below, insofar as they relate to

accounting matters.

Current Year Statute Compliance
The required disclosure on compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative

Code is contained in Note 1E to the financial statements. In addition, the District recorded a prior period
adjustment as described in Note 22 to ensure compliance with NRS 354.6215.

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance
The District reported no instances of noncompliance with significant constraints on its financial

administration during the year ended June 30, 2018.

Prior Year Recommendations
There were no findings for the year ended june 30, 2018.

Current Year Recommendations

We noted no material weaknesses and reported no significant deficiencies in internal control for the
current year.

&MZL?’D

Reno, Nevada
November 18, 2019
Whaf inspires you, inspires us. Let’s talk, | eidehailly.com
5441 Kislzke Lo., Sto. 150 Rono, NV 89511:2094  T775.680.9100  F 775.689.9299  EOE
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Washoe County Purchasing Office
Post Office Box 11130
Reno, Nevada 89520-0027
Phone (775) 328-2281 Fax (775) 325-8062

www.washoecounty.us

“Dedicated to Excellence in Public Service”

WASHOE COUNTY REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
#3066-19

INDEPENDENT AUDIT SERVICES
WASHOE COUN TY, including

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA OPEB TRUST

Release Date: Monday October 1, 2018
By: Jenny Perry, Buyer

Sealed proposals shall be accepted until
3:00 P.M. PT on

Wednesday, November 14, at the
Washoe County Purchasing Office,
1001 E. Ninth St., Bldg. D, Rm. D200
Reno, NV 89512-2845
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" Washoe County RFP No. 3066-19
Independent Audit Services

INTRODUCTION AND NATURE OF SERVICES REQUIRED

. General Information

The Washoe County Purchasing Office is currently requesting written proposals to
establish a list of qualified firms of certified public accountants with expertise in one or
- multiple fields of the entities listed in this RFP. The County then intends to negotiate the
award of multiple contracts with qualified proposers within their respective expertise to
audit the financial statements of Washoe County and the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB

Trust (OPEB Trust) on behalf of the Washoe County Board of Commissioners and the -

Board of Trustees for the OPEB Trust (hereinafter “the entities”).

These audits are to be performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,
the standards set forth for financial audits in the U.S. Government Accountability Office’s

(GAO) Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United

States, and the audit reqmrements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requlrements cost principles, and audit requirements for federal
awards, as well as the applicable provisions of NRS-354.624.

There is no expressed or implied obligation for the entities to reimburse responding firms
for any expenses incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request.

. Term of Engagement A
A three year contract is contemplated for the fiscal years endmg June 30, 2019 through

June 30, 2021, subject to the review and recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
satisfactory negotiation of terms (including a price acceptable to both the entities and the

selected firm/s), with the option of auditing the financial statements for 2 subsequent fiscal
years.

. Scope of Work to be Performed

The -entities desire the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of its
governmental activities, its business-type activities, each of its major funds, and its
aggregate remaining fund information in conforrmty with generally accepted accounting
principles.

The entities also desire the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of its
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The auditor is not required to audit the supporting

schedules contained in the comprehensive annual financial report. However, the auditor is-

to provide an “in-relation-to” opinion on the supporting schedules based on the auditing

-procedures applied during the audit of the basic financial statements and the combining
and individual fund financial statements and schedules. The auditor is not required to audit
the introductory section of the report or the statistical section of the report (CAFR).

The auditor shall also be responsible for performing certain limited procedures involving
required supplementary information as mandated by generally accepted auditing standards.
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Washoe County RFP No. 3066-19
Independent Audit Services

For the entities requiring a Single Audit, the auditor is not required to audit the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards. However, the auditor is to provide an “in-relation-to”
report on that schedule based on the auditing procedures apphed during the audit of the
financial statements.

. Auditing Standards to be Followed

To meet the requirements of this request for proposal, the audits shall be performed in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards as set forth by the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the standards for financial audits set forth in the
U.S. Government Accountability Office’s Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, cost principles,
and audit requirements for federal awards, as well as the applicable provisions of NRS
354.624. :
. Reports to be Issued i ' -

Following the completion of the audits of the fiscal year’s financial statements, the auditor
shall issue:

1. A report on the fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles, including, for entities requiring a Single
Audit, an opinion on the fair presentation of the supplementary schedule of
expenditures of federal awards in relation to the audited financial statements.

2. A report on compliance and internal control over financial reportmg based on an audit
of financial statements.

3. Areport on compliance and internal control over comphance applicable to each major
federal program for the entities where a Single Audit is required.

4. A report on compliance with the applicable provisions of NRS 354 or other Nevada
Revised Statutes or Nevada Administrative Code requiring such disclosure.

In the required report[s] on compliance and internal controls, the auditor shall communicate

any significant deficiency or material weakness found during the audit. A significant
deficiency shall be defined as a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies,
that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report
financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such
that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected. A material
weakness shall be defined as a significant deficiency or combination of significant
deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of
the financial statements will not be prevented or detected. Significant deficiencies that are
also material weaknesses shall be identified as such in the report. In addition, the following
conditions shall be reported:

114



Washoe County RFP No. 3066-19

Independent Audit Services

Auditor’s comments on:

Statute Compliance

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance

Prior Year Recommendations

Current Year Recommendations

Nevada Revised Statute 354.6115

Any other reports/reviews required by Statute or regulations

NI NERE S

Control deficiencies discovered by the auditors that are neither significant deficiencies nor
material weaknesses shall be reported in a separate letter to management, which shall be
referred to in the report[s] on compliance and internal controls. A control deficiency shall
be deemed to have occurred whenever the demgn or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or.detect misstatements on a timely basis.

The report on.compliance and internal controls shall include all material instances of
noncompliance. All nonmaterial instances of noncompliance shall be reported in a separate
management letter, which shall be referred to in the report on compliance and internal
controls.

Irregularities and 1llegal acts - Auditors shall be required to make an immediate, written
report of all irregularities and illegal acts or indications of illegal acts of which they become
aware to the following parties: Washoe County Manager Assistant County Manager for
Finance and Administration, Comptroller, and Internal Auditor.

Reporting to the audit committee — Auditors shall assure themselves that the Washoe
County Audit Committee or the Board of the OPEB Trust are informed of each of the
following:

1. The auditor’s responsibility under generally accepted auditing standards
2. Significant accounting policies

3. Management judgments and accounting estimates

4. Significant audit adjustments

5. Auditor’s judgments about the quality of the entity’s accounting principles
6. Other information in documents containing audited financial statements

7. Disagreements with management

8. Management consultation with other accountants

9. Major issues discussed with management prior to retention

10. Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

-

.- Special Considerations

Washoe County will send its comprehensive annual financial report to the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada for review in their Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting program. It is anticipated that the
auditor will not be required to provide special assistance to Washoe County to meet the
requirements of that program.
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The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards /'and related auditor’s report, as well as
the reports on compliance and internal controls over compliance applicable to each major
federal program may be included in the comprehensive annual financial report for some

. entities and issued separately for other entities. The auditor will be required to file,

electronically, the Data Collection Form, SF-SAC, with the Federal Audit Clearing House.

A list of findings and other weaknesses from each entity’s most recent financial statement
. audit, as well as a list of findings from internal audits conducted during the most recent

fiscal period to be audited can be made available upon request.

. Working Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers

All working papers must be retained, at the auditor’s expense, for a minimum of three (3)
years from the completion date of the audit, unless the firm is notified in writing by the
entities of the need to extend the retention period. The auditor will be required to make
working papers available, upon request, to the following parties or their designees:

1. Washoe County Board of County Commissioners, Audit Committee, Washoe County
Manager, Assistant County Manager for Finance and Administration, Comptroller,
Internal Auditor

2. Management or the Board of the OPEB Trust

3. U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO)

4. Parties designated by the federal or state governments as part of an audit quality review
process -

5. Auditors of entities of which the entities are a sub recipient of grant funds

6. Auditors of entities which are a component unit

In addition, the firm(s) shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor auditors and
allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to matters of continuing
accounting significance.

DESCRIPTION OF THE ENTITIES

. Washoe County

General: Washoe County is a political‘ subdivision of the State of Nevada and is governed
by a 5-member Board of County Commissioners. The County’s fiscal year begins on July
1 and ends on June 30.

Fund Structure: The County provides an array of regional and community services and
used the following fund types and number of individual funds in its financial reporting as
of June 30, 2018 (total number of funds includes component units). The number of funds
is subject to change as the services and structure of the County changes.,

General Fund 1
Special revenue funds 14
Debt service funds 2
Capital projects funds 4
Enterprise funds 3
Internal service funds 3
Investment trust fund 1
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Agency funds 13

Component Units: The County is defined, for financial reporting purposes, in conformity
‘with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s Codification of Governmental
Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, Section 2100. Using these criteria, a
component unit is included in the County’s financial statements. County management
identified the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) as a component unit for
inclusion in the County’s financial statements. The component unit has a June 30 ﬁscal
year end. :

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefit Plans/ Washoe County participates in the
Public Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS issues a separate financial report. Washoe
County provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for eligible employees through
its Retiree Health Benefit Program, a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan, and
participates in the State of Nevada’s Public Employee Benefit Plan (PEBP), an ‘agent
multiple- employer defined benefit OPEB plan. The Retiree Health Benefit Program is
administered through the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (OPEB Trust), created as
an irrevocable trust to fund and account for the participating employers’ costs of retiree
healthcare benefits pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 287.017. TMFPD also participates
in the OPEB Trust for its retiree health benefit plans. Actuarial services are provided by
Milliman. The OPEB Trust also has a June 30 fiscal year end. N

Budgetary Basis of Accounting: The County prepares its budget on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles.

Federal and State Financial Assistance: For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the
County’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards reported expenditures of $41
million. Federal award revenues budgeted for the 2018/2019 fiscal year total $57 million.

Joint Ventures:

1. Truckee Meadows Flood Management Authority, a joint powers authority formed to
regulate and control the waters of the Truckee River to reduce or mitigate flooding on
the behalf of the Truckee Meadows community. Participating entities include the cities
of Reno and Sparks and Washoe County.

Computer Systems: The County’s primary financial software system is SAP. The County
has used SAP since September 2003 SAP modules are utilized for the following functional
and process areas:

1. General ledger and financial accounting

2. Cost accounting including grants and capital projects

3. Fixed assets

4. Materials management including purchasing, encumbrance accounting, and
physical inventory
Accounts payable
Billing and accounts receivable
Human resources

NS
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8. Payroll

9. Employee self-service including working time entry, payroll and health benefits
data changes

10. Budget

11. Treasurer’s electronic banking and petty cash

12. Utility billing

13. Governance, risk and compliance module for maintaining user access controls

14. Workflow/online approvals

The SAP system uses both online real-time entry and batch processing. System security,
backups, installation of backups, and maintenance are provided by the County’s
Technology Services Department. There are no current plans to change financial software.

In addition to the primary financial system, several departments use various other software
providers for their operations. Data generated by such software includes information that
may be interfaced with the primary accounting system pertaining to revenues, cash receipts
and accounts receivable. These departments include (but are not limited to): Treasurer,
Assessor, Sheriff, District Attorney, Recorder, Community Services, Voters, District
Court, and Justice Courts.

Internal Audit Functions: The County maintains an internal audit function. The internal
audit function reports directly to the Assistant County Manager of Finance and
Administration and is staffed by one employee.

Availability of Prior Reports and Working Papers: Interested proposers who wish to
review prior years’ audit reports and management letters should contact the Washoe
County Purchasing Department at PO Box 11130, Reno, NV 89520. The County will use
its best efforts to make prior audit reports and supporting working papers available to
proposers to aid their response to this request for proposals. Comprehensive Annual
Financial Reports and Single Audit Reports can also be located at
http://www.washoecounty.us/comptroller.

. Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

General: Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District is a municipality of the State of
Nevada located in Washoe County. TMFPD is governed by the Board of Fire
Commissioners. The Washoe County Board of County Commissioners functions as the
Board of Fire Commissioners of TMFPD and TMFPD is considered a component unit of
Washoe County.

From July 1, 2000 through June 30, 2012, the City of Reno (City) operated the fire services
for TMFPD under an interlocal agreement for fire services and consolidation. TMFPD
continued to levy taxes within the district to maintain its own equipment and paid the City
monthly for services. TMFPD assumed operating control for fire services in the district as
of July 1, 2012, adding employees and operating programs in fiscal year 2011/2012 to
support the stand-up.
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In April, 2012, TMFPD assumed control of fire operations for the Sieljra Fire Perection
District (SFPD) under the terms of an interlocal agreement for fire services and
consolidation. All employees of SFPD became employees of TMFPD.

As of July 1, 2016, the SFPD was merged into the TMFPD.

Fund Structure: TMFPD has a June 30 fiscal year and uses the following fund types and
number of individual funds in its financial reporting as of June 30, 2018:

General Fund 1
Special revenue fund 1
Capital projects fund 1
Internal service funds 2

Budgetary Basis of Accounting: TMFPD prepares its budget on a basis consistent with
generally’accepted accounting principles. ,

Federal and State Financial Assistance: For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, TMFPD
did not have any federal award revenues. Fire district awards are highly dependent on
number and size of fires in the district so that award amounts can change materially year
over year.

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefit Plans: TMFPD participates in the Public
Employees’ Retirement System of Nevada (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple employer
defined benefit pension plan. PERS issues a separate financial report.

TMFPD provides other postemployment benefits (OPEB) for eligible employees through
the TMFPD Retiree Group Medical Plan, a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan.
The plan is administered through the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (OPEB Trust),
created as an irrevocable trust to fund and account for the participating employers’ costs of
retiree healthcare benefits pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 287.017. Actuarial services
are provided by Milliman.

Computer Systems: TMFPD utilizes Washoe County’s primary financial software, SAP,
for financial and personnel accounting. In January 2019, it is expected TMFPD will be
using Kronos as its personnel and payroll system.
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C. Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust

General: The Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (OPEB Trust) is a multiple employer,
irrevocable trust used to fund and account for the participating employers’ costs of retiree
healthcare benefits pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 287.017 and is located in Washoe
County, Nevada. The OPEB Trust is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees
appointed by the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners (BCC).

As of June 30, 2018, there were two participating employers in the OPEB Trust: Washoe
County, Nevada (County) and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD).

Washoe County’s Comptroller’s Office maintains the OPEB Trust books and supports the
OPEB Trustees.

Fund Structure: The OPEB Trust has a June 30 fiscal year and financial statements are
prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 74, Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.

Budgetary Basis of Accounting: The OPEB Trust prepares its budget on a basis consistent
with generally accepted accounting principles.

Federal and State Financial Assistance: N/A

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefit Plans: The OPEB Trust administers other
postemployment benefits (OPEB) for eligible employees of its participating employers.
Actuarial services are provided by Milliman.

III. TIME REQUIREMENTS

A. Proposal Calendar
The following is a list of key dates for the proposals:

Event Date
Distribution of RFP Monday, October 1, 2018
Pre-proposal Conference Monday, October 15, 2018
Deadline for Submitting Questions 5:00 PM PDT Friday, October 19, 2018
Responses to Questions On or about Tuesday, October 30, 2018
Proposal Closing 3:00 PM PST on Wednesday, November 14,
2018
Public RFP Opening 9:00 AM PST on Thursday, November 15, 2018
Bid Tab Posted to www.DemandStar.com 5:00 PM PST on Friday, November 16, 2018
Evaluations Completed On or about Monday, December 3, 2018
Recommendation to Award Agreement On or about Friday, December 14, 2018
Award by the Board of County Commissioners | January 2019, BCC agenda permitting
Implementation of Contract February 2019
10
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B.. Scheduling the Audit

- The County will have all records ready for audit and all management personnel avallable
to meet with the firm’s personnel in accordance with the attached schedule (EXHIBIT D)
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. A similar time schedule will be developed for
audits for future fiscal years.

Each of the following should be completed by the auditors no later than the dates indicated:

1. Interim work shall be completed by June 30%.-
2. The auditor shall provide by July 1 a detailed audit plan and a list of all schedules to be
~ prepared if not included on the attached schedule (EXHIBIT D).
3. The auditor shall complete all field work by the second Wednesday in October.
4. The auditor(s) shall have drafts of the audit report[s] and recommendations to
management available for review on or before October 23.

. Entrance Conferences, Progress Reportmg and Exit Conferences

At a minimum the following conferences are to be held on or before the dates indicated
below: -

1. Entrance conference with all key finance depaftment personnel and departrn_ent heads
of key offices or programs shall be held no later than the last business day in May. The
purpose of this meeting will be to discuss prior audit problems and the interim work to

be performed if not previously communicated. This meeting will also be used to
establish overall liaison for the audit and to make arrangements for work space and

other needs of the auditor.

2. Progress conference with key finance department personnel shall be held no later than
the third Wednesday in September.

3. Exit conference with key finance department personnel shall be held no later than the
fourth Wednesday in October. :

. Date Final Report Due

For the Washoe County audit, the Washoe County Comptroller Department, or appropriate
entity financial staff, shall prepare draft financial statements, notes and all required
supplementary schedules no later than the first Friday in October. The auditor shall provide
all recommendations, revisions and suggestions for improvement to the Comptroller by the
third Friday in October. Once all issues for discussion are resolved, the final financial
reports shall be completed by the Comptroller and the final auditor’s report(s) shall be
delivered to the Comptroller by October 23.

For the OPEB Trust, the final report schedule is as noted in Exhibit D.

ASSISTANCE TO BE PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR AND REPORT
PREPARATION

. Comptroller Department and Clerical Assistance

The Washoe County Comptroller’s staff and responsible management personnel will be
available during the audit to assist the firm by providing information, documentation and

11
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explanations. The preparation of confirmations will be the responsibility of the Comptroller
Department. In addition, clerical support will be made available to the auditor for the
preparation of routine letters and memoranda.

. Technology Services Assistance

The County’s Technology Services Department personnel will be available to provide
systems documentation and explanations. The auditor will be provided computer time and
the use of Washoe County’s hardware and software. Additionally, the County will provide
the auditor with reasonable work space and access to photocopiers and FAX machines.

. Statements and Schedules Preparation

The staff of the Washoe County Comptroller Department, or appropriate entity financial
staff, will prepare statements and schedules for the auditors based on the schedule provided
in (EXHIBIT D). A similar time schedule will be developed for audits for future fiscal
years.

. Report Preparation, Editing and Printing

Financial report preparation, editing and printing shall be the responsibility of the Washoe
County Comptroller Department, or appropriate entity financial staff. The auditors will be
responsible for the preparation and editing of the auditors’ reports and opinions and for
coordinating with the Comptroller Department for insertion into the financial reports.

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

. General Requirements
. Pre-proposal Conference: A conference for firms interested in submitting proposals will
be held at 1:00 p.m. on October 15, 2018, at the Washoe County Administration Complex,
Comptroller’s Conference Room, 2" Floor Building D, 1001 E. Ninth Street, Reno NV
89512. Both verbal and written questions will be accepted during the conference. Minutes
of the pre-proposal conference will be made available to those requesting such.
At the pre-proposal conference representatives of the various entities will be available
to discuss their operations for interested proposers.

2. Inquiries: In order to ensure fair and objective evaluation, all questions related to this
RFP shall be addressed directly to the Washoe County Comptroller Attn: Purchasing
Division, Jenny Perry. Contact with any other County employees after the RFP’s
official release date is strictly prohibited. Vendors who directly contact County
employees risk elimination of their proposal from further consideration. Inquiries
concerning the Request for Proposals and the subject of the Request for Proposals must
be made to:

Jenny Perry, Buyer

Washoe County Purchasing Office
PO Box 11130

Reno, NV 89520

(775) 328-2284

Email: jperry @washoecounty.us

12
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‘Deadline for the submission of questions regarding the RFP is October 19, 2018.

The Washoe County Purchasing Office shall perform all matters relevant to this Request
for Proposal, acknowledgment, and evaluation, in conjunction with members that may
include the Washoe County’s Audit Committee, Comptroller Department, Manager's
Office, and other Washoe County and entity representatives as may be deemed appropriate.

3. Submission of Proposals: The following material is required to be received by 3:00
PM PST on Wednesday, November 14, 2018 for a proposing firm(s) to be considered.

a. An original (so marked) of the Techmcal Proposal and six (6) copies to include
the following:

1.

ii.
1ii.

“iv.

Title Page showing the request for proposals subject: the firm’s name; the

name, address and telephone number of the contact person; and the date

of the proposal.

Table of Contents '

A signed Transmittal Letter briefly stating the proposer’s understanding
of the work to be done, the commitment to perform the work within the
time period, a statement why the firm believes itself to be the best
qualified to perform the engagement and a statement that the proposal is
a firm and irrevocable offer for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.

A Detaﬂed Proposal should follow the order set forth in the Technical
Proposal in Section V-B of this request for proposal.

Executed copy of the Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspenswn
and Other Responsibility Matters, attached to this request for proposal
(Exhibit B).

b. The proposer(s) shall submit an original and six (6) c"opies'of a fixed cost bid as
set forth in the Bid Section of this Request for Proposal.

c. Proposers should send the completed proposal to the following address:

Washoe County Purchasing '
Bldg. D Rm. D200

1001 E. Ninth Street

Reno, NV 89512

Washoe County assumes no responsibility for errant delivery of proposals relegated
to a courier agent who fails to deliver in accordance with the specified time and
receiving point. Late, incomplete or unsigned proposals shall receive po
consideration. '

Proposals may be withdrawn at any time up until the opening and acknowledgment
upon written notice to the Washoe County Purchasing Office. Withdrawal requests
received after the time set for opening and acknowledging shall not be considered.

13
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The contents of the proposal and any clarifications thereto submitted by the
successful proposer(s) and accepted by Washoe County shall become part of the
contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into the ensuing
Agreement(s). The final Agreement(s) shall incorporate the RFP and attachments
and exhibits thereto, proposer’s response(s), and any negotiated points of
Agreement(s) between the parties.

All proposals shall become the property of Washoe County and shall not be
returned to the proposers.

All proposals shall become public record under the laws of the State of Nevada,
and the public shall be given access thereto. All responses submitted by vendors
shall be deemed confidential during the evaluation process. Vendor proposals will
not be available for review by anyone other than the Audit Services Evaluation
Team or its designated agents during the selection process. Information deemed
Proprretary by Respondent must be clearly labeled as such usmg red ink.

Any and' all costs incurred by the proposers in the preparation and delivery of their
- proposal(s), or subsequent negotiation of the resulting Agreement(s) shall be borne
entrrely by the proposer

B. Technical Proposal

1.

General Requirements: The purpose of the Technical Proposal is to demonstrate the
qualifications, competence and capacity of the firms seeking to undertake independent
audits of Washoe County and the OPEB Trust, in conformity with the requirements of

- this request for proposal. As such, the substance of the proposals will carry more

weight than their form or manner of presentation. The Technical Proposal should
demonstrate the qualifications of the firm and of the particular staff to be assigned to
these engagements. It should also specify an audit approach that will meet therequest
for proposals requirements.

THERE SHOULD BE NO DOLLAR UNITS OR TOTAL COSTS INCLUDED IN
THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL DOC;UMENT.

~

The Technical Proposal should address all the points outlined in the request for
proposal (excluding any cost information which should only be included in the dollar
cost bid(s)). The Proposal should be prepared simply and economically, providing a
straightforward, concise description of the proposer’s capabilities to satisfy the
requirements of the request for proposal. While additional data may be presented, the
following subjects, item Nos. 2 through 10, must be included. They represent the
criteria agalnst which the proposal will be evaluated.

Independence: Firms should provide an affirmative statement that they are
independent of Washoe County and the OPEB Trust, as defined by generally accepted
auditing standards.

Firms should also list and describe their professional relationships involving Washoe
County and the OPEB Trust for the past five (5) years, together with a statement

14
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explaining why such relationships do not constitute a conflict of interest relative to
performing the proposed audit.

In addition, the firm shall give/ Washoe County written notice of any professional
relationships entered into during the period of this agreement.

License to Practice in Nevada: An affirmative statement should be included that the
firm and all assigned key professional staff are properly licensed to practice in Nevada.

Firm Qualifications and Experience: The proposer should state the size of the firm,
the size of the firm’s governmental audit staff, the location of the office from which
the work on this engagement is to be performed and the number and nature of the
profess1ona1 staff to' be employed in this engagement on a full-time basis and the
number and nature of the staff to be so employed on a part-time basis.

Any proposer that is a joint venture or consortium shall separately identify the

qualifications of each firm comprising the joint venture or consortium and the firm
that is to serve as the principal auditor should be noted, if apphcable

The firm is also required to submit a copy of the report on its most recent external
quality control review, with a statement whether that quality control review included
a review of specific government engagements.

The firm shall also provide information on the results of any federal or state desk
reviews or field reviews of its audits during the past three (3) years. In addition, the
firm shall provide information on the circumstances and status of any dlsc1phnary
action taken or pending against the firm during the past three (3) years with state
‘regulatory bodies or professional organizations. :

Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience: Identify the principal
supervisory and management staff, including engagement partners, managers, other
‘supervisors and specialists, who would be assigned to the engagements. Indicate
" whether each such person is registered or licensed to practice as a certified public

accountant in Nevada. Provide information on the government auditing experience of -

each person, mcludmg information on relevant continuing professional education for
the past three (3) years and membership in professional orgamzatlons relevant to the
performance of this audit.

Provide as much information as possible regarding the number, qualifications,
experience and training, including relevant continuing professional education, of the
specific staff to be assigned to this engagement. Indicate how the quality of staff over
the term of the agreement will be assured. '

The proposer should identify the extent to which staff to be assigned to the audit reflect
Washoe County's commitment to Affirmative Action.

Engagement partners, managers, other supervisory staff and specialists may be
changed if those personnel leave the firm, are promoted or are assigned to another
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office. These personnel may also be changed for other reasons with the express prior
written permission of Washoe County or the appropriate entity. However, in either
case, Washoe County and the OPEB Trust retain the right to approve or reject
replacements.

Consultants and firm specialists mentioned in response to this request for proposal can
only be changed with the express prior written permission of Washoe County or the
appropriate entity, which retains the right to approve or reject replacements.

Other audit personnel may be changed at the discretion of the proposer provided that
replacements have substantially the same or better qualifications or experience,

Prior Engagements with the Entities: List"separately all engagements within the last
five years, ranked on the basis of total staff -hours, for the entities by type of
engagement (i.e., audit, management advisory services, other). Indicate the scope of
work, date, engagement partners, total hours, the location of the firm's office from
which the engagement was performed, and the name and telephone number of the
pr1ne1pal client contact.

Similar Engagements with Other Government Entities: For the firm's office that will
be assigned responsibility for the audit, list the most significant engagements
(maximum - 5) performed in the last five years that are similar to the engagement
described in this request for proposal. These engagements should be ranked on the
basis of total staff hours. Indicate the scope of work, date, engagement partners, total
hours, and the name and telephone number of the principal client contact.

Specific Audit Approach: The proposal should set forth a work plan; including an
explanation of the audit methodology to be followed, to perform the services required
in Section II of this request for proposal. In developing the work plan, reference should
be made to such sources of information as Washoe County or the OPEB Trust’s budget
and related materials, organizational charts, manuals and programs, and financial and
other management information systems.

Proposers will be required to provide the following information on their audit
approach: o
a) Proposed segmentation of the engagements
b) Level of staff and number of hours to be assigned to each proposed segment of
the engagements for each entity the firm is submitting a proposal for (no dollars
should be included in the technical proposal)
¢) Sample size and the extent to which statistical sampling is to be used in the
engagement
d) Extent of use of EDP software in the engagement
e) Type and extent of analytical procedures to be used in the engagement
f) Approach to be taken to gain and document an understanding of the entities’
internal control structure
g) Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulations that will be subject
to audit test work
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h) Approach to be taken in drawmg audit samples for purposes of tests of
- compliance

Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems: Proposals should identify
and describe any anticipated potential audit problems, the firm's approach to resolving
these problems and any special assistance that will be requested from Washoe County.

10. Report Format: Proposals should include sample formats for required reports.

11.

Exceptions: Proposals shall include any exceptions to the terms, conditions, and
requirements as specified in the RFP. Failure to note exceptions in the proposal
response shall indicate that the proposer will agree to perform as spemﬁed if they are
awarded the contract.

C. Fixed Cost Bid

1.

2.

Total Maximum Price: The fixed cost bid should contain all pricing information
relative to performing the audit engagements as described in this request for proposal
for each entity. The total maximum price to be bid is to contain all direct and indirect
costs including all out-of-pocket expenses per entity.

Washoe County and the OPEB Trust will not be responsible for expenses incurred in
preparing and submitting the technical proposal or the dollar cost bid. Such costs
should not be included in the proposal.

The first page of the dollar cost bid should include the following 1nf0rmat10n

a) Name of firm

b) Certification that the person signing the proposal is entitled to represent the
firm, empowered to submit the bid, and authorized to sign a contract with the
entity.

c) A Total Maximum Price for the fiscal year ending June 30, 201_9 engagement
for each entity individually.

d) A Proposed Total Maximum Price for subsequent renewal years for each entity
individually.

Rates by Partner, Specialist, Supervisory and Staff Level Times Hours Anticipated
for Each: The second page of the dollar cost bid should include a schedule of
professional fees and expenses, presented in the format provided in the attachment
(Exhibit F) that supports the total maximum price per entity.

Out-of-pocket Expenses Included in the Total Maximum Price and Reimbursement
Rates: Out-of-pocket expenses for firm personnel (e.g., travel, lodging and
subsistence) will be reimbursed at the rates used by Washoe County for its employees.
All estimated out-of-pocket expenses to be reimbursed should be presented on the
dollar cost bid in the format provided in the attachment (Exhibit F). All expense
reimbursements will be charged against the total maximum price submitted by the
firm.
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In addition, a statement must be included in the dollar cost bid stating the firm will -

accept reimbursement for travel, lodging and subsistence at the prevailing Washoe
County rates for its employees (GSA rates for Washoe County).

4. Rates for Additional Professional Services: If it should become necessary for the
entities to request the auditor to render any additional services to either supplement
the services requested in this RFP or to perform additional work as a result of the
specific recommendations included in any report issued on this engagement, then such
additional work shall be performed only if set forth in an addendum to the contract
between the entities and the firm. Any such additional work agreed to between the
entity and the firm shall be performed at the same rates set forth in the schedule of
fees and expenses included in the dollar cost bid.

5. Manner of Payment: Progress payments may be made on the basis of hours of work

~ completed during the course of the engagement and out-of-pocket expenses incurred

in accordance with the firm's dollar cost bid proposal. Interim billing shall cover a
period of not less than a calendar month

EVALUATION PROCEDURES

. Review of Proposals

An evaluation team will use a point formula during the review process to score proposals
for Washoe County and each entity. Each member of the evaluation team will first score
each technical proposal by each of the criteria described in Section VI-B below. The full
evaluation team will then convene to review and discuss these evaluations and to combme
the individual scores to arrive at a composite technical score for each firm. At this point,
firms with an unacceptably low technical score will be eliminated from further
consideration.

After the composite technical score for each firm has been established, the dollar cost bid
will be opened and additional points will be added to the technical score based on the price
bid. The maximum score for price will be assigned to the firm(s) offering the lowest total
maximum price. Appropriate fractional scores may be assigned to other proposers.

The entities reserve the right to retain all proposals submitted and use any idea in a proposal

- regardless of whether that proposal is selected.

. Evaluation Criteria

Proposals will be evaluated using three sets of criteria. Firms meeting the mandatory
criteria will have their proposals evaluated and scored for both technical qualifications and
price. The following represent the principal selection criteria which will be considered
during the evaluation process. :

1. Mandatory Elements:

a) The audit firm is independent and licensed to practice in Nevada.
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b) The firm has no conflict of interest with regard to any other work performed by
the firm for Washoe County or the OPEB Trust.

c) The firm adheres to the instructions in this request for proposélsv on preparing
and submitting the proposal(s). :

d) The firm submits a copy of its last external quality control review report and
the firm has a record of quality audit work.

2. Technical Quality:
a) Expertise and Experience

(1) The firm's past experience and perférmance on comparable
government engagements. '

(2) The quality of the firm’s professional personnel to be assigned to the
engagement and the quality of the firm’s management support
personnel to be available for technical consultation.

e) Audit Approach

(1) Adequacy of proposed staffing plan for various segments of the
engagement.

(2) Adequacy of sampling techniques.

(3) Adequacy of analytical procedures.

3. Fixed Price ,
T WIL T BE THE PRIMARY FA IN THE SELECT

OF AN AUDIT FIRM.

C. Audit Committee
Proposals, evaluations and recommendations will be submitted to members of the Audit
Committee of Washoe County for their review and approval A list of the members of the
Audit Committee will be provided to proposers upon request.

D. Oral Presentations
During the recommendation review process, the Audit Committee may, at its discretion,
request any one or all firms to make oral presentations. Such presentations will provide
firms with an opportunity to answer any questions the Audit Committee may have on a
firm's proposal. Not all firms may be asked to make such oral presentations.

E. Final Selection '

‘The entities will select a firm based upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee.
It is anticipated that a firm will be selected in December 2018. Following notification of
the firm(s) selected, and approval by the Board of County Commissioners or the respective
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_boards of the entities, it is expected a contract(s) will be executed between relevantparties
‘not later than February 28, 2019.

Right to Reject Proposals

Submission of any proposal indicates acceptance by the firm of the conditions contained
in this request for proposal unless clearly and specifically noted in the proposal submitted
and confirmed in the contract between the entities and the firm selected.

Washoe County reserves the right without prejudice to reject any or all proposals.

. Anti-collusibn

The submittal of a proposal constitutes agreement that the offeror has not divulged its
proposal to other offerors, nor has colluded with any other offerors or parties to any other
proposal. '

AWARD OF AGREEMENT
Recommendation for award shall be made totally on the basis of the proposal(s) deemed

_most advantageous to Washoe County and the OPEB Trust. In all instances the decisions
rendered by the Washoe County Board of Commissioners or the Board of the OPEB Trust,

shall be final. Washoe County and the OPEB Trust shall reserve the right to accept or reject

‘any or all proposals; to negotiate any portion of the proposal responses; to waive any found

informalities ‘in the proposals; and to hold all proposals for a maximum of one hundred
twenty (120) days from the opening date before final action to accept or reject any proposal.

Unless proposals shall specifically state to the contrary, the County shall reserve the right
and privilege to award each audit separately and/or to sever any portion of any proposal.

Successful proposer[s] shall not commence performance against any resulting award of
this request for proposal until such time as they receive a purchase order from the respectlve
entity engaging the successful proposers’ audit services.

FAILURE TO PERFORM

The services rendered under the resulting agreement shall be critical to the mandated
respon51b111t1es of Washoe County and the OPEB Trust. Therefore the successful proposer
shall, upon satisfactory notification, reimburse the entities for all expenses incurred by
them in providing services that are the responsibility of the successful proposer. Such
expenses shall be reduced from any current or future amounts due and payable to the
successful proposer.

In the event the resulting agreement is terminated prior to its expiration, all finished or. .

unfinished documents, studies, correspondence, reports and other products prepared by or
for the successful proposer under the resulting agreement shall become the exclusive
property of the respective entity. Notwithstanding the above, the successful proposer shall
not be relieved of liability to the entities for damage sustained by them by virtue of any
breach of any resulting agreement by the successful proposer.
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DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT

In the event of default by a successful proposer, Washoe County and the OPEB Trustmay
procure the required services from other sources and hold the successful proposer liable for
any cost excess beyond the cost anticipated in the original Agreement. In addition, the
entities may seize the performance bond, if applicable, and pursue any or all other legal
remedies against the defaulting firm.

APPEAL BY UNSUCCESSFUL PROPOSER

Any unsuccessful proposer may appeal a pending RFP award prior to award by Washoe
County or the associated entities. The appellant must:

Submit a written protest to the Purchasing and Contracts Manager not less than seven days
prior to the award hearing date. A copy of the award recommendation will be posted to
www.demandstar.com at least two weeks prior to the scheduled award hearing date.

Describe, in the written protest, the issues to be addressed on appeal.

Post, with the written protest, a bond with good and solvent surety authorized to do business
in this state or submit other security in a form approved by Washoe County, who will hold
the bond or other security until a determination is made on the appeal.

Post the bond or other security in the amount of 25% of the total dollar value of appellant’s
bid, up to a maximum bond or other security amount of $250,000.

Not seek any type of judicial intervention until Washoe County has rendered its final
decision on the protest.

Washoe County will stay any award actions until after the Purchasing and Contracts
Manager has responded in writing to the protest. If the appellant is not satisfied with the
response, appellant may then protest to the Washoe County Board of Commissioners or the
respective boards of the entities, who will render a final decision.

No bid protests will be heard by the Board(s) unless the bidder has followed the appeal
process. '

If an appeal is granted, the full amount of the posted bond will be returned to the appellant.
If the appeal is denied or not upheld, a claim may be made against the bond for expenses
suffered by the County or entity because of the unsuccessful appeal.

Washoe County is not liable for any costs, expenses, attorney’s fees, loss of income or
other damages sustained by the appellant in a bid process.

JOINDER PROVISION

In accordance with the provisions of NRS 332.195, certain other public entities may
participate in this joinder procedure for audit services as described herein.
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Each participating entity shall execute agreements for the required service in accordance

with the procedures of the Accounting and Purchasing Departments of the public entities

involved.

Within the scope of this Request for Proposal, Washoe County shall be held harmless in
any and all transactions between the bidder and the other participating governmental
entities. ,

The bidder shall acknowledge the joinder process and shall acknowledge Washoe County
as the situs of the bid procedure

OPEN MEETING LAW
NRS 241 provides that public business shall be conducted in open meeting.
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Insurance, hold harmless and indemnification requirements for independent audit services
Washoe County and the OPEB Trust '

INDEMNIFICATION

PROPOSER Liability

As respects acts, errors or omissions in the performance of PROPOSER services, PROPOSER agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless Washoe County and the Washoe County, Nevada OPEB Trust (OPEB Trust),
(hereinafter “the entities”), their officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from and against any and all
claims, demands, defense costs, liability or consequential damages of any kind or nature arising directly out of
PROPOSER'S negligent acts, errors or omissions in the performance of its PROPOSER services under the
terms of this agreement. ‘ ‘ ‘

PROPOSER further agrees to defend the entities and assume all costs, expenses and liabilities of any nature to
which the entities may be subjected as a result of any claim, demand, action or cause of action arising out of
the negligent acts, errors or omissions of PROPOSER or its Sub-consultant in the performance of their
PROPOSER services under the Agreement.

General Liability

As respects all acts or omissions which do not arise directly out of the performance of PROPOSER services,
including but not limited to those acts or omissions normally covered by general and automobile liability
insurance, PROPOSER agrees to indemnify, defend (at the entities. option), and hold harmless the entities,
their officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from and -against any and all claims, demands, defense costs,
liability, or consequential damages of any kind or nature arising out of or in connection with PROPOSER'S (or
Sub-consultant, if any) performance or failure to perform, under the terms of this agreement; excepting those
which arise out of the negligence of at theentities.

PROPOSER must either defend the entities or upon determination that the Worktperformed by PROPOSER
was in any manner negligent or that PROPOSER failed to perform any duty set forth in this Agreement pay
the entities’ cost of defense for any claim, demand, action or cause of action.

If the entities’ personnel (attorneys, engineers or other professionals) are involved in defending such legal
actions, PROPOSER shall also reimburse the entities for the time spent by such personnel at the actual cost
for such services.

In determining the nature of the claim against at the entities, the incident underlying the claim shall,determine
the nature of the claim, notwithstanding the form of the allegations against the entities.
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GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

The entities require that PROPOSER purchase Industrial Insurance, General and Auto Liability, and

PROPOSER'’S Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance as described below against claims for injuries to -

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work here
under by PROPOSER, its agents, representatives, employees or Sub-consultants. The cost of all such insurance
shall be borne by PROPOSER. -

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial Insurance coverage provided for PROPOSER or
any Sub-consultant by the entities. PROPOSER agrees, as a precondition to the performance of any work
under this Agreement and as a precondition to any obligation of the entities to make any payment under this

Agreement to provide the entities with a certificate issued by an insurer in accordance with NRS 616B.627 -

and with a certificate of an insurer showing coverage pursuant to NRS 617.210.

If PROPOSER or Sub-consultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must be purchased and
evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance. Such requirement may be waived for a sole
proprietor who does not use the services of any employees, subcontractors, or independent contractors and
completes an Affirmation of Compliance pursuant to NRS 616B627.

Should PROPOSER be self-funded for Industrial insurahce, PROPOSER shall so notify the entities in writing
prior to the signing of any agreement. The entities reserve the right to approve said retentions and may request
additional documentation, financial or otherwise for review prior to the signing of anyagreement.

MINIMUM LIMITS OF INSURANCE
PROPOSER shall maintain coverages and limits no less than:

1. General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury
and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with a general aggregate
limit is used, the general aggregate limit shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit
or revised to apply separately to this project or location.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury and property
damage. No aggregate limit may apply.

3. PROPOSER Errors and Omissions Liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence and as an annual aggregate.
Premium costs incurred to increase PROPOSER'S insurance levels to meet minimum contract limits
shall be borne by the PROPOSER at no cost to the entities.

PROPOSER will maintain PROPOSER liability insurance during the term of this Agreement and
for a period of three (3) years from the date of substantial completion of the project. In the event
that PROPOSER goes out of business during the term of this Agreement or the three (3) year period
described above, PROPOSER shall purchase Extended Reporting Coverage for claims arising out

Exhibit A — Page ii

134



Washoe County RFP No. 3066-19
Independent Audit Services
Exhibit A

of PROPOSER’S negligent acts, errors aﬁd omissions committed during the term of the PROPOSER
Liability Policy. : ‘ ' .

Should the entities and PROPOSER agree that higher PROPOSER Coverage limits are needed
warranting a project policy, project coverage shall be purchased and the premium for limits exceeding
the above amount shall be borne by the entities. The entities retain the option to purchase project
insurance through PROPOSER'S insurer or its own source.

DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the Washoe County Risk
Management Division prior to the start of work under this Agreement. The entities reserve the right to request
additional documentation, financial or otherwise prior to giving its approval of the deductibles and self-insured
retention and prior to executing the underlying agreement. Any changes to the deductibles or self-insured
retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must be approved by the
Washoe County Risk Manager prior to thechange taking effect.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The pblicies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability Coverages

a. The entities, their officers, agents, employees and volunteers are to be covered as additional

insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of PROPOSER,

including the insured's general supervision of PROPOSER; products and completed operations

of PROPOSER; or premises owned, occupied or used by PROPOSER. The coverage shall

contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the additional insureds, nor
shall the rights of the additional insured be affected by the insured’s duties after an accident or
loss.

b. PROPOSER'S insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the entities, their
officers, agents, employees and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Washoe County and the OPEB Trust, their officers, agents, employees or volunteers shall be
excess of PROPOSER'S insurance and shall not contribute with it in any way.

c. Any failure to comply‘ with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to the entities, their officers, agents, employees or volunteers.

d. PROPOSER'S insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made
or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

e. PROPOSER'S insurénce coverage shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
suspended, voided, canceled or non-renewed by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits
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except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has
been given to the entities except for nonpayment of premium.

' ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS

- Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-: VIL. The entities, with the
approval of the Risk Manager, may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon review of
financial information concerning PROPOSER and insurance carrier. The entities reserve the right to require
that the PROPOSER'S insurer be a licensed and admitted insurer in the State of Nevada, or on the Insurance
Commissioner's approved but not admitted list. V

VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:

PROPOSER shall furnish the entities with certificates of insurance and with original endorsements affecting
coverage required by this exhibit. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed
by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. The certlﬁcates are to be on forms
approved by the entities.

All certzﬁc@eg and endorsements are to be addressed sgeczﬁcally fo Waghge g;oug_zy and the OPEB Trust

contracting department and be received and approved by Washoe County and the QPEB Trust before work
commences. ‘ '

The entities reserve the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, at any time.

SUB-CONSULTANTS

PROPOSER shall include all Sub-consultants as insureds under its policies or furnish separate certificates and
endorsements for each Sub-consultant. Sub-consultant shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

MISCELLANEOUS CONDITIONS

1. PROPOSER shall be responsible for and remedy all damage or loss to any property, including property
' of the entities, caused in whole or in part by PROPOSER any Sub-consultant, or anyone employed,
directed or supervised by PROPOSER.

2. Nothing herein contained shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent to which PROPOSER
may be held responsible for payment of ‘damages to persons or property resulting from its operations
or the operations of anySub-consultants under it.

3. In addition to any other remedies the entities may have if PROPOSER fails to provide or maintain any
insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and within the time herein required, the entities
may, at their sole option:

a. Order PROPOSER to stop work under this Agreement and/or withhold any payments

which become due PROPOSER here under until PROPOSER demonstrates compliance with
the requirements hereof;
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. b. Purchase such insurance to cover any risk for which the entities may be liable through the
operations of PROPOSER under this Agreement if PROPOSER is unable to comply with the
insurance requirements, and deduct or retain the amount of the premiums for such insurance
from any sums due under the Agreement;

c. Terminate the Agreement.
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Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters

The prospective proposer, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its
principals:

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

(b) Have not within a three year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a
public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records making false statements, or receiving
stolen property,

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherw1se criminally or civilly charged bya government entlty
(Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of
this certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period precedrng this application/proposal had one or more pubhc
transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for cause or default.

I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal or
termination of the award. In addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a fine of
up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to 5 years, or both.

Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

Signature of Authorized Representative , Date

I am unable to certify to the above statement. My explanation is attached.

Signature Date
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EXHIBIT D — Audit Schedule

YEAR-END AUDIT PLANNING CALENDAR -~ FY 2019 (July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019)
WASHOE COUNTY - PRELIMINARY
* Tasks to be completed by: A-Auditors, C-Comptrollers, O-Other
Target ‘By:* ‘Task:
Mon, May 6, 2019 - C" Washoe County provides updated internal control documentation to Auditors
Fri;. 05-10 A |Audit planning mesting -
6/20-6/24 A |Auditor walkthrough and risk assessments
Fri, 06-28 C |Final payroll posts-9 days to be accrued
Fri, 07-12 C |Planning Trial balance to Auditors - not final due to State payments
Mon, 08-26 C Ready for Audit: Debt (w/o other LT liabilities)*
Mon, 08-26 C 1F%eady for Audit: Cash and Investments ‘
Mon, 08-:26 - C |Ready for Audit: Govt'l Capital
Mon, 08-26 C |Ready for Audit: Property Taxes
Mon, 08-26 C |Ready for Audit: Internal Service Funds - . ,
Mon, 09-09 C [Final Trial-Bal (w/August tax recelpts) to Auditors
‘Week of 9/09 A lAudit field work begins
Mon, 09-23 C  |Major fund ready for Audit-Dept. of Water Resources
Mon, 09-23 C | All Major Fund ready for Audit: General: Fund CPS, SAD, Others
Fri, 09-27 _ C | All remaining Funds to Audit . -
Mon, 09-30 C ' |Combining Statements to Audit
Wed, 10-02 C |G-W statements'to Audit
Thu, 10-03 . A “|Auditor progress meeting
Thu, 10-03 -C. [All'remaining notes and schedules to Audit
Fri,;»10-04 C |MD&A completed.
Fri, 10-04 C Attorney confirmations due :
Tue, 10-08 C - |DRAFT - CAFR and financial statements to Audlt
Mon, 10-14 A |Audit field work complete
Wed, 10-23 A |Audit comments due to WC/Prelim Exit Conference
Fri; 10-25 A |Management response to Audit
Fri, 10-25 A |OpinionLetter :
Wed, 10-30 A |Audit back from EQR/Exit Conference
Wed, 10-30 C |CAFR to print
Tue, 11-12 C  |CAFR, financial statements - Agenda briefing
Tue, 11-19 C |BCC Meeting .
Note - Details for SEFA / Single Audit
Fri, 06-14 C |SEFA-preliminary expenditures for testing & Status of prior year findings
Fri, 06-28 C |SEFA-preliminary expenditures for testing & Status of prior year findings
Fri, 07-26 C |SEFA-preliminary expenditures for testing & Status of prior year findings
Fri, 08-09 C |SEFA -draft and Prior-Year Findings status to Audit
Fri, 09-13 C |[SEFA - Final version to Audit with SEFA Notes
Mon, 09-23 A | SEFA findings/questions costs submitted.by Auditors
Fri, 10-04 C |Final SEFA, Status on Prior Year and SEFA responses from departments
Wed, 12-04 A | SEFA filing-Electronic submission of Data Collection Form
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YEAR-END AUDIT PLANNING CALENDAR - FY 2019 (July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019)

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA OPEB TRUST - PRELIMINARY

* Tasks to be completed by: A-Auditors, C-Comptrollers, O-Other

Target’ By:* - Task:
OPEB TRUST R S .
Fri, 08-09 O [{Final investment statement from NV-RBIF
Fri, 08-30 O |Actuarial reports received
Fri, 11-01 C |Draft financials to Auditors .
Tue, 12-31 . A [Audit comments due to Washoe County/Exit Conference
Tue, 01-21 C |Presentationto Board of Trustees
1Cash can go to audit as soon as completed and reviewed
* Debt can go to audit as soon as it ties to the 2019 CAFR Notes.
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EXHIBIT E - Notification of Interest

[ACCOUNTING FIRM'S LETTERHEAD]

[NAME OF OFFICIAL]
AUDIT COMMITTEE
[ADDRESS]

NOTIFICATION OF INTEREST

Dear Mrs. Mann:

Our firm is interested in submitting a proposal to audit the [Washoe County and the OPEB Trust’s (Entities’)
select those for which a proposal is being submitteéd] financial statements for the fiscal year-ending June 30,

12019 with the option of auditing the Entities’ financial statements for the 2 subsequent fiscal years, as set
forth in the Request for Proposal (RFP) #__ - dated :

[SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS]
: (
We plan to have [NUMBER] representatives attend a pre-proposal conference for firms interested in
submitting proposals. The pre-proposal conference will be held on [DATE] in your office.
-OR-

We will be unable to send representatives to the pre-proposal conference, but we are interested in receiving
further correspondence concerning inquiries made or other items discussed at that conference.

Yours very truly,

[AUDIT FIRM]
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EXHIBIT F - Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses

SCHEDULE OF PROFESSIONAL FEES AND EXPENSES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE [YEAR] FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Standard Quoted
Hourly Hourly
Hours Rates Rates Total
Partners
Managers
Supervisory Staff
Staff
Other (specify):
| Subtotal
Out-of-pocket expenses:
Meals and lodging
Transportation
Other (specif}(f):
Total all—inclusive maximum price for [YEAR], audit

Note: The rate quoted should not be presented as a general percentage of the standard hourly rate or as a
gross deduction from the total all-inclusive maximum price.
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AlNCLlNE IVGID Audit Committee

G‘l-V'U;AGE 893 Southwood Boulevard
ONE DISTRICT - ONE TEAM Incline Village, Nevada 89451

INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ("IVGID")
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR
INDEPENDENT AUDIT SERVICES

Release Date:
By: Director of Finance Paul Navazio

Sealed proposals shall be accepted until 3:00 p.m. PST on
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NTRODUCTION AND NATURE OF SERVICES REQUIRED

General lnformatlon

The IVGID Audit Committee is currently requesting written proposals to
establish a list of quallfled firms of certified public accountants with expertise
in one or multiple fields of auditing in this RFP. IVGID then intends to
negotiate the award  of a contract with qualified. proposers within their
respective expertise to audit the tmancral statements of IVGID on behalt of

- the lVGlD Board of Trustees

The audlt is to be performed in accordance with generally accepted audltlng
standards, the standards set forth for financial audits in the U.S. Government
Accountablllty Office’s (GAO) Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the Unlted States, as well as the applicable
provisions of NRS 354.624. '

There is no ‘expressed or implied obligation for IVGID to reimburse
responding firms for any expenses incurred in preparing proposals in
response to this request.

Term of Engagement

A five-year contract is contemplated for the fiscal years endmg June 30,
2021 through June 30, 2025, subject to the review and recommendation of
the Audit Committee, the satisfactory negotiation of terms (mcludmg a price
acceptable to IVGID and the selected firm. The firm will be required to have
a member supervising the staff rotating every two years and audit
engagement partners rotatlng at least every three years.

Scope of Work to be Performed

IVGID desire the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation of its
governmental activities, its business-type activities, each of its major funds,
and its aggregate remaining fund information in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

IVGID also desire the auditor to express an opinion on the fair presentation
of its individual fund financial statements and schedules in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles. The auditor is not required to audit

the supporting schedules contained in the comprehensive annual financial

report. However, the auditor is to provide an “in-relation-to” opinion on the
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supporting schedules based on the auditing procedures applied during the
audit of the basic financial statements and the individual fund financial
statements and schedules. The auditor is not required to audit the
introductory section - of the report or the  statistical section of the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).

The auditor shall also be . responsible for performing certain limited
procedures involving required supplementary information as mandated by
generally accepted auditing standards.

Auditing Standards to be FollOwed

To meet the requirements of this request for proposal, the audit shall be
performed in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards as set
forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the standards
for financial audits set forth in the U.S. Government Accountability Office’s
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, as well as the applicable provisions of NRS 354.624.

Reports to be Issued

Following the completion of the audits of the fiscal years financial
statements, the auditor shall issue:

1. A report on the fair presentation of the financial statements in

conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
2. A report on compliance and internal control over fmancnal reporting

based on an audit of financial statements.
3. A report on compliance with the applicable provisions of NRS 354 or

other Nevada Revised Statutes or Nevada Administrative Code.

requiring such disclosure.

In the required report[s] on compliance andinternal controls, the auditor
shall communicate any significant deficiency or material weakness found
during the audit. A significant deficiency shall be defined as a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data
reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such
that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented
or detected. A material weakness shall be defined as a significant deficiency
or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
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likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected Slgnrftcant deficiencies that are also material
weaknesses shall be identified as such in the report. In addition, the
: followmg condltlons shall be reported:

Auditor's comments on:

Statutory Compliance

Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance

Prior Year Recommendations
“Current Year Recommendations

Nevada Revised Statute 354.6115 (do we have a qualn‘ymg fund?)
Any other reports/revrews requwed by statute or regulatlons '

R RN N

Control deﬁcrencnes discovered: by the auditors that are. neither significant
deﬂmencres nor materla! weaknesses shall be reported in a separate letter
to- management whrch shall be referred to in the report[ ] on compliance
and internal controls. A control defICIency shall be deemed to have occurred
~ whenever the desngn or operatron of a control does not allow management
or employees in the normal course of performlng their assigned functions,
to prevent or detect mrsstatements ona tlmely basis.

The report on comphance and internal controls shall include all material -

instances of noncompliance. All nonmaterial instances of noncompliance
shall be reported in a separate management letter, which shall be referred
to in the report on compliance and internal controls.

Irregularltles and illegal acts - Audltors shall be required to make an

immediate, written report of all |rregulantles and illegal acts or indications of
illegal acts of which they become aware to the following parties: IVGID
General Manager, Audit Committee, Board of Trustees and Director of
Fmance

Reporting to the Audit Committee — Audltors shall assure themselves that
the IVGID Audit Committee are informed of each of the following:

1. The auditor's responsibility under generally accepted auditing
standards

Significant accounting policies

Management judgments and accounting estimates

Significant audit adjustments

Auditor's judgments about the quality of the entity’s accounting

GRS
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principles
Other - information in documents containing audited financial
statements o
Disagreements with management
" Management consultation with other accountants
Major issues discussed with management prior to retention
0. ' Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

o

Special‘ Considerations

IVGID w1l| send its CAFR to the Government Flnance Officers Assocxatlon
of the United States and Canada for review in their Certlflcate of
Achlevement for Excellence in Fmancnal Reporting program. ltis anticipated

‘that the auditor will not be required to provide special aSSIstance to lVGlD

to meet the requxrements of that program.

A list of findings and other weaknesses from IVGID's most recent financial
statement audit, conducted during the most recent fiscal perlod to be audited
can be made available upon request.

Working‘ Paper Retention and Access to Working Papers

All working papers must be retamed atthe audltor s expense, for a minimum
of three (3) years from the completion date of the audit, unless the firm is
notified in writing by IVGID of the need to extend the retention period. The
auditor will be required to make working papers available, upon request, to
the following parties or their designees: «,

1. IVGID Board of Trustees, Audit Commlttee IVGID General Manager,
IVGID: Director of Finance :

2. U.S. Government Accountability Office (GAO)

3. ' Parties designated by the federal or state governments as part of an
audit quality review process

4, Auditors of entities of which the entities are a sub recipient of grant
funds

In addition, the firm(s) shall respond to the reasonable inquiries of successor
auditors and allow successor auditors to review working papers relating to
matters of continuing accounting significance.

'DESCRIPTION OF IVGID
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Incline Village General Improvement District ("IVGID")

General: IVGID is a general improvement district formed in accordance with
Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 318 of the State of Nevada and is
governed by a 5-member Board of Trustees. IVGID's fiscal year begins on
July 1 and ends on June 30.

Fund Structure: I\VGID provides general government services, and has
basic powers granted by the County of Washoe, Nevada to furnish sanitary
facilities for sewerage, facilities for water, recreational facilities and facilities
for the collection and disposal of garbage and refuse. and used the following
fund types and number of individual funds in its financial reporting as of June
30, 2019). The number of funds is subject to change as the structure of
IVGID changes.

One (1) General Fund

Two (2) Special Revenue Funds
Two (2) Debt Service Funds
Two (2) Capital Projects Fund
One (1) Enterprise Fund

One (1) Internal Services Fund

Budgetary Basis of Accounting. IVGID prepares its budget on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

MUST BE UPDATED BY IVGID STAFF

Computer Systems: [IVGID's primary financial software system is SAP.
IVGID has used SAP since September 2003. SAP modules are utilized for
the following functional and process areas:

General ledger and financial accounting

Cost accounting including grants and capital projects

Fixed assets

Materials management including purchasing, encumbrance
accounting, and physical inventory

Accounts payable

Billing and accounts receivable

Human resources

Payroll

Employee self-service including working time entry, payroll and
health benefits data changes

10. Budget

o ML By
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11.  Treasurer’s electronic banking and petty cash

12.  Utility billing

13. Governance, risk and compliance module for maintaining user
access controls

14.  Workflow/online approvals

The SAP system uses both online real-time entry and batch processing.
System security, backups, installation of backups, and maintenance are
provided by the County’s Technology Services Department. There are no
current plans to change financial software.

In addition to the primary financial system, several departments use various
other software providers for their operations. Data generated by such
software includes information that may be interfaced with the primary
accounting system pertaining to revenues, cash receipts and accounts
receivable.

Availability of Prior Reports and Working Papers: Interested proposers
who wish to review prior years’ audit reports and management letters
should contact the IVGID Audit Committee. IVGID will use its best
efforts to make prior audit reports and supporting working papers
available to proposers to aid their response to this request for
proposals. Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports can also be
located at IVGID.

TIME REQUIREMENTS
A. Proposal Calendar

The following is a list of key dates for the proposals: DATES TO BE
DETERMINED

Event Date
DIStHBUION Of BEPR i winumerss sumssnms capmsns cnssan
Pre-Proposal Conference............................
Deadline for Submitting Questions..............
Responses to Questions ...........ccccvvveeeeeennn.
Proposal Closing ... iiemecenennessamessmmnnss
PLiblic. BEP OPONIRG i oot ssssnssiserssa
Evaluations Completed...............................
Award by the IVGID Board of Trustees.......
Implementation of Contract .........................
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Scheduling the Audit

IVGID will have all records ready for audit and all management personnel
available to meet with the firm’s personnel in accordance with the attached
schedule (EXHIBIT D) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. A similar
time schedule will be developed for audits for future fiscal years.

Each of the following should be completed by the auditors no later than the
dates indicated:

1. Interim work shall be completed by June 30™.
The auditor shall provide by July 1 a detailed audit plan and a list of
all schedules to be prepared if not included on the attached schedule
(EXHIBIT D).

3. The auditor shall complete all field work by the second Wednesday in
October.

4. The auditor(s) shall have drafts of the audit report[s] and
recommendations to management available for review on or before
October 23.

Entrance Conferences, Progress Reporting and Exit Conferences

At a minimum the following conferences are to be held on or before the dates
indicated below:

; Entrance conference with all key finance department personnel and
department heads of key offices or programs shall be held no later
than the last business day in May. The purpose of this meeting will be
to discuss prior audit problems and the interim work to be performed
if not previously communicated. This meeting will also be used to
establish overall liaison for the audit and to make arrangements for
work space and other needs of the auditor.

2. Progress conference with key finance department personnel shall be
held no later than the third Wednesday in September.
3. Exit conference with key finance department personnel shall be held

no later than the fourth Wednesday in October.
Date Final Report Due

For the IVGID audit, the IVGID Director of Finance, or appropriate financial
staff, shall prepare draft financial statements, notes and all required
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supplementary schedules no later than the first Friday in October. The
auditor shall provide all recommendations, revisions and suggestions for
improvement to the Director of Finance by the third Friday in October. Once
all issues for discussion are resolved, the final financial reports shall be
completed by the Director of Finance and the final auditor’s report(s) shall
be delivered to the Audit Committee by October 23.

ASSISTANCE TO BE PROVIDED TO THE AUDITOR AND REPORT
PREPARATION

Director of Finance and Clerical Assistance

The IVGID finance staff and responsible management personnel will be
available during the audit to assist the firm by providing information,
documentation and explanations. The preparation of confirmations will be
the responsibility of the ﬂ In addition, clerical support
will be made available to the auditor for the preparation of routine letters and
memoranda.

Technology Services Assistance

IVGID's Information Technology Department personnel will be available to
provide systems documentation and explanations. The auditor will be
provided computer time and the use of IVGID's hardware and software.
Additionally, IVGID will provide the auditor with reasonable work space and
access to photocopiers and FAX machines.

Statements and Schedules Preparation

The staff of the IVGID Finance Department, will prepare statements and
schedules for the auditors based on the schedule provided in (EXHIBIT D).
A similar time schedule will be developed for audits for future fiscal years.

Report Preparation, Editing and Printing

Financial report preparation, editing and printing shall be the responsibility
of the IVGID Finance Department. The auditors will be responsible for the
preparation and editing of the auditors’ reports and opinions and for
coordinating with the Finance Department for insertion into the financial
reports.

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS
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General Requirements

1.

Pre-proposal Conference: A conference for firms interested in
submitting proposals will be held at 1:00 p.m. on October 15, 2018, at
the IVGID Administration Offices. Both verbal and written questions
will be accepted during the conference. Minutes of the pre-proposal
conference will be made available to those requesting such. At the
pre-proposal conference representatives of IVGID will be avallable to
discuss their operations for interested proposers.

Inquiries: In order to ensure fair and objective evaluation, all
questions related to this RFP shall be addressed directly to the
IVGID's Director of Finance Paul Navazio. Contact with any other
IVGID employees after the RFP’s official release date is strictly
prohibited. Proposers who directly contact IVGID employees risk
elimination of their proposal from further consideration. Inquiries
concerning the Request for Proposals and the subject of the Request
for Proposals must be made to:

Paul Navazio

Director of Finance

IVGID

893 Southwood Boulevard
Incline Village, NV 89451

Deadline for the submission of questions regarding the RFP is
October 19, 2018.

The IVGID Director of Finance shall perform all matters relevant to
this Request for Proposal, acknowledgment, and evaluation, in
conjunction with members that include the IVGID Audit Committee,
the General Manager and other IVGID representatives as may be
deemed appropriate.

Submission of Proposals: The following material is required to be
received by 3:00 PM PST on Wednesday, November 14, 2018 for a
proposing firm(s) to be considered.

a. An original (so marked) of the Technical Proposal and six (6)
copies to include the following:
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i. Title Page showing the request for proposals subject: the
firm’s name; the name, address and telephone number
of the contact person; and the date of the proposal.

ii. Table of Contents

iii. A signed Transmittal Letter briefly stating the proposer’s
understanding of the work to be done, the commitment to
perform the work within the time period, a statement why
the firm believes itself to be the best qualified to perform
the engagement and a statement that the proposal is a
firm and irrevocable offer for the fiscal year ending June
30, 2021.

iv. A Detailed Proposal should follow the order set forth in
the Technical Proposal in Section V-B of this request for
proposal.

V. Executed copy of the Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, attached
to this request for proposal (EXHIBIT B).

b. The proposer(s) shall submit an original and six (6) copies of a
fixed cost bid as set forth in the Bid Section of this Request for
Proposal.

o. Proposers should send the completed proposal to the following

address: IVGID Audit Committee.

IVGID assumes no responsibility for errant delivery of proposals
relegated to a courier agent who fails to deliver in accordance with the
specified time and receiving point. Late, incomplete or unsigned
proposals shall receive no consideration.

Proposals may be withdrawn at any time up until the opening and
acknowledgment upon written notice to the IVGID Director of Finance.
Withdrawal requests received after the time set for opening and
acknowledging shall not be considered.

The contents of the proposal and any clarifications thereto submitted
by the successful proposer(s) and accepted by IVGID shall become
part of the contractual obligation and incorporated by reference into
the ensuing Agreement(s). The final Agreement(s) shall incorporate
the RFP and attachments and exhibits thereto, proposer’s
response(s), and any negotiated points of Agreement(s) between the
parties.
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All proposals shall become the property of IVGID and shall not be
returned to the proposers.

All proposals shall become public records under the laws of the State
of Nevada, and the public shall be given access thereto. All responses
submitted by proposers shall be deemed confidential during the
evaluation process. Proposals will not be available for review by
anyone other than the District Staff, Audit Committee or its designated
agents during the selection process. Information deemed Proprietary
by Respondent must be clearly labeled as such using red ink.

Any and all costs incurred by the proposers in the preparation and
delivery of their proposal(s), or subsequent negotiation of the resulting
Agreement(s), shall be borne entirely by the proposer.

B. Technical Proposal

1.

General Requirements: The purpose of the Technical Proposal is to
demonstrate the qualifications, competence and capacity of the firms
seeking to undertake independent audits of IVGID, in conformity with
the requirements of this request for proposal. As such, the substance
of the proposals will carry more weight than their form or manner of
presentation. The Technical Proposal should demonstrate the
qualifications of the firm and of the particular staff to be assigned to
these engagements. It should also specify an audit approach that will
meet the request for proposals requirements.

THERE SHOULD BE NO DOLLAR UNITS OR TOTAL COSTS
INCLUDED IN THE TECHNICAL PROPOSAL DOCUMENT.

The Technical Proposal should address all the points outlined in the
request for proposal (excluding any cost information which should
only be included in the dollar cost bid(s)). The Technical Proposal
should be prepared simply and economically, providing a
straightforward, concise description of the proposer’s capabilities to
satisfy the requirements of the request for proposal. While additional
data may be presented, the following subjects, item Nos. 2 through
10, must be included. They represent the criteria against which the
proposal will be evaluated.

Independence: Firms should provide an affirmative statement that
they are independent of IVGID, as defined by generally accepted
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auditing standards.

Firms should also list and describe their professional relationships
involving IVGID for the past five (5) years, together with a statement
explaining’ why such relationships do not constitute a conﬂlct of
interest relatlve to performrng the proposed audlt ‘

In addltron the frrm shall grve IVGID written notice of any professional
relatlonshrps entered into during the perrod of this agreement

License to Practlce in Nevada: An affrrmatlve statement should be
included that the firm and aH assrgned key professnonal staff are
properly lrcensed to practrce |n Nevada

Firm Quallflcatlons and Experience: The proposer should state the
size of the firm, the size of the firm’s governmental audit staff, the
location of the offrCe from which the work on this engagement is to be
performed and the number and nature of the professional staff to be

employed in this engagement on a. full-time basis and the number and’

nature of the staff to be so employed ona part -time basis. -

Any proposer that is a joint venture or-consortium shall separately
identify the qualrfrcatrons of each firm comprising the joint venture or
consortium and the firm that is to serve as the principal auditor should
be noted, if applicable.

The firm is also required to submit a copy of the report on its most

recent external quality control review, with a statement whether that

quality control review included a review of specific government
engagements. -

-The firm shall also provide information on the results of any federal or
state desk reviews or field reviews of its audits during the past three
(3) years. In addition, the firm shall provide information on the
circumstances and status of any disciplinary action taken or pending
against the firm during the past three (3) years with state regulatory
bodies or professional organizations.

Partner, Supervisory and Staff Qualifications and Experience:
ldentify the principal supervisory and management staff, including
engagement partners, managers, other supervisors and specialists,
who would be assigned to the engagements. Indicate whether each
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such person is registered or licensed to practice as a certified public
accountant in Nevada. Provide information on the government
auditing experience of each person, including information on relevant
continuing professional education for the past three (3) years and
membership in professional organizations relevant to the
performance of this audit.

Provide as much information as possible regarding the number,
qualifications, experience and training, including relevant continuing
professional education, of the specific staff to be assigned to this
engagement. Indicate hcw the quality of staff over the term of the
agreement will be assured. :

The proposer should identify the extent to which staff to be assigned
to the audit reflect ,lVGID's commitment to Affirmative Action.

Engagement partners managers, other supervisory staff and
specialists may be changed if those personnel leave the firm, are
promoted or are assigned to another office. These personnel may also
be changed for other reasons with the express prior written
permission of IVGID. However, in either case, IVGID retain the right
to approve or reject replacements.

Consultants and firm specialists mentioned in response to this request
for proposal can only be changed with the express prior written
permission of IVGID, which retains the right to approve or reject
replacements.

Other audit personnel may be changed at the discretion of the

proposer provided that replacements have substantlally the same or

better qualifications or experience.

Prior Engagements with IVGID: List separately all engagements
within the last five years, ranked on the basis of-total staff hours, for
IVGID by type of engagement (i.e., audit, management advisory
services, other). Indicate. the scope of work, date, engagement
partners, total hours, the location of the firm's office from which the

engagement was performed, and the name and telephone number of

the principal client contact.

Similar Engagements with Other Government Entities: For the
firm's office that will be assigned responsibility for the audit, list the
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most significant engagements (maximum - 5) performed in the last
five years that are similar to the engagement described in this request
for proposal. These engagements should be ranked on the basis of
total staff hours. Indicate the scope of work, date, engagement
partners, total hours, and the name and telephone number of the
principal client contact. :

Spec:flc AudltApproach The proposal should set forth a work plan
including an explanation of the audit methodology to be followed, to
perform the services required in Section Il of this request for proposal.
In developing the work plan, reference should be made to such
sources of information as IVGID budget and related matenals
organizational charts, manuals and programs, and financial and other
management information systems

Proposers will be required to provide the foll,owlnig information on their
audit approach:

a) Proposed segmentation of the engagements

b) Level of staff and number of hours to be assigned to each
proposed segment of the engagement submlttmg a proposal for
(no dollars should be included in the technical proposal)

c) Sample size and the extent to which statistical samplmg is to
be'used in the engagement

d) Extent of use of EDP software in the engagement

e) Type and extent of analytical procedures to be used in the
engagement '

f) Approach to be taken to gain and dooument an understanding
of the entities’ internal control structure

9) Approach to be taken in determining laws and regulatlons that
will be subject to audit test work

h)  Approach to be taken in drawing aud|t samples for purposes of
tests of compllance

Identification of Anticipated Potential Audit Problems: Proposals
should identify and describe any anticipated potential audit problems,
the firm's approach to resolving these problems and any special
assistance that will be requested from IVGID.

Report Format: Proposals should include sample formats for
required reports.
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Exceptions: Proposals shall include any exceptions to the terms,
conditions, and requirements as specified in the RFP. Failure to note
exceptions in the proposal response shall indicate that the proposer
will agree to perform as specified if they are awarded the contract.

(@8 Fixed Cost Bid

1

Total Maximum Price: The fixed cost bid should contain all pricing
information relative to performing the audit engagement as described
in this request for proposal. The total maximum price to be bid is to
contain all direct and indirect costs including all out-of-pocket
expenses.

IVGID will not be responsible for expenses incurred in preparing and
submitting the technical proposal or the dollar cost bid. Such costs
should not be included in the proposal.

The first page of the dollar cost bid should include the following
information:

a) Name of firm

b) Certification that the person signing the proposal is entitled to
represent the firm, empowered to submit the bid, and
authorized to sign a contract.

c) A Total Maximum Price for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021
engagement

d) A Proposed Total Maximum Price for subsequent renewal
years.

Rates by Partner, Specialist, Supervisory and Staff Level Times
Hours Anticipated for Each: The second page of the dollar cost bid
should include a schedule of professional fees and expenses,
presented in the format provided in the attachment (EXHIBIT F) that
supports the total maximum price per entity.

Out-of-pocket Expenses Included in the Total Maximum Price
and Reimbursement Rates: Out-of-pocket expenses for firm
personnel (e.g., travel, lodging and subsistence) will be reimbursed at
the rates used by IVGID for its employees. All estimated out-of-pocket
expenses to be reimbursed should be presented on the dollar cost bid
in the format provided in the attachment (EXHIBIT F). All expense
reimbursements will be charged against the total maximum price
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submitted by the firm. In addition, a statement must be included in the
dollar cost bid stating the firm will accept reimbursement for travel,
lodging and subsistence at the prevailing IVGID rates for its
employees (GSA rates for IVGID).

4. Rates for Additional Professional Services: If it should become
necessary for IVGID to request the auditor to render any additional
services to either supplement the services requested in this RFP or to
perform additional work as a result of the specific recommendations
included in any report issued on this engagement, then such
additional work shall be performed only if set forth in an addendum to
the contract between IVGID and the firm. Any such additional work
agreed to between IVGID and the firm shall be performed at the same
rates set forth in the schedule of fees and expenses included in the
dollar cost bid.

b Manner of Payment: Progress payments may be made on the basis
of hours of work completed during the course of the engagement and
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in accordance with the firm's dollar
cost bid proposal. Interim billing shall cover a period of not less than
a calendar month.

EVALUATION PROCEDURES
Review of Proposals

An evaluation team will use a point formula during the review process to
score proposals for IVGID. Each member of the evaluation team will first
score each technical proposal by each of the criteria described in Section
VI-B below. The full evaluation team will then convene to review and discuss
these evaluations and to combine the individual scores to arrive at a
composite technical score for each firm. At this point, firms with an
unacceptably low technical score will be eliminated from further
consideration.

After the composite technical score for each firm has been established, the
dollar cost bid will be opened and additional points will be added to the
technical score based on the price bid. The maximum score for price will be
assigned to the firm(s) offering the lowest total maximum price. Appropriate
fractional scores may be assigned to other proposers.

IVGID reserves the right to retain all proposals submitted and use any idea
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in a proposal regardless of whether that proposal is selected.
Evaluation Criteria

Proposals will be evaloated usihg three sets of oriteria Firms"rﬁeeﬁng the

mandatory criteria will have their proposals evaluated and scored for both

technical qualifications and price. The following represent the principal
selectlon criteria which will be considered during the evaluation process.

1. Mandatory Elements:

a) The audit flrm IS independent and hcensed ’to prac‘noe in
Nevada. '

b)  Thefirm hasno oonfllct of interest with regard to any other work
performed by the firm for IVGID.

c) The firm adheres to the instructions in this request for proposals
on preparing and submitting the proposal(s).

d)»  The firm submits a copy of its last external quality control review
report and the frrm has a record of quality audit work:

2. Technical Quahty:
a)  Expertise and Experience

(1)  Thefirm's past experience and performance on
comparable government engagements. :

(2)  The quality of the firm’s professional personnel to be
assigned to the engagement and the quality of the firm’s
management support personnel to be available for
technical consultation. '

b) Audit Approach

(1)  Adequacy of proposed staffing plan for various segments

of the engagement. .
(2)  Adequacy of sampling techniques.
(3) Adequacy of analytical procedures.

3. Fixed Price

TWILL NOTB THEPRIM RYFA TOR IN THE SELECTION

QF AN AUDIT FIRM.
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Audit Committee

Proposals, evaluations and recommendations will be submitted to members
of the Audit Committee of IVGID for their review and approval. A list of the
members of the Audit Committee will be provided to proposers upon

request. ,

Oral Presentations

During the recommendation review process, the Audit Committee may, at
its discretion, request any one or all firms to make oral presentations. Such
presentations will provide firms with an opportunity to answer any questions
the Audit Committee may have on a firm's proposal. Not all firms may be
asked to make such oral presentations.

Final Selection

IVGID will select a firm based upon the recommendation of the Audit
Committee. It is anticipated that a firm will be selected in January 2021.
Following notification of the firm(s) selected, and approval by the Board of
Trustees of IVGID it is expected a contract(s) will be executed between
relevant parties not later than February 28, 2021.

Right to Reject Proposals

Submission of any proposal indicates acceptance by the firm of the
conditions contained in this request for proposal unless clearly and
specifically noted in the proposal submitted and confirmed in the contract
between IVGID and the firm selected. IVGID reserves-the right without
prejudice to reject any or all proposals.

- Anti-collusion

The submittal of a proposal constitutes agreement that the proposer has not
divulged its proposal to other proposers, nor has colluded with any other
proposers or parties to any other proposal.

AWARD OF AGREEMENT

Recommendation for award shall be made totally on the basis of the proposal(s)
deemed most advantageous to IVGID. In all instances the decisions rendered by
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the IVGID's Board of Trustees, shall be final. IVGID shall reserve the right to accept
or reject any or all proposals; to negotrat any portion of the proposal responses;
to waive any found informalities in the proposals; and to hold all proposals for a
maximum of one hundred twenty (120) days from the openmg date before fmal
action to accept or reject any proposal

Unless proposals shall specifically state to the contrary, IVGID shall reserve the
right and pnvnege to sever any portion of any proposal o

Successful proposer[ ] shall not commence performance against any resulting
award of this request for proposal until such time as they receive a purchase order
from/ IVGID engaging the successful proposers’ audit services.

Vill. FAILURE TO‘PERFORM

The services rendered under the resulting agreement shall be critical to the
mandated responsibilities of IVGID. Therefore, the successful proposer shall, upon
satisfactory notification, reimburse IVGID for all expenses incurred by them in
providing services that are the responsibility of the successful proposer. Such
expenses shall be reduced from any current or future amounts due and payable to
the successful proposer.

In the event the resulting agreement is terminated prior to its expiration, all finished
or unfinished documents, studies, correspondence reports and other products
prepared by or for the successful proposer under the resulting agreement shall
become the exclusive property of IVGID. Notwithstanding the above, the
successful proposer shall not be relieved of liability to IVGID for damage sustained
by them by virtue of any breach of any resulting agreement by the successful
proposer. '

IX. DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT

In the event of default by a successful proposer, IVGID may procure the required
services from other sources and hold the successful proposer liable for any cost
excess beyond the cost anticipated in the original Agreement. In addition, IVGID
may seize the performance bond, if applicable, and pursue any or all other legal
remedies against the defaulting firm.

X.  APPEAL BY UNSUCCESSFUL PROPOSER

Any unsuccessful proposer may appeal a pending RFP award prior to award by
IVGID. The appellant must:
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Submit a written protest to the Audit Committee not less than seven days prior to
the award hearing date.

Describe, in the written protest, the issues to be addressed on appeal.

Post, v‘i\\iit’hy the written kprotest, a bond with good and solvent surety authorized to
do business in this state or submit other security in a form approved by IVGID, who
will hold the bond or-other security until a determination is made on the appeal.

Post the bond or other security in the amount of 25% of the total dollar value of
appellant’s bid, up to a maximum bond or ’other'Security amount of $250,000.

Not seek any type of judicial intervention until IVGID has rendered its final decision
on the protest. ‘

IVGID will_stay any award actions until after the Audit Committee has responded
in writing to the protest. Ifthe appellant is not satisfied with the response, appellant
may then protest to the IVGID Board of Trustees who will render a final decision.

No bid protests will be heard by the Board of Trustees unless the bldder has
followed the appeal process.

If an appeal is granted, the full amount of the posted bond will be returned to the
appellant. If the appeal is denied or not upheld, a claim may be made against the
bond for expenses suffered by the IVGID because of the unsuccessful appeal.

IVGID is not liable for any costs, expenses, attorney’s fees, loss of income or other
damages sustained by the appellant in a bid process.

Xl. OPEN MEETING LAW

NRS 241 provides that public business shall be conducted in an open meeting.
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EXHIBIT A - Insurance, hold harmless and indemnification requirements
‘ for the independent audit services

'INDEMNIFICATION

PROPOSER Liability

As respects acts errors or omissions in the performance of PROPOSER services,
PROPOSER agrees to: mdemnn‘y and hold harmless Incline Village General
lmprovement District ("IVGID") and their officers, agents, employees and
volunteers from and against any and all claims, demands, defense costs, liability
or consequentlal damages of any kind or nature arising directly out of
PROPOSER'S negligent acts, errors or omissions in the performance of its
PROPOSER services under the terms of this agreement ,

PROPOSER further agrees to defend IVGID and assume all costs, expenses and
liabilities of any nature to which IVGID may be subjected as a result of any claim,
demand, action or cause of action arising out of the negligent acts, errors or
omissions of PROPOSER or its Sub-consultant in the performance of thelr
PROPOSER services under the Agreement ' :

General Llabrhtv

As respects all acts or omissions which do not arise directly out of the performance
of PROPOSER services, including but not limited to those acts or omissions
normally covered by general and automobile liability insurance, PROPOSER
agrees to indemnify, defend (at the entities option), and hold harmless IVGID their
officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against any and all claims,
demands, defense costs, liability, or consequential damages of any kind or nature
- arising out of or in connection with PROPOSER'S (or Sub-consultant, if any)
performance or failure to perform, under the terms of this agreement; excepting
those which arise out of the negligence of IVGID.

PROPOSER must either defend IVGID or upon determination that the work
performed by PROPOSER was in any manner negligent or that PROPOSER failed
to perform any duty set forth in this Agreement pay the entities” cost of defense for
any claim, demand, action or cause of action.

If IVGID's personnel (attorneys, engineers or other professionals) are involved in
defending such legal actions, PROPOSER shall also reimburse IVGID for the time
spent by such personnel at the actual cost for such services.
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In determining the nature of the claim against IVGID, the incident underlying the
claim shall determine the nature of the claim, notwrthstandrng the form of the
allegations agamst IVGID

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS('

IVGID requires that PROPOSER purchase lndustrral Insurance, General and Auto
Liability, and PROPOSER'’S Errors and Omissions Lrablhty Insurance as described
below against clalms for injuries to persons or damages to property which may
arise from or in connection with the performance of the work here under by

PROPOSER, its agents representatives, employees or Sub- consultants The cost ,

ofall such insurance shall be borne by PROPOSER

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial Insurance coverage -

~ provided for PROPOSER or any Sub-consultant by IVGID. PROPOSER agrees,
as a precondltlon to the performance of any work under this Agreement andas a
precondrtlon to any obligation IVGID to make any payment under this Agreement
to provrde IVGID with a certificate issued by an insurer in accordance with NRS
616B.627 and with a certificate of an rnsurer shownng coverage pursuant to NRS
617.210.

If PROPOSER or Sub-consultant is a sole proprletor coverage for the sole
proprietor must be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear oh the
Certificate of Insurance. Such requirement may be waived for a sole proprietor who
does not use the services of any employees subcontractors, or independent
contractors and completes an Affirmation of Compliance pursuant to NRS
616B627.

Should PROPOSER be self-funded for Industrial insurance, PROPOSER shall so
notify IVGID in writing prior to the signing of any agreement. IVGID reserves the
right to approve said retentions and may request additional documentation,
financial or otherwise for review prior to the signing of any agreement.

MINIMUM LIMITS OF INSURANCE
PROPOSER shall maintain coverages and limits no less than:
1. General Liability: $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily

injury, personal injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability
Insurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, the general
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- aggregate limit shall be rncreased to equal twice -the required occurrence
limit or revised.to apply separatety to th|s prOJect or locatron

2. Automobrle Lrablllty $1 OOO 000 oombmed single limit per accident for bodily
injury and property damage No aggregate limit:may apply

3. PROPOSER Erfors and Omrsswns Liability: $1,000, OOO per occurrence and
as an annual aggregate. Premium costs incurred to increase PROPOSER'S
insurance levels to meet minimum contract limits shall be borne by the
PROPOSER at no cost to the entltles

PROPOSER erl malntaln PROPOSER Itabrlrty insurance durlng the term of thrs
Agreement and for a ‘period of three (3) years from the date of substantial
completion of the project. In the event that PROPOSER goes out of business
during the term of this Agreement or the three (3) year period described above,
PROPOSER shall purchase Extended Reportlng Coverage for claims arising out

of PROPOSER S negligent acts, errors and omissions commltted during the term

of the PROPOSER Llablhty Polrcy

Should the entities and PROPOSER agree that hlgher PROPOSER Coverage
limits are needed warrantmg a project policy, pro;ect coverage shall be purchased
and the premium for limits exceeding the above amount shall be borne by IVGID.
IVGID retain the option to purchase protect insurance through PROPOSER'S
insurer or its own source.

DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS

Any deductibles. or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
IVGID's Director of Finance prior to the start of work under this Agreement.: IVGID
reserves the right to request additional documentation, financial or otherwise prtor
to giving its approval of the deductibles and self-msured retention and prior to
executing the underlying agreement. Any changes to the deductibles or self-
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of
any policy must be approved by the IVGID Risk Manager prior to the change takmg
effect.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. General Liability Coverages
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a. The entities, their officers, agents employees and volunteers are to be
covered as additional insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities
performed by or on behalf of PROPOSER, mcludlng the insured's general
supervision - of PROPOSER products and completed operations of
PROPOSER; or premises owned, occupied or used by PROPOSER. The
coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection
afforded to the addltlonal insureds, nor shall the rlghts of the addltlonal
insured be affected by the lnsured s duties after an accident or loss

b. PROPOSER S insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects
‘ the entities, their officers, agents, employees and volunteers. Any i insurance

or self-insurance maintained by IVGID officers, -agents, employees or

volunteers shall be excess of PROPOSERS msurance and shall not
contrlbute with it in any way. ' ,

C. Anyffa&ilure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect
coverage providedito IVGID, their officers, agents, employees or volunteers.

d. PROPOSERS insurance shall apply separately to each insured against

whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the llmlts of
the insurer's liability.

e. PROPOSER! S insurance coverage shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be suspended, voided, canceled or non-renewed by either party,
reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written
notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the
entities except for nonpayment of premlum

ACCEPTABILIVTY OF INSURERS

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-: VII.
IVGID, with the approval of the Director of Finance, may accept coverage with
carriers having lower Best's ratings upon review of financial information concerning
PROPOSER and insurance carrier. IVGID reserve the right to require that the
PROPOSER'S insurer be a licensed and admitted insurer in the State of Nevada,
or on the Insurance Commissioner's approved but not admitted list.

VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE
PROPOSER shall furish IVGID with certificates of insurance and’ with original

endorsements affecting coverage required by this exhibit. The certificates and
endorsements for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized
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by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf The certn‘lcates are to-be on forms
approved by IVGID. : ,

All certificates ahd endorseménts are to be addrésséd specifically to IVGID

Director of - Fmance and be recelved and approved by IVGID before work
commences :

)

-IVGIDs reserve the right to require complete, certified copies of all requnred

lnsurance poltcnes at any time.

SUB- CONSULTANTS

PROPOSER shall lnclude all Sub- consultants as msured under its policies or
furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each Sub-consultant. Sub-
consultant shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

1.

“MISCELLANEOUS CONDITIONS

PROPOSER shall be responsible for and remedy all damage or loss to any

‘property, including property of IVGID, caused in whole or in part by

PROPOSER, any Sub-consultant, or anyone employed, directed or
superv:sed by PROPOSER. '

Nothmg herein contained shall be construed as limiting in any way the extent
to which PROPOSER may be held responsible for payment of damages to
persons or property resulting from its operations or the operations of any
Sub-consultants under it.

In addition to any other remedies IVGID may have if PROPOSER fails to
provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the
extent and within the time herein required, IVGID may, at its sole option:

a. Order P'ROPOSER to stop work under this Agreement and/or withhold
any payments which become due PROPOSER here under until
PROPOSER demonstrates compliance with the requxrements hereof;

b. Purchase such insurance to cover any risk for which IVGleay be

liable through the operations of PROPOSER under this Agreement if
PROPOSER is unable to comply with the insurance requirements,
and deduct or retain the amount of the premiums for such insurance
from any sums due under the Agreement;
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Terminate the Agreement.
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EXHIBIT B '
~Certification. Regardmg Debarment, Suspension, and Other FlesponSIblllty
Matters
The prospective proposer, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief

that it and its principals:

(@)  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency,

(b) Have not wrthm a three year period precedmg this proposal been convncted
of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or
a criminal offense in connection with obtalnlng, attempting to obtain, or
performmg a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a
publIC transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or
commission of embezzlement, theft; forgery, brlbery, falsification  or
destruction of records, maklng false statements, or recelvmg stolen property;

(¢)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise crlmlnally or crvrlly charged by a
government entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of thls certn‘lcatlon and -

(d)  Have not within a three-year period preceding this appllcatlon/proposal had
: ‘one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated for
cause or default.

| understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for
rejection of this proposal or termination of the award.

Typed Name & Title of Authorized Representative

Signature of Authorized Representative Date

| am unable to certify to the above statement. My explanation is attached.

Signature___Date__

176



INCLINE VILLAGE GENERAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ("IVGID")
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR INDEPENDENT AUDIT SERVICES
Page 32 of 35

NEED UPDATE

EXHIBIT C - Organizational Chart
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EXHIBIT D — Audit Schedule

YEAR-END AUDIT PLANNING CALENDAR - FY 2019 (July 1; 2018 to June 30, 2019)

IVGID- PRELIMINARY

* Tasks to be completed by: A-Auditors, C- Comptrollers O-Other

SIYS N

Task:

Target Date

IVG!D provides updated internal control documentatlon to
Auditors

|Audit planning meetmg

{Auditor walkthrough and risk assessments

|Final payroll posts-9 days to be accrued

|Planning Trial balance to Auditors

‘|Ready for Audit: Debt (w/o other LT llrabllltles)

:‘Ready for Audlt Cash and Investments

Ready for Audlt Prope,rty Taxes

Ready for Audit: Internal Service Funds

Final Trial Bal to Auditors

Audit fleld work begms

M

“|All Major Funds ready for Audit.

All remaining Funds to Audit
t ' :

Government wide statements to Audit

Auditor progress meeting

All remaining notes and schedules to Audit

MD&A completed

Attorney confirmations due ' C

DRAFT - CAFR and financial statements to Audit

Audit field work complete

Audit comments due to IVGID Audit Committee/Prelim Exit
Conference

Management response to Audit

Opinion Letter

Audit back from EQR/EXxit Conference

CAFR to print :

CAFR, financial statements - Agenda briefing -

o|o|o=|>|>| »>|>|olo|ojo>|o 00'>b0000000>> og

Board of Trustees Meeting
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EXHIBIT E — Notification of Interest

[ACCOUNTING FIRM'S LETTERHEAD]
[NAME OF OFFICIAL] AUDIT COMMITTEE [ADDRESS]

NOTIFICATION OF INTEREST

Dear Mrs. Mann:

Our firm is interested in submitting a proposal to audit the [IVGID financial
statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 with the option of auditing
IVGID's financial statements for the 5 subsequent fiscal years, as set forth in the
Request for Proposal (RFP) # dated_

[SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING PARAGRAPHS]

We plan to have [NUMBERY] representatives attend a pké -proposal conference for
firms interested in submitting proposals. The pre-proposal conference will be held
on [DATE] in your office.

-OR-

We will be unable to send representatives to the pre-proposal conference, but we
are interested in receiving further correspondence concerning inquiries made or
other items discussed at that conference.

Yours very truly, [AUDIT FIRM]
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EXHIBIT F — Schedule of Professional Fees and Expenses

SCHEDULE OF PROFESSIONAL FEES AND EXPENSES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE [YEARLEINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Standard  Quoted
Hourly Hourly
Hours Rates Rates Total

Partners Managers Supervrsory Staff
Other (specify): Subtotal
Out-of-pocket expenses

Meals and lodging Transportation Other (specify):
Total all-inclusive maximum price for [YEAR], audit

Note: The rate quoted shoulid not be presented as a general percentage of the
standard hourly rate or as a gross deduction from the total all-inclusive maximum

price.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

As management of the Incline Village General Improvement District (Disttict), we offer readers of the District’s financial statements
this narrative and analysis of the financial activities of the Incline Village General Improvement District for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2019. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in con;unctton additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, financial statements, and notes to the financial statements to gain a more cornplete picture of
the information presented.

Financial Highlights

Weather continues to play 2 key role in financial performance of the District. The Community Services ski venue had an extended
season due to good snow conditions resulting in additional revenue and costs to require a budget augmentation. A normal golf
season allowed both courses to work on programming and the continued use of dynamic pricing for their revenue realization. The
Mountain golf course experienced an increase in golf rounds, despite an August 2018 kitchen fire. The beach season had above
average attendance. The Utility services had an average year for theif flows. Overall the District still maintains a healthy financial

. condition for hquidlty, operations and capital management. The District continues to meet its financial obhgatxons and provide
services to the community at large. Maintaining the care and condition of infrastructure is a high priofity for all venues. The Utllity
Fund continues to build resources for a future Effluent Pipeline Project, while executing the preliminary study and design.

]ime 30,2019 Fiscal Year Highlights Based on Government-wide Financial Statements:

¢ The assets of the District exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, at the close of the most recent fiscal year,
by $153 million (net position). Of this amount, $31.8 million (unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the District’s
ongoing obligations.

e  The District’s net posmon increased $7.1 million. A significant portion will serve to provide resources for future capital
projects.

o The General Fund’s ending fund balance is at $3.8 mjllipn.
e The governmental activities included depreciation of $3.5 million while making investments in capital assets of $6.5 million.
¢ The District retired $859,678 in bond principal during the year.
Overview of the Basic Financial Statements
~ This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements which consists of the
following:
° Govemmeﬁt—widc financial statements

e  Fund financial statements

e Notes to the financial statements
This report also contains other Supplementary Information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District finances in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities and deferred inflows/outflows of
resources, with the difference reported as et position. Over time, increases or decreases, in net position, may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All
changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. For

example, the vacation wages liability recognizes a current cost while payment is in the future.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Both of the government-wide financial statements (INe# Position and Statement of Activities) distinguish functions of the Distfict that are
principally supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenue and charges for setvices (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their cost(s) through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activity of the District includes the administration by the General Fund, recreation and interal service activities. The business-type
activities of the District include utility activities that reflect enterpnse operations where a fee for service typlcally covers-all or most of
the costs of operations including depreciation and debt service. :

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities. The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial related legal

requirements, hence, the principal role of a fund is to demonstrate fiscal accountability. All of the funds of the District can be divided
into two categories: governmental and proprietary.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activisies in the government-wide
financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statement, the governmental fund financial statement focuses
on near-term inflow and outflow of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the
fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of gQV€mment funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statement, it is useful to compare the
information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for government activities in the government-wide financial
‘statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance provide a reconciliation to facilitate this compatison between Lovernmental fyunds and governmental activities. The District
maintains multiple governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund financial statements for the
General Fund, Community Services Special Revenue, Capital Projects and Debt Services Funds, and the Beach Special Revenue,
Capital Pro;ects and Debt Service Funds.

The District adopts an annual budget for its go&emmental funds. " A budgetary compatrison statement has been provided for the
General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to demonstrate compliance with these budgets. For the other governmental funds similar
comparisons ate provided in the Supplemental Information section.

Proprietary funds. The District operates two types of proprietary funds. Enssrprise funds are used to report the same functions
presented in business-type activities in the government-wide statements. The District uses enterprise funds to account for its Utility
Fund. Internal Service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the District’s various
functions. The District uses an internal service fund to account for its maintenance of its fleet of vehicles, buildings maintenance, and
engineering functions. ‘The District internal setvices fund also accounts for the Workers Compensation function. Each department
pays for coverage based on its payroll costs. Workers Compensation serves the entire District and uses these charges, rather than
costs being allocated by department. The Internal Service Fund is classified as governmental-type activities in the government-wide
statement since the governmental funds are the most substantial users of these services. '

Notes to the Financial Statements i)rovide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in
the government-wide and fund financial statements. :

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
supplementary information concerning the District. The District has prepared a schedule for its Multi-Employer Retirement Plans.
There are individual fund schedules, providing budget to actual comparisons. These schedules indicate compliance with budgetary
constraints and management directives to enhance accountability at the fund and function level. The State of Nevada Department of
Taxation, Local Government Division, has a prescribed format for budget data. The supplementary information reports actual
results according to that format and terminology. Statistical information is provided on a five of ten-year basis, as available, for trend
and historical analysis. ‘This information addresses a number of the major revenue sources of the District including the Recreation
and Beach Facility Fee.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019
(continued)

Governmental-wide Financial Analysis

Net position is a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The District’s assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources by $153 million at June 30, 2019. The largest portion of net position (79%) reflects net investment in capital assets (e.g.,
_ land, buildings, equipment, construction in progress less accumulated depreciation and bonds that are still outstanding). The District
uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; therefore, they are not available for future spending. Although the investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources needed-to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since
capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Incline Village General Improvement District

Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
Assets 2019 2018 2019 2018 - 2019 2018
Current and Other assets § - 18211423 § 13,170824 § 8207132 § 8435236 § 26418555 § 21,606,060
Long Tetm assets 6,656,389 9,546,374 5,843,465 3,762,165 12,499,854 13,308,539
Net Capital Assets 57,639,775 ' 54,721,037 69,158,284 69,496,001 126,798,059 124,217,038
Total Assets 82,507,587 77438235 83,208,881 81,693,402 165,716,468 159,131,637
Liabilities
Current liabilities 5,477,847 4,631,434 1,815,665 2,306,442 7,293,512 6,937,876
Long-term Jiabilities 1,131,683 1,491,016 4,084,938 4,608,926 5216,621 6,099,942
Total Liabilities 6,609,530 6,122,450 5.900,603 6,915,368 12,510,133 13,037,818
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows 242,584 242,019 - - 242,584 242019
Net Position
Net investement in capital assets 56,147,092 52,880,021 64,549,358 64,377,397 120,696,450 117,257 418
Restricted by Thitd Party Agteemém 136,993 183,037 316,611 309,344 453,604 492,381
Unrestricted ’ 19,371388 18,010,708 12442309 10,091.293 31,813,697 28,102,001
Total Net Position $ 75685473 $ 71,073,766 $ 77,308,278 § 74,778,034 $ 152,963,751 $ 145,851,800
Incline Village General Improvement District
Change in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for services $ 23715593 $§ 20278250 § 12,785,742 § 11925557 § 36,501,335 § 32,203,807
Operating grants 17,000 17,000 1,440 - 18,440 17,000
Capital grants and contributions 267 558,128 - 199,934 267 758,062
General Revenues: )
Ad valorem tax 1,622,486 1,546,575 - - 1,622,486 1,546,575
Consolidated tax 1,690222 1,637,250 - - 1,690,222 1,637,250
Facility Fees 6,756,410 6,771,522 - - 6,756,410 6,771,522
Unrestricted mvestment earnings 563,685 175,122 282484 77,280 846,169 252,402
Other 204,245 190,578 15,066 50,020 219,311 240,598
Total Revenues 34,569,908 31,174,425 13,084,732 12,252,791 47,654,640 43,427,216
Expenses
General Government 4,194,237 3,828917 - - 4,194,237 3,828,917
Internal Services 3,306,507 3,056,400 - - 3,306,507 3,056,400
Udlity - - 10,554,488 10,253,834 10,554,488 10,253,834
Community Services 20,345,198 19,043,639 - - 20,345,198 19,043,639
Beach 2142259 1,849,659 - - 2,142,259 1,849,659
Total Expenses 29,988,201 27,778,615 10,554,488 10,253,834 40,542,689 38,032,449
Excess Revenue (Expenses) 4,581,707 3,395,810 2,530,244 1,998,957 7,111,951 5,394,767
Tansfers In (Oug) (120,000) (120,000) 120,000 120,000 - -
Changes in Net Position 4,461,707 3,275,810 2,650,244 2,118,957 7,111,951 5,394,767
Beginning Net Postion, as reported 71,073,766 67,797,956 - 74,718,034 72,659,077 145,851,800 140,457,033
Prior Period Adjustment 120,000 - {120,000) - - -
Beginning Net Position, as adjusted 71,193,766 67,797,956 74,658,034 72,659,077 145,851,800 140,457,033
Ending Net Postion $ 75,655,473 $§ 71,073,766 $ 77,308,278 $ 74,778,034 §$ 152,963,751 § 145,851,800
15
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Governmental-wide Financial Analysis (continued)

Governmental activities increased the Districts’ net position by $4,461,707. The majority of this increase is attributed to an
excellent operating season for the District’s ski resort.

Total governmental activity revenue overall increased year-on-year in the area of charges for services. The increase in Charges for
Services is attributed to the ski resort and increases for banquets and events. The slgmﬁcant increase in investment income is an
increase in rates and changes in market values form a loss to a gam Sales and consolidated taxes, mostly comprised of business and
vehicle tax, and increased year-on-year. These combined taxes come through an allocation of state-wide collections. Ad valorem
taxes saw an increase. During 2005, the Nevada Legislature passed a law to provide property tax relief (Assembly Bill 489) which
provided a partial abatement of taxes by applymg a 3% cap on the tax bill of the owner’s primary residence and a highet cap on other
properties beginning with the 2005/2006 tax roll in Washoe County. For the fiscal year the abatcment has a value of $428,437 as a
reduction of otherwise eligible ad valorem taxes. ,

The District ski resort”budgets its operations‘on 110,000 skier visits. For.2018-19 the resort had 130,922 visits. The added usage
resulted in reveénue exceeding the original budget by over $2,863,000. Though some expenses also increased by $477,000, many costs
are fixed and the resulting increased results flows to fund balance, By companson, the Community Services Special Revenue Fund
for 2018 was very close to budget.

Incline Village General Improvement District Governmental Activities Revenues

2019 o 2018
Property taxes $ 1,622486 5% % 1,546,575 5%
Combined taxes 1,690222 5% 1,637250 5%
Charges for Services -Community Service: 17,748,644  51% 14,726,788  47%
Chatges for Services - Beach 1,492,687 4% 1,266,613 4%
Chatges for Setvices - Internal Services 4474262 13% 4,284;8'49 14%
Facility Fees - Community Services 5,781,289  17% 5799206  19%
Facility Fees- Beach 975,121 3% 972,316 3%
Operating Grants 17,000 0% 17,000 0%
Capital Grants 267 0% 558,128 1% .
Untestricted investment earnings 563,685 2% 175,122 1%
Miscellaneous revenues 204,245 0% 190578 1%
Total governmental revenues $ 34,569,908 100% § 31,174,425 100%

The facility fee, assessed on parcel owners, is the most stable of the revenue streams for the District. The facility fee is assessed by
the District for recreation and beach privileges and is collected by Washoe County Assessor’s office through the real property
quarterly billing process. For 2018-19 the District assessed $5,788,050 in recreation facility fees and $969,500 in beach facility fees.
The shift to the Beach Fund in fiscal year 2018 was to provide more resources for futute capital expenditure.

IVGID Facility Fees

District

Per Eligible Parcel  Total Assessment Roll  Assessed
Fiscal Community Community Recreation

Year Beach Services Beach Services Facility
2018-19 $ 125  $ 705  $969,500  $5,788,050  $6,757,550
2017-18 125 705 969,500 5,776,770 6,746,270
2016-17 100 - 730 774,400 5972860 6,747,260
2015-16 100 730 774300 5,972,130 6,746,430
2014-15 100 730 774,300 5,971,400 6,745,700
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Governmental-wide Financial Analysis (continued)

Total governmental activities include the General Fund which providés District wide administration, Internal Services, and
Recreation and Beach programming, capital projects and debt service. Expenditures in the General Fund increased year on year
ptimarily related to Human Resources and increased legal expenses from litigation. Internal services increased reflecting higher
service levels and the prior year having a reduced cost in Work Comp because of claim liability changes. Recreation and Beach
programming reflect higher costs based on increase in service demand, while-also increasing wages to houtly staff, ‘

Incline Village General Improvement District
‘Governmental Activities Functional Expenses

: 2019 2018
Manager . $ 418,829 $ 355012
Trustees 175,882 176,450
Accounting 884,240 833,348 .
Information Services 828,368 820,658
Risk Management ' 137,019 127,032
Hurnan Resources ‘ 682,394 597,875
Health & Wellness ‘ 28,816 24,594
Community & Employee Relations 194,398 188,682
Administration V ' 583,203 462,552
Depreciation | 261,088 242,714
Total General Government $ 4,194,237 $ 3,828,917
Flect § 1,146,886  $ 1,045,987
Engineering - 631,999 751,111
Buildings Maintenace 1,022,743 909,796
Works Compensation 504,879 349,506
Total Internal Services $ 3,306,507 $ 3,056,400
Championship Golf $ 4,985,709 $ 4724811
Mountain Golf . 1,155,483 1,165,185
Facilities 678,964 626,149
Ski: 9,098,577 8,230,147
Recreation and Community Programming 2,634,298 2,564,677
Parks ' 1,082,530 1,063,374
Tennis 302,493 281,020
Recteation Adminsitration 407,144 388,276
Total Community Services $ 20,345,198 $ 19,043,639
Total Beach “ $ 2,142,259 $ 1,849,659
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Incline Village General Improvement District
‘Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019
(contmued)

A

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased their net position by $2,650,244. The prior year was $2,118,957. The
Utility Fund has little fluctuation from year to year in its units of service. It continues to build added resources for 2 major capital
project on the effluent pipeline. Capital expenditures were $2,816,092, while depreciation expense was $3,153,809. Principal
reduction on bonds was $509,678.

Financial Analysis at the Fund Level
The District uses fund accounting to ensute and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds: The focus of the District’s governimental funds is to provide information on current inflows, outflows, and
balances of resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s ﬁnancing requirefnents In particular, unassigned fund
‘balance of $3,568,844 may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal
year...At the end of the fiscal year, the Disttict’s General Fund balance increased to $3,765,586, with $196 742 non-spendable A
prior period adjustment has been made to the General Fund to reflect 2 2018 transfer of $800,000 from the Wotker Comp activity |
within Internal Services, which was redistributed to the Community Services, Beach and Utility funds during 2018-2019. The
General Fund also received $300,000 during 2018-19 that will likewise be distributed during 2019-2020 and $174,356 which will be
retained. The Work Comp self-insured function Internal Services is no longer required bhaving transferred all liability-to a risk pool.

The District’s recreational programming is conducted under two activities; they are Community Services and Beach. As a result of
a deed restriction, a distinct constituency is served by the Beach fund and thus its inflows and outflows are measured separately to
demonstrate compliance. The Community Services Special Revenue Fund Balance increased to $13,333,953. The Beach Special
Revenue Fund Balance increased to-$1,810,378. '

Budgets are adopted for all governmental funds on a modified accrual basis. The focus of this basis is to capture transactions based
on current financial resources. Increases and decreases in financial resources are recognized only to the extent that they reflect near-
term inflows or outflows of cash. '

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund functional expenditures performed better to budget by $484,833. The increase in investment earnings is attributed to
rate increases, and market value improvement. Much of that is 2 one-time occurrence, and past years have recognized the
reductions. Savings occurred in Information Services because of staff vacancies. Several planned capital expenditure where not
made including $195,000 for two software systems. General Fund actual expenditutes has increased slightly over the prior year.
Administration includes legal defense costs of about §130,000.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets: The Incline Village General Improvement District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities, as of June 30, 2019 amounts to $126,798,059 (net of accumulated depreciation). Investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings and systems, improvements, machinery and equipment, and recreation facilities. Readers desiting more information,
with respect to capital asset activity, should see Note 4 to the financial statements.

Incline Village General Improvement District Capital Assets, Net

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

- 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Land - Governmental Activities $ 16,971,753 § 16,971,753 § \ - 3 ' - % 16,971,753 § 16,971,753
Contruction in Progress - Governmental Activities 2,157,103 2,755,328 - - 2,157,103 2,755,328
Land - Utility Activities - - 6,715,544 6,715,544 6,715,544 6,715,544
Construction in Progress - Utility Activities - - 1,418,052 4,151,041 1,418,052 4,151,041
Buildings and Trprovements” 913,462 846,899 - - 913,462 846,899
Equipment and Vehicles 1,647,472 1,591,187 - - 1,647,472 1,591 ,187
Internal services equipment furniture and fixtures 253,869 263,912 - - 253,869A 263,912
Utility service infrastructure : - - 113,807,857 108,626,081 113,807,857 108,626,081
Utility buildings and improvments - - 15,503,863 15,166,010 15,503,863 15,166,010
Utility equipment, furniture and fixtures - - - 3,696,213 3,721,984 3,696,213 3,721,984
Community services bu!ldmgs and improvements 64,695;501 58,884,392 - - 64,695,501 58,884,392
Community services equipment, furniture and fixtures 11,942,698 11,613,546 - - 11,942,698 11,613,546
Beach buildings and improvments - N 4,957,906 4,861,698 - - 4,957,906, 4,861,698
Beach equipment, furniture and fixtures ' 569,383 510,786 - - 569,383 510,786
Total Cost 104,109,147 98,299,501 141,141,529 ° 138,380,660 245,250,676 236,680,161
Accumulated Depreciation : (46,469,372)  (43,578,464) (71,983,245).  _ (68,884,659)  (118452,617)  (112,463,123)
Capital-Assets, Net $ 57,639,775 $ 54,721,037 $ 69,158,284 § = 69,496,001 § 126,798,059 $ 124,217,038

The ma;or capital asset events during the fiscal year was completion of a Diamond Peak Culvert Pro]ect and capitalizing multl—year
improvements for the effluent pipeline.

Long-term debt: At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total bonded debt outstanding of $6,106,926. Of that
amount, $4,962,361 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the District. The actual source for repayment is service
revenues. The remainder of the District debt, $1,144,565 represents bonds secured solely by specified utility revenue sources.

Long-term Hability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Beginning New Principal Ending
Balance Issues __ Paid Balance

Governmental Type Activities:
Bonds Payable; , '
Recreation Revenue Slipported $ 1,848,000 $ - 7§ 350,000 $ 1,498,000
Business Type Activities:
Bonds Payable;
Utility Revenue Supported 5,118,604 - 509,678 4,608,926
Total $ 6,966,604 $ - $ 859,678 $ 6,106,926

Readers desiting more information, with respect to the District’s debt, should see Note 8 to the financial statements.

The District may borrow money and incur or assume indebtedness as provided in Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 318, Section
277, so long as the total of all such indebtedness (but excluding revenue borids and special assessment bonds) does not exceed an
amount equal to 50 percent of the total of the last assessed valuation of taxable property.
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Incline Village General Improvement District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019

(continued)

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

e The District’s primary revenue sources are from service charges from users. These are mostly in two forms as amounts
charged at the point of service delivery and a standby charge paid by patcel ownets to support the availability of services.
The standby charge, also known as the Facility Fee, is determined annually by venue to support its operations, capital
expenditure and debt service. The District has adopted a rnuln-year Strategic Planning process. Along with that, we
continue to look at capital expenditure and debt service planning, five to twenty years ahead.

e Weather impacts demand for golf and ski and, to 2 much smaller extent, water and sewer charges based on the choice of
" residents and visitors to spending time in our community. We have recovered from the ptior several years of drought
affecung the beach and ski resort. With a more normal weather pattern, we look forward to less fluctuation year to year. A
major initiative is to look at summer usage of the ski resort, A regulatory review of those - possibilities has begun. However,
this may take three to five years to be resolved. The general economy and chscreuonary spending are considered during the
budget process. Anticipated user levels are revisited each year to assess probable service demnands.

e  Beginning with the 2009-10 fiscal year, the Utility Rate structure was evaluated by the Board one year at a time. For 2009-
10 the Board decided on no increase in rates. This was apphed to both the operating and capital component of rates. Rate
increases were nnplemented for the 2010-19 fiscal years. These increases were for additional costs and to provide resources
for the construction of the now completed Burnt Cedar Water Disinfection Plant Upgrade and the planned replacement
project for several miles of our effluent pipeline. There are also a multitude of projects to upgrade pump stations. The
design of these projects is ongoing. Both rates and planning for major construction is reviewed annually for the next five
yeats.

® Parcel Owner user rates are based on market data and operating needs of the community activities as determined duting
budget preparation and adopted by the Board of Trustees.

e Personnel cost comptised 36% of annual expen&itures. The 2018-19 budgeted for base wages and salaries, and benefits to
increase including 3% cost of living wage or merit increases, and 12% for health benefits rates in January 2019. Italso right
sized staffing for increased service levels.

e In these economic times employee retention is 2 key to the success of the District. The District continues to seck a balance
of market forces and its economic realities with the benefits of longevity and employee institutional knowledge. Though
many employees are part time we strive to have them move from venue to venue ot season to-seasof.

Reqtiest of Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all interested parties. Questions
concerning the: information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to the
Director of Finance, 893 Southwood Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada, 89451. This report will also be available on the District's

website at www.yourtahoeplace.ozg.
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November 18, 2019

Citizens of Incline Village and Crystal Bay
Board of Trustees for the Incline Village General Imptovement District

The Incline Village General Improvement District (the District) hereby submits our Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (the Report) for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Finance Department publishes the Report to
provide financial and general information about the District to members of the Incline Village/Crystal
Bay community, customers, the investment community, and general public.The data presented is designed to
help readers assess the financial condition of the District and to understand the services that the District provides
to the Incline Village/ Crystal Bay community. Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of the information contained in this report, based on a comprehensive framework of internal control.
Since the cost of internal control should not exceed the anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable
assurance, rather than absolute assurance, that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

State law requires that each local government publish, within five months of the close of each fiscal year, an annual
audit of all of its financial statements. The audit must be presented at a meeting of the governing body held not
more than 30 days after the report is submitted. Also, the report must be presented in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with United States Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. We hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report of the Incline Village General Improvement District.

The District’s financial statements are audited by Eide Bailly, LLP. The goal of the independent audit was to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019,
are free of material misstatements. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent
auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion
that the District's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, are fairly presented in conformity
with GAAP. The unmodified Independent Auditors’ Report appears in the Financial Section.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statement in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with that overview. The District’s MD&A
can be found mmmediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of the District
The District was formed in 1961 in accordance with the State of Nevada’s Revised Statutes, Chapter 318, pertaining

to General Improvement District Law as a body corporate and public and a quasi-municipal corporation in the
State of Nevada. The District is located on the northeast corner of Lake Tahoe, in the Sierra Nevada Mountains,
and occupies a land area of approximately 15.36 square miles and serves a base population of approximately 9,000
residents. In accordance with the enabling legislation, the District provides water, waste water, and solid waste
services within its boundaries, as well as various recreational amenities including downhill skiing, two golf courses,
a multi-use recreation center, tenmis facilities, meeting facilities, parks, recreation programs, beaches, playgrounds
and other recreation-related programming. The District serves approximately 4,200 water/sewer customers,
accommodates over 100,000 skiers, 35,000 golfers, and 170,000 beach users, and oversees a variety of other
activites including over 120,000 visits to the Recreation Center annually.
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IVGID’s Vision Statement
Witli passion for quahty of life and our environment, Incline Village General Improvement District will

enhance the reputanon of our community as an exceptional place to live, work, invest, and play Xyz

8% GID’s Mlsswn Statement
Inchne Vﬂlage General Improvement District delivers exemplary recreational experiences and provides the

hxghest level of water, sewer, and solid waste services while striving for fiscal and environmental sustainability.

IVGID’s. Value Statement
We are dedicated people provxdmg quality service, for our community and environment, with integrity and

teamwork.

IVGID’s Mantra Stétemént
one District * One Té'a'm

_IVGID’s Long Ra nge. Principles
The District adopted a. Sttateglc Plan for July 1, 2015 through June 30 2018. Part of the plan includes six Long

Range Principles. Under the direction of the Board of Trustees and the leadership of the District General Manager,
the Principles align our activities to the strategy of the District. Each Principle addresses objectives over the two
-years.of the Plan, as Well as annual budget initiatives.

RESOURCES AN) ENVIRONMENT Initiating and maintaining effective practices of environmental °
sustainability for a healthy environment, a strong community and a lasting legacy.
e Review and upgrade District policies and practices to encourage or require waste reducnon, recyc]mg
and environmentally preferable purchasing.
» Develop sustamabxhty medsures, goals and metrics to create and/or maintain a sustamablc stmct

e Provide the community with environmental education and techaical services on watershed
protection, water conservation, pollution prevention, recycling and waste reduction.

FINANCE — The District will ensure fiscal responsibility and sustainability of service capacities by maintaining
effective financial policies for operating budgets, fund balances, and capital improvement and debt management.

Adhere to Government Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Comply with State and Federal regulations.

Maintain Performance Measurement.

Report results and demonstrate value.

Develop and maintain 2 long term plan to sustain financial resources.

WORKFORCE - Attract, maintain and retain a highly qualified, motivated and producuve workforce to meet

the needs of District venues.
¢  Staff will evaluate open position job descriptions, for need to fill, level of and related compensation

for the position.
o  Re-evaluate, during the budget process, the optimum level of Staff and related total cornpensatlon
necessary to each department based on industry standard and level of service.

¢ Comply with State and Federal regulations.
¢ Continue to provide a safe environment and continue to strive for low worker’s compensation

incidents.
o Identify individuals for retention and growth for management succession within the District.
SERVICE — The District will provide supenor. quality service and value to its customers considering responsible

use of District resources and assets, P
* Provide well defined customer centric service levels consistent with community expectations.
o Apply Performance Management to meet or exceed established venue customer service levels.

s Utlize best practice standards for delivery of services.

2
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¢ Committo evaluate customer loyalty/satisfaction to demonstrate the value of results.
¢ Maintaining customer service training for new, returning and existing employees.

" ASSETS AND INFRASTRUCTURE The District will pracuce perpetual asset renewal, replacement and
improvement to provide safe and superior long term utility services and recreation activities.
¢  Maintain, reriew, expand and enhance District mfrastructuxe to meet: the capacity needs and desires
of the community for future generations.
o Maintain, procure and construct District assets to ensure safe and accessible operations for the
pubhc and the District’s workforce.
¢ Maintain current Community Service and Public Works master plans
¢ Maintain a 5-Year and 20-Year cap1ta1 improvement plan,
o  Conduct planning and design, in advance of undertaking projects or procurement, to ensure new
District assets meet operational requirements and enhance the customer experience.
~®  Maintain an asset management program leveraging technology as-appropriate by venue/ division, to
ensure timely and efficient asset maintenance.
e Comply with regulatory requirements and industry standards.

COMMUNICATION - The District will engage, interact and educate to pxomote understandmg of the
programs, activities, services, and ongomg affairs.

® Promote transparency in all areas including finance, operations and public meetings.

s Provide clear, concise and timely information in mulfiple, publicly accessible formats.

¢ Ensure that both internal and extemal communication is responsive, comprehenswe and inclusive. .

District Management

A five-person elected Board of Trustees, with 4-year terms, governs the Dlsmct Every other year, two-or three of
the trustee terms expn:e and are up for election. Upon being elected, the trustees assume office on january 1ot
the first board meeting of the year. The District has benefited from longewty and management expcnence The
Senior Management Team is led by the District’s General Manager. The District has made a commitment to
developing strategies that lead to results. It has also continued 2 commitment for sustainability in financing for
capital assets.  The District has made many capital investments out of current resources, along with paying off
bonds. utilized to finance improvements The Facility Fee, which is charged by parcel, is  significant source for
both capital expendltu:e and debt service for the Community Services and the Beach activities. This fee has been
at the 'safne total for nine years but has transitioned more for cap1ta 1mprovement and less for debt service. The
Utility Fund has been increasing its rates for several years in anticipation of a major improvement to the effluent
export pipeline that is several years away from the next phase of replacemeants.

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget Act incorporated within Nevada Revised Statutes, which
includes prescribed procedures to establish the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements. On or before
April 15, 2018, the Board of Trustees filed a tentative budgeét with the Nevada Department of Taxation. Public
hearings on the budget and Facility Fees were held on May 23, 2018. On or before June 1, 2018, the Board adopted
final budget for the year ended June 30, 2019 was filed with the Nevada Department of Taxation.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP for all funds. Formal budgetary integration in the financial
records is employed to enhance management contro] during the year for all funds requiring budgets. Budgets are

adopted for all governmental and proprietary fund types. The governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a

modified accrual basis and the proprietary funds type budgets are adopted on an accrual basis. The District can
amend or augment the budget after following State statutes and public hearing procedurcs The District did
augment its budget for the Community Services Special Revenue to reflect higher than expected activity for the ski
resort and filed the documents with the State of Nevada.

District Financial Initiatives and Accomplishments

The Board of Trustees establishes policy and direction, within the framework of the District Strategic Plan and its
Long Range Principles. The Plan covering the years 2018 to 2020 was adopted May 9, 2018. That period emphasis
includes developing performance measures, stabilizing planning for capital improvements, and enhancing

comrnunication at many levels,
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Performance m;ggurement through Fund Accounting Governmental Fund Accounting demonstrates sources and

uses through budgeung and reporung The District’s parcel owners paya facility fee that is dedicated to operational,
capital improvement and debt service by functions or activities. By using the. Specml Revenue, Capital Projects and
Debt Service Fund Types; the District can demonstrate and communicate the relationship of the facility fee paid
to how it was used for these very different types of transactions. Many of the District’s service venues require

substantial capital investment and 1mpzovements Operating statements alone do not represent the true scope of -

activity to make services available. This accounting not only provides a record of accomplishment, but allows for
 focused planmng to meet the strateglc objectives of sustamabxhty and capital maintenance :

: ¢ The District has identified approximately 6 xmles of effluent pxpe ine for
replacement overa seties of years. This -project is expected to cost at least $15,000,000. This replacement will be
paid for by rate increases over a period of years, rather than debt. Sewer Rates have been increased to accumulate

" more resources for this project. Water rates are set to a stnctly pay,for what you use as a cost of service.  The latest
rate increase went into effect in May 2019. Reslts. of the Utility operations exceed budget ‘The resources mtended
for the long term portzon of the efﬂuent pro;ect, have been mvested :

Feeat 830 The fiscal year 2018-19 marks. the nifith year in

Wthh the combmed fee totaled $830 The facxhty fee revenhe was reahzed as-planned.

: 1o: Fiscal year 2018-19 also
marks the’ nmth ‘year for \vhat has become known as smoodnng "This is an 1mt1at1ve zntegrated with the 5-year
capxtal plan, to schedule projects in a way to provxde reasonably consistent amounts for capital expenchture thus
avoiding increases in the total Facxhty Fee from year to year. The Recreation and Beach Facility Fee is intended to

generate resources for operauons debt service and capital expenditures. ‘The debt service and capxtal e:\pendxture
components are budgeted based on specific issues and projects. Following the maturity of bond issues, resources -

for debt service were directed toward capirtal improvement. Results of operations for 201819 in the Commumty
Services Special Revenue Fund were over budget. The Community Services Special Revenue fund balance
continues to be evaluated and is expected to be used for several major capital projects that have been‘identified for
completion in the next five years.

Lapital Project and Debt Service Fu ’nd§ Net Eg§jtigg Closes

From July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2019 the District used Capital Projects and Debt Service Funds as way to
demonstrate the use of dedicated revenues for those expenditures. During this period it was clear the focus of
users was not at a fund level; but rather primasily on the functional level expenditures. Such teporting can:be
accomplished through Special Revenue Funds. The District’s special revenue funds are the source of the dedicated
revenues then transferred to expend. Beginning July 1, 2019 these funds will -only be activated in the event of a
bond issue or other direct funding source needing a separate accounting. Tlns will simplify reports for our users.

Factors Affectmg Financial Condition L

Located on the riortheast shore of Lake Tahoe, Nevada, near the California border in Washoe County, the District's
economy 1§ la.rgely dependent on tourism,. centered on summer and winter recreational activities. Due to its
location, the regzon ’s economy i closely tied to the California/San Francisco Bay Area economy. The Reno-Sparks
Convention & Visitors Authority report at June 2019 indicates the combined room occupancy rate increased 6.3%
from last year.

Development within the District is challenged by the availability of parcels for redevelopment. There are
commercial projects planned in Crystal Bay. The preliminary development permits for the projects have been
approved. The scope of the development will be determined by future events. It is anticipated they will have a

positive effect on the area,

Located in Incline Village, Sierra Nevada College (SNC) is Nevada's only private residential four-year liberal arts
college which serves the community at large and those looking for a unique educational expedence. The college
has forged a unique partnership with Tahoe Center for Environmental Sciences (TCES). This partnership, between
public and private instimtions of higher education in two states, includes Sierra Nevada College, the University of
California, Davis (UUC Davis), the Desert Research Institute (DRI) and the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR).
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The 2010 census population of 9,087 reflects an 8% decrease since 2000. Of the District’s 7,954 housing units, the
Census reports 3,353 for seasonal recreation use. ‘This is 14% more than the number in 2000. There is no indication
of a change in these factors as of 2019. The median housmg value at June 30, 2019 for single family residence and
condo sales for Incline Village and Crystal Bay are §1,400, 000 and $619;000, respectfully, representing a 17%
increase on res1dence and a'11% increase on condos over last year. For the entire Washoe County the values were
$408,500 and $241,000- respectively.  Values in Incline Village and Crystal Bay tend to be more than the general
County because of a strong demand by Cahforma buyers looking for a preferred tax address in the Tahoe Basin.

. The Reno- Sparks June 2019 unemployment rate of 3.2% and is well under the State at 4. O% and is ‘below the
national level at 3.7%. : S

Lake Tahoe is known as one of the most beautiful regions in the world and as the largest alpirie lake in North -

America, it offers an alpine environment untouchable anywhere else: The pnsune beauty of Lake Tahoe draws over
three and one-half million visitors annually from around the world. From snow skiing to golfing to boating to
gaming, Lake Tahoe is one of the premier resort destinations, offenng visitors countless activities. ~Additionally,
‘ Inclme Vﬂlage / Crystal Bay offers a spectacular and serene mountain nelghborhood for property ‘owners.

The 2004 Leg151ature passed Assembly Bill 489 to provxde property tax relief Wluch prowdes a-partial abatement
of taxes by applying a 3% cap on the tax bill of the owner’s primary residence and a higher cap on- the tax bxﬁ of
other properties: begmnmg with the 2005/2006 tax- roll in Washoe County. For the fiscal year 2018-2019 the
abatement was 5428 437 based on State of Nevada Department of Taxation formulas. The pre-abated AdV alorem
1evy was $2,040 175.
Beginning in 2010, the District has had portion of its propetty tax settlements offset to setde a court ordered tax
refund by Washoe County. The General Fund was able to meet this obligation while mamtammg service levels
while the refund was completed Over the course of four years the total offset was approximately $1, 200,000. A
new action. has been taken to the Nevada Supreme Court, which referred the matter to the Washoe County District
- Court to decide if another round of refunds should be ordered. A District Court order was issued in October 2019
that'is being appealed to the Nevada Supreme Coust. A final decision has not been reached, nor is the outcome
and possible affect determinable as of June 30, 2019.

Budget Highlights

Gederal Fdnd ’ ‘

The General Fundis primarily responsible for governance and administration of the District’s activities. The Fund
has nominal change year to year. The General Fund is discussed in more detail in the MD&A section.
Community Services Special Revenue Budgetary Highlights

Comshunity Services cover a variety of recreation venues. The ski resort benefitted from extess snow by having

an extended season and higher than budgeted visits. This resulted in over $2,800,000 in additional revenue while.

only incurring ]ust over $475,000 in additional ¢osts. Our golf courses saw a stable level of play. The Parks and
Recreation venues-saw stable use. A substantial schedule of capital projects were done during the year. However,
there were still over $1,700,000 in capital projects carried over as unexpended and is reflected in Fund Balance.

Beach Budgetary H:ghhghts

The District’s beach venues saw increased revenues, desp1te higher warer levels on Lake 'lahoe The Beach is
independent of other operations and has sought to increase its resources for future capital projects. The Beach
Study identified a number of possibilities. There is an upcoming replacement project for the Burnt Cedar pool.
Utility Budgetary Highlights

The net position for the Utility Fund increased $2,650,244 for the year. Utilities increased rates about 3% to cover
its costs of service and to continue to facilitate building resources for the effluent pipeline replacement project,

The Utility Fund saw a year on year Increase in expenses mainly for personnel.
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Internal Services Budgetary Highlights

Internal Services includes Fleet, Engineering, Building Maintenance and Workers Compensation coverage. Both
Engineering and Buildings Maintenance were under budget due to staff vacancies. The overall revenues and
expenses balanced out. Fo]lowmg completion of a Loss Transfer and Assumption agreement, which allowed the
District to hqmdate its Work Comp claims liability from past years, a transfer of $174,356 was made to the General
Fund to close that activity under Internal Services. A transfes for §800 000 was made in the prior year. Another
$300,000 was budgeted and made during this fiscal year. Readers may refer to Notes 13 and 22 for more details
on the changes to the Workers Compensation program

Budget Augmentation, ap_glxcatmn of budget contingency and other budget reconciliations

The District’ appfoves a budget for each fiscal year by completing Form 4404LGF as prescribed by the State of -

Nevada Department of Taxation Local Government Finance. Preparation of this form set includes pxescnbed
account titles and allowable levels of detail. This form set in essence creates 2 Budgetary Basis ‘accounting and
presentation. To. prowde adequate. financial planning, the District’s approach to the budget includes an evaluation
in more detail of the flow of resources for both govemmental and business-type activities. This results in the
District budgeting for capital expenditure and debt service in the enterprise funds, similar to governmental type
funds. The District has presented additional schedules to reconcile basic financial statement presentations with
information included in Form 4404LGF for the fiscal year endmgjune 30, 2019.

As a result of excess snow fall and reésulting increased skier visits, a budget augmentation was adopted May 22
which increased Community Service Special Revenue Fund revenues by $2,800,000 and expenditures by $430,000.
This augmentation was largely focused on setting expenditures 4t a proper level to be in compliance with Nevada
Revised Statutes.

The District budgeted contingency in the General and Special Revenue Funds None of the contingency was used
for 2018-19; . ‘

The District has been engaged in a lawsuit for over six years that received a final order, which was then appealed.
Legal costs of the appeal were not budgeted. '

The District has'reported fair market value adjustments to its‘fixed income investments.- In the past these have
been reductions. In the current year they resulted in increase to value along with realizing improved rates of return.
The reported amount exceeds budget because neither cause was anticipated in early 2018 when the budget was

formulated.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 2 Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Incline Village General Improvement District for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, This was the eighteenth year that
the District has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, 2 government
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must
satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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WELCOME!

The following pages comprise the Incline Village General Improvement District | }
(IVGID) Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year 4
ended June 30, 2019. Our financial reports support our sustainable government
model, which IVGID offers the communities of Incline Village and Crystal Bay.

IVGID's enviable financial condition continues with our increases in net
position, readily available cash, low debt ratio and no unfunded pension and

medical liabilites.

Over the past five vears:

e  Our cash position remains adequate while our net investment in capital
assets has increased to $120.7 million.

e Our 2019 expenses have increased primarily due to meeting service
levels for our venues, while remaining on average an increase of 6
percent per year. Revenues have increased 7 percent per year.

e  Our utlity revenues have increased to ensure adequate cash flow to not only fund annual opemnons but to also fund
future capital improvement needs, especially the effluent pipeline project.

e  QOur recreation user fees have been otherwise stable.

e  Our governmental revenues (property tax and combined taxes) have been steady to increasing over the entire period.
e Our bonded indebtedness has dropped from $1,299 to $672 per capita.

e Our total recreation fee cost to the property owners has remained flat over the entire period.

Current Conditions:
e  Our unrestricted net position of $31.8 million is 5 times greater than our total outstanding indebtedness of $6.1 million.

e  Since 2008, our outstanding indebtedness has dropped from a high of §27.2 million to $6.1 million.

e Our outstanding indebredness is only .7% of our statutory debt capacity.

e Our ratio of debr service to tota] expenditures has dropped to 2.6%.

Conclusion

Despite this record of exceptional financial performance, we refuse to rest on our accomplishments so far. We will continue to
endeavor to provide quality service to all of our customers at the lowest cost possible. In addition, we will continue to excel in

financial and capital planning in the most transparent, inclusive manner possible.

I'd like to personally thank our dedicated management staff for all the work that they do throughout the year and in conjunction

with this important document. I'd also like to thank all of our stakeholders: property owners, business owners, residents, guests and

our employees for their continuing support of all of our operations. Together, we all play a part in making Incline Village/Crystal
Bay one of the most livable communities in the nation.

Indra S. Winquest
Interim General Manager
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MINUTES

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING;OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2020
Incline Vikllage General lmprovement District

The Audit Committee meeting of the Incline Village General Improvement District
was called to order by Audit Committee Chairman Matthew Dent on Wednesday,
September 30, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. at the Boardroom located at 893 Southwood
Boulevard, Incline Village, Nevada. Thrs meeting was conducted virtually via
Zoom, :

A. ROLL CALL OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS*

On roll call, present were Matthew Dent (Trustee Chair), Chff Dobler (At-Large
Member), Sara Schmitz (Trustee), Raymond Tulloch (At- Large Member) and
Derrek Aaron (At-Large Member).

Also present was Staff member Director of Finance Paul Navazio.

- There were no members of the public present (State of Nevada, Executive
Directive 006, 016, 018, and 021).

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS*

Linda Newman said in revrewmg the District Staff update on the Eide Bailly audit,
she did not see any review of the more than 17 outstanding challenges to the
District's accounting and reportrng in the 2019 CAFR. It would be a grave mistake
to continue these practices without an independent review of their compliance with
GAAP, Nevada Revised Statutes and Board approved Policies and Practices. As
you are aware, the Director of Finance has stated that he and Staff do not consider
the cited District’s accounting policies unlawful or inappropriate and in their opinion
will not require the restatement of our CAFRs. These statements were not
supported by any valid documentation —instead, a letter from the Department of
Taxation approving the District's FY 2020/21 Budget was provided. The FY 2021
Budget has nothing to do with the District's 2019 CAFR. She requests a response
from this Committee on how and when these outstanding issues will be addressed.
In addition, please note that the District does not have to engage an independent
auditing firm for the 2021 Audit until March of 2021. She recommends that this
Committee change the timeline and create a new scope of work first before
soliciting RFQs or RFPs. This can be done in January with responses reviewed by
the Committee in February, along with interviews, and the choice approved by the
Board in early March. The 2009 info provided is irrelevant. Although she reviewed
the Legal Opinion — she was surprised to learn it wasn’t a legal opinion at all. It
was a memorandum, not an opinion on a law firm’s letterhead, filled with an

enormous amount of speculation and analogies on implied and incidental powers.
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She respectfully requests that this Committee request the Office of the Attorney
General render an opinion on the GID’s expressed powers and whether or not the
District’s questioned use of public funds are in compliance with NRS 318. The
Whistleblower procedure is a weak starting point. She ‘has secured a number of
templates, including one from the AICPA, which she believes are worthy of your
review before you take any action on this item. | |

Margaret Martini’'said she wants to thank each and every one of you for serving on
this Committee and investing your time, knowledge and experience in improving
our. District's financial transparency. and comphance with all laws, regulahons
policies and practices for the benefit of everyone in our communlty After years of
existence in name only as an Audit Committee, you are confronted with making
thmgs right with limited resources. Unfortunately, there is no licensed Nevada CPA
on our accounting Staff including our Director of Finance. This limits your reliance
upon information . provided by Staff on compliance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles and relevant GASB Statements. The fact that the new
Director may be less familiar with the District's operations as well as Nevada law,
than you are, makes your task even more dlfflcult When you combine this with a
General Ledger and Chart of Accounts that would confound any reasonable
. accounting professional - she can only concludethat this Committee needs more
assistance from independent, professional talent. She recommends that you
engage an independent internal auditor to assist you and that you take the lead in
engaging an independent firm to develop a written system of internal controls. She
also recommends that this Committee have access to all the info provided by
Management to the Auditor and have a greater involvement in the process. You
also should be aware of Management's responsibilities under the Audit
Engagement letter and . exercise oversight of compliance with these
responsibilities. Please, also, use the free résources of our State that can provide
you with established Whistleblower policies as well as Opinions provided by the
Office of the Attorney General on [VGID's expressed and incidental powers under
NRS 318 regarding Dillon's Rule and other matters. This will save you time and
‘conserve public money for other necessary and important expenditures. And, one
last thing. The District is not complying with its appropriate level of fund balance
for a number of funds. There is substantial excess fund balances that should be
committed to capital projects -and aren't. Please address this at your earliest
convenience.

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action)

Audit Committee Chairman Dent asked for any changes; none were received; the
agenda was approved as submitted.
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D.  DISTRICT STAFF UPDATE (for possible action)

D.1. District’s 2019/2020 Independent Financial Audit: Verbal update
by the Director of Finance Paul Navazio on the District’s
2019/2020 Independent Financial Audlt being conducted by Eide
Bailly (Requesting Staff Member: Director of Finance Paul
Navazm)

Director .of Flnance Paul Navazio gave an overview of the submltted materials.
Audit Committee Chairman Dent asked that Staff provide the general ledger trial
balance and a draft of the basic financials to the Audit Committee. Director of
Finance Navazio said that they will be sent on Friday. ‘Audit Committee Chairman
Dent said that a good thing to have is some type of checklist that goes with our
pohcy as it is a good starting point for future Audit Committees. Audlt Committee
At-Large Member Ray Tulloch asked if Staff is looking at making some changes to
the policies. Director of Finance Navazio said yes which will require approval by
the Board of Trustees with input from the Audit Committee. Audit Committee At-
Large Member Tulloch asked, as a follow-up, is Staff complying with current Board
policies? Director of Finance Navazio said yes and that Staff looks forward to
getting feedback from the Audit Committee on how we are doing. Audit Committee
At-Large Member Cliff Dobler said that he wanted to talk about three things - one,
are we allowing Eide Bailly to make bookkeeping adjustments and if there are any
adjustments, will they have to disclose what they recommended? Director of
Finance Navazio said we are not yet at the point where the auditors have proposed
adjustments which would be . reported in the CAFR. Audit Committee At-Large
Member Dobler said he didn’'t understand. Audit Committee At-Large Member
Derrek Aaron said that he had the same exact question and that is who is actually
catching the adjustments or are these basically things that Eide Bailly discovered
during their initial field work? He has that confusion as well. Director of Finance
Navazio said the adjustments were done in consultation with the auditors and that
there are a handful of these are done every year and that is because of timing.
Every adjustment on this list has actually been posted to the ledger and have been
processed. Once this list is completed and the documents are updated, the
auditors will go through their part of the audit. Audit Committee At-Large Member
Aaron said he understands and has no heartache with this and suggested pointing
this out to the auditors so they can adjust their fieldwork. Audit Committee Member
Schmitz said it is very helpful to have this list as it relates to field testing. What
contra revenue is part of what they are testing and evaluating? Regarding
assighment and/or reservation of fund balance, pertaining to both Utilities and
Community Services, she would like to get clarification as this is the first time that
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the Board has restricted a portion of the $2 million. And finally, one simple question

— what are the deferred revenue at the beaches? Director of Finance Navazio said |

that contra revenues are being looked at it and we will have a note in the financial
statements related to the contra revenue which will be updated On the assignment
and/or reservation issue, the answer is yes and it includes the General Fund. We
have balances for deferred revenue that should be closed out each fiscal year.so
‘we need to get more- background on that and we- will follow up. There should hot
be a deferred revenue balance and it is a relatlvely small amount. There will be an
adjustment to clear those out. District General Manager Wrnquest said that the
small amount could be related to swim lesion and that Staff will have to go back
and look at how kayak revenue is set up. Group picnic rentals could also be one
of these items and Staff will follow up. Audit Committee Member Schmltz said that
at the last meeting, 3 of the Trustees requested that contra revenue not be carried
into this fiscal year; has that change happened? Director of Finance Navazio said
that the change is pendrng and that backing out a number of adjustments manually
is the simplest and easiest way, in the current fiscal year, to accomplish this
however they will be there for July and August. Staff is also looking at what would
be the appropnate process to reverse those and noted that is an item that is on the
front burner. The focus is on getting through the audit, year-end and ensuring that

the financials are done consistent with Board direction. On fund balances, there is
~ a discussion we have had related to the Utlllty Fund and what he is suggesting is
that we may end with financial statements that have all the revenues show up as
restricted and not net unrestricted fund balances. Audit At-Large Member Dobler
said that this is a little bit of housecleaning; one of the big problems we have always
had is nomenclature and actually what he is saying is we don’t have deferred
revenue rather we have unearned revenues and it is the same way with beaches.
When you go to open issues, there is no thing called reservation, it is either
restricted, unassigned, etc. It is important because of the timeline and that he is
not sure what we are getting. Our CAFR'is not audited by the auditors rather it is
only certain things. It would really help us with understandrng to see the letter of

transmittal, management discussion and analysis (MD&A), basic financial

information, statistical, etc. When will we get the compliance section? We don’t
- know when all the stuff will be presented. There is a whole of group of information
that Staff is required to provide to the auditors and he would like to have some
comfort that it being provided to ensure we are in compliance with the law. We
need the whole pie and not just the selected items along with an easier to follow
‘the format of the entire CAFR. The last thlng are the open issues that are under
review which he finds disheartening as it is being selective of what is being
reviewed. He doesn’t know how Staff is going to address the transfer and we need
these to do our job. In the representation letter by the management, 52
representations were made last year to the auditor which takes the auditor off of
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90%, so he wants to review that letter. Unfortunately, in the audit engagement
letter, he would like to know what we are representing and about half of them were
wrong last year. Audit At-Large Member Aaron said that he would like clarification
— deferred revenue and unearned revenue are the same thing. Audit At-Large
Member. Dobler said it is consistency with: terminology. Audit At-Large Member
Aaron said it is always important. Audit Committee Chairman Dent added that it
has been an ongoing issue for similar years even with the popular report and that's
why we created definitions. Director of Finance Navazio said that Staff gets it on
the nomenclature and sometimes the same thing may be called one thmg in one
place and another in another place. Staff did this list in timeline format not CAFR
format. The financial statements are baS|c and supplemental notes are the notes

.~ statistical information, draft letter and MD&A are being provided to the auditors in |

batches. What they will give back to us is a draft CAFR which will include their

items. A draft will be prepared and submitted to the Audit Committee and then they

will issue the full final CAFR by November 30. All of this is covered in the ’nmelme
which can be broken out and made more specific. We are not missing pieces but
rather it has been consolidated. Audit Committee Chairman Dent said so Staff will
be adding the additional items that Mr. Dobler brought up earlier? Director of
Finance Navazio said we will highlight contra revenue and that this was in
reference to the current work plan that Eide Bailly has for their work. We didn’t
attempt to include the Moss Adams work as that may inform where we finally land

with the CAFR; the Moss Adams body work is a body of work in of itself. Audit -

Committee Chairman Dent asked-how does that affect the timeline? Director of
Finance Navazio said it affects the timeline for the Audit Committee review and
recommendation to the Board of Trustees and the Board of Trustees action to
accept and file the report. It is not clear to him, because project is just starting, how
it will impact the Eide Bailly work plan. His sense is that Staff will proceed through
the draft CAFR and then wherever Moss Adams is, it will inform the process from
there. This brings up the issue about requesting an extension and we don’t know
if the Moss Adams scope of work will be completed within this timeframe listed
here; Staff didn’t want to assume anything. Audit Committee Chairman Dent asked
if Staff will be mcludmg other items under review? Audit At-Large Member Dobler
said this question is a yes or no answer - are we submitting to the auditors, right
now today, information including the contra revenues and the transfer from
Community Services to Beaches, and are you or are you not going to stop that —
yes or no. Director of Finance Navazio answered that Fiscal Year 2019/2020
includes contra revenue transaction. Audit At-Large Member Dobler said will you
reverse those or not? Director of Finance Navazio answered that the plan is to
reverse or not reflect them in the current year financials and yes, they will be in the
2019/2020 CAFR. Audit At-Large Member Dobler said so there is no intention of
reversing them? Director of Finance Navazio answered not at this time, no. Audit
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At- Large Member Dobler said you realize we are breaking the law and asked if
Staff understood that? Director of Finance Navazio said that Staff understands that
is. your position on the contra revenue account. Audit Committee Member Schmitz
said that when we have the kick off, we can prioritize that issue and get on it sooner
than rather. Audit Committee Chairman Dent asked what is the date? Audit
Committee Member Schmitz said tomorrow at 1 p.m. She would like to follow up
on a comment that Audit At-Large Member Dobler made and that is what is the
status of the representatlon letter and when will this committee have the
opportunity to review that? Dlrector of Finance Navazio said he will need to review
and get back to you on that. Audit Committee Member Schmitz said that in the past
the CAFR has been a bit of conglomeration with some sections being are audited,
and some not. Can we have it made clear on WhICh sections are audited and which
are not —is that somethlng we can do? Audit At- Large Member Dobler asked if the
table of contents could be put in the same format so as to tell us when we are
getting items as he doesn’t know why we have to juggle things. Remember the
game Finding Waldo? We don’t need to play that game so do it the same way.
Director of Finance Navazio said that makes sense. Audit Committee Chairman
Dent asked fif, through September 30, can we get that direction mcorporated into
the memo — using the same nomenclature and addmg the other items, updated by
October 197 In looking at the long range calendar, on agenda packet page 52, it
is up for discussionon October 19 so he would like to see if that date works? Audit
At-Large Member Aaron said that if we believe that errors may exist, we have to
have those reviewed before we come to a definitive presentation. Also the question
asked by Audit At-Large Member Tulloch which was looking at capltahzatlon and
rewriting those policies, he doesn’t know if it is issue that the policies are written
but rather the application as there are two routes you can go down — capitalization
or expense. There is a lot of judgment that goes into that at that time and that
needs to be included with that conversation. On the audit timeline, completion .of
field testing, says it will not be done by September 30 — is that: correct? Director of
Finance Navazio said it is ongoing. Audit At-Large Member Aaron asked if there
were any risks to Eide Bailly meeting that deadline or timeline of having a final
CAFR issued? Director of Finance Navazio said it is the last one and yes, there is
some risk. Audit At-Large Aaron said, notwithstanding those CAFR points, is the
November 30 date at risk? Director of Finance Navazio said assuming that we get
the auditors all the information they need in the next few days, they will make that
timeline. They are waiting for information from management and this timeline is
what is required for them to meet that date. Currently, we are on schedule; could
something come up that puts it at risk — he is optimistic that we will meet the
schedule. Audit At-Large Member Aaron said he understands the unknown and
asked if the date is at risk - yes, no, or maybe? Director of Finance Navazio said
we are good however he doesn’t know if our Eide Bailly contact has relayed
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anything to Audit Commlttee Chairman Dent regardlng timeline and that Staff is
working really hard to make sure they meet that timeline. Audit Committee
Chairman Dent said that he has nothing further from last Board meeting and that
the only concerns were related to the Moss Adams scope of work and that potential
delay. He does have a call on Friday with the Eide Ballly contact. Director of
Finance Navazio said that there were some requests for information, which W|Il be
prior to the next agenda packet that they will be recelvmg and that can be
discussed at an upcommg committee meeting. He is not going to wait until next
committee meeting to get that to you. Audit At- -Large Member Dobler said on
September 14 he asked for detail on unearned revenue for the beaches and that
he would like to see the draft general ledger trial balance. Audit Committee
Chairman Dent said we will have that and the preliminary financials on Friday,
October 2. ’

E.  GENERAL BUSINESS ITEM (for possible action)

E.1. Timeline and Request for Qualifications for external auditing

services for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 — discussion only item [NO

' ACTION] (Requesting Staff Member: Director of Fmance Paul
Navazio)

Audit Committee Chairman Dent began the presentation on the submitted
materials and Director of Finance Navazio completed the presentation. After
some discussion by the Audit Committee members, Audit At-Large

Members Dobler and Aaron volunteered to work together on this effort. Audit

Committee Member Schmitz said that their work will need to be submitted

by October 19 in order to be included in our meeting packet for October 27.

Audit Committee Chairman Dent concurred and noted that the Audit
Committee is a month behind this initial schedule. Audit At-Large Member
Dobler said that we have to first agree on the scope of work. Audit
Committee Chairman Dent said that is why we will discuss it on October 27
- and then it will go into the Request for Proposal. District General Counsel
Nelson reminded those working on the scope of work that if an initial scope
of work does go out, comments should be routed through the District Clerk.
Audit At-Large Member Dobler said that this is all backwards as he is going
to prepare the scope of work. Audit Committee Chairman Dent said that you
and Audit At-Large Member Aaron will be putting together the scope of work.
Once you have put that scope of work together, there is an opportunity to
get feedback prior to that meeting or to give us some talking points. You just
have to get it to the District Clerk who will get it distributed and then
comments will be routed back to the District Clerk. Audit At-Large Member
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Aaron said that he and Audit At-Large Member Dobler are to work on the
Request for Proposal and do so once the Director of Finance Navazio
updates the financial figures. Then this will come back to all of us and then
any of the other three who have questions or comments will submit those to
the District Clerk and the District Clerk will channel those to us so we can
incorporate them into the RFP so that we have one consolidated draft to
present on October 27. District General Counsel Nelson said generally we
can accommodate that and that we; Staff, may need to say this is a list of
comments that were raised however we do have the Open Meeting Law
hoop to Jump through. :

E.2. Revlew, ,dlscuss and possibly ‘approve a Whistlebylower
procedure for financial matters (Requesting Staff Member:
District General Manager Indra Winquest) -

Audit Committee Chairman Dent said he will reach out to that public member
who said they had a template so this item will be postponed until the next
meeting.

E.3. Legal Opinion for community correspondence regarding Dillon’s
Rule (Requesting Staff Member District General Counsel Joshua
Nelson)

Audlt Committee Chairman Dent said that this item is postponed un‘nl the
next meeting.

Audit Committee Member Schmitz asked if the committee can get a
comprehensive list of the policies that the committee should be reviewing or
that need to be created as having that as a comprehensive list would be-
helpful? District General Counsel Nelson agreed to provide that list. Audit
At-Large Member Tulloch said that he understood that we requested a legal
opinion on this item. District General Counsel Nelson said he would be
happy to move this onto BBK letterhead and that it is a legal opinion. Audit
At-Large Member Tulloch said he would like it prepared on letter. District
General Counsel Nelson said he is happy to do. Audit Committee Chairman
Dent said this is something that we ran into with our otherlegal counsel.

F. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES (for possible action)

F.1. Audit Committee Meeting Minutes of September 1, 2020
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Audit Committee Chairman Dent asked for any changes to the meeting
minutes. Audit Committee Member Schmitz said, on agenda packet page
37, very last sentence, which reads “...cost and activities which is
budgeted...” should be changed to read “...which should be budgeted...”
and that this is her only adjustment. Audit At-Large Member Dobler said on
agenda packet page 41, page 9 of the minutes, that he would like to review
that section. Audit Committee Chairman Dent said, hearing no further
changes, that the minutes are approved with the changes that need to be
made.

G. LONG RANGE CALENDAR
The following items were discussed:

e Would like to have some discussion about the additional 6 points that
Audit At-Large Member Dobler provided;

e Would like to have some discussion about the interest earned on the
pipeline monies and that the largest one is the money collected for the
effluent pipeline;

e A concern raised by member of the public Dick Warren;

Concern was raised that key items are stacking up so one member of
the committee would like to have a 4-hour meeting to get back on
track; and

e The Request for Proposal for an auditor was suggested as the
committee’s top priority.

The Audit Committee members agreed to have their next meeting on
October 27 and to start at 2 p.m.

H. PUBLIC COMMENTS* - Conducted in accordance with Nevada Revised
Statutes Chapter 241.020 and limited to a maximum of three (3)
minutes in duration.

Margaret Martini passed on her opportunity to speak.

Linda Newman said in light of Staff's comment that the contra revenue will remain
in the fiscal year 2020 financial statements, she would like to know if you will
recommend to the Board that they amend the 2020 final budget to reflect transfers
from the Community Services fund to the beaches. If there will not be a
recommendation what are the penalties for the Board’s failure to disclose the
transfers from the Community Services fund to the beaches in the final fiscal year
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2020 budget submitted to the State? The second issue that she has is that she
would like some clarification as Staff said they were trying to make some kind of
legal determination of whether the $2 million collected annually for the replacement
of the 6-miles of effluent pipeline was committed or actually restricted by law even
though the Board restricted it so she would like to know how does that apply with
the money that the District shows is restricted for defensible space? There is one
hundred thousand from the Utility fund and one hundred thousand from the
Community Services and the beaches which is constituted in the financial
statements as restricted and the only thing that she knows about is an agreement
between the North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District and IVGID which was dated
in 2004 and she doesn’t know of any other agreement and whether or how long
that agreement lasted in terms of restricting money and at that time, the only
amount was $25,000 so she hopes that when Staff is coming up with a legal
opinion as to whether this money is actually restricted for the Utility fund which the
Board, through the highest authority, restricted; she would like an answer to that
and she would like to know how the defensible space is restricted when the last
agreement she is aware of is for $25,000 and she doesn’t know when that ended.
The third thing is that she certainly does support additional meetings as she thinks
that this committee is making incredible progress and is really on target with the
important matters so she hopes you will schedule additional meetings and that the
next meeting will have the 3 hours to cover the important agenda items.

Frank Wright said that he was shocked about not reporting the contra revenue the
right way. Also there are some funds that are owed to Crystal Bay that are sitting
in IVGID’s coffers that should be returned. We have just lost our Director of Public
Works and that he hopes that we get the audit done before he gets too far down
the road. He doesn’t know what severance he got or what kind of good bye party
was held but we need to audit everything he has done because there is a lot of
money missing.

I ADJOURNMENT (for possible action)
The meeting was adjourned at 4:51 p.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Susan A. Herron
District Clerk

Attachments*:

*In accordance with NRS 241.035.1(d), the following attachments are included but have neither
been fact checked or verified by the District and are solely the thoughts, opinions, statements,
etc. of the author as identified below.



DATE DAY OF THE WEEK TIME LOCATION TYPE OF MEETING - 2020 COMPLETED MEMORANDUMS | ITEMS SLATED FOR CONSIDERATION
WITH ALL BACK UP MATERIALS
FOR AGENDA ITEMS FROM
BOARD DUE DATES
11/18 Wednesday 6p.m Southwood — VIRTUAL Regular Board Meeting 11/09/2020 8 a.m. GM Report to include update on the Ordinance 7 GM Advisory Committee
FY2020/21 1st Qtr Budget Update
Review of the Watermain Project (see award made on 06/23/2020)
Present Schematic Design of Burnt Cedar Swimming Pool Improvement Project
Season end report for Golf
& Season end report for Beaches
11/18 Wednesday TBD Southwood - VIRTUAL Audit Committee Meeting 11/09/2020 8 a.m. CAFR
Review Q1 Financials
RFQ for new auditor
Correspondence received
Finalize allocation of the fund balances to specific projects (from 08/12/2020)
12/09 Wednesday 6 p.m. Southwood — VIRTUAL Regular Board Meeting 11/30/2020 8 a.m. GM Report to include update on the Ordinance 7 GM Advisory Committee
Review of the Washpad Project (see award made on 06/23/2020)
Export Project Manager
Board of Trustees Handbook Review and Possible Approval
Budget Workshop #1 (D ber - Date TBD)
12/30 Wednesday 6 p.m Southwood — VIRTUAL Regular Board Meeting 12/21/2020 8 a.m. Typically cancelled
DATE DAY OF THE TIME LOCATION TYPE OF MEETING - 2021 | COMPLETED MEMORANDUMS | |TE{VIS SLATED FOR CONSIDERATION
WITH ALL BACK UP MATERIALS
WEEK FOR AGENDA ITEMS FROM
BOARD MEMBERS DUE DATES
01/13 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting Budget Workshop #2 (January - Date TBD)
01/27 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting
01/27 | Wednesday TBD Audit Committee Chair
Meeting
02/10 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting FY2020/21 Mid-Year Budget Update
02/24 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting Budget Workshop #3 (February - Date TBD)
03/10 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting
03/24 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting
04/14 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting
04/28 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting
05/12 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting Approval of FY2021/22 Tentative Budg
05/26 | Wednesday 6 p.m. Regular Board Meeting Adoption FY2021/22 Budget (incl. Public Hearing)
Approval of Rec Roll — FY2021/22 (incl. Public Hearing)

ltems sitting in the parking lot (to be discussed but (a) not yet scheduled for a specific Regular Board Meeting) or (b) a future Board not on this calendar

RFID Picture Passes — Item for next Strategic Plan or three years from now — software not available nor is infrastructure/hardware

TRPA EIS Contract at Diamond Peak

Split Ordinance 7 (allow 45 days ahead of action)

Enterprise vs special revenue accounting

Having correspondence in the Board packet (Chairman Callicrate)

General Manager’s job description clean up

Utility Rate adjustments (fee schedules) — pushed out from the April 14, 2020 meeting

Contract Award for Human Resources, Payroll and Financial Software

Board Policy 7.1.0 and Board Practice 7.2.0 (Trustee Dent) (Navazio)

Pricing policy

S,

h

1, 2021 — General Manager Performance Review and Review of Goals for FY 2020/2021

*Budget approval is required after the third Monday however whatever date is selected, a 10-day notice must be given. Must accomplished no later than June 1, 2021.

N

TONG RANGE CALENDAR
w

Thursday, October 22, 2020






